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PART |
ITEM 1. Business

Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 1K containsforward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995All statements in this document, other than statements of historical fact,
are forwardlooking statements which may be identified by the use of the sword
"expects," "believes," "anticipates,"should,""estimates" and similar expressions.

These forwardooking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which may cause our
actual results and performance to be materially differemh fivose expressed or implied in the forwérdking
statements.Factors and risks that may impact future results and performance include, but are not limited to, those
described in Part 1tem 1A, "Risk Factorsand in our other filings with the Secueifi and Exchange Commission
(the ASECO0) including:

1 general risks associated with the ownership and operation of real estate, including changes in
demand, risk related to development, acquisition, and expansion-st@®lfie facilities, potential
liability for environmental contamination, natural disasters and adverse changes in laws and
regulations governing property tax, real estate and zoning;

9 risks associated with downturns in the national and local economies in the markets in which we
operate, includig risks related to current economic conditions and the economic health of our
customers;

91 the impact of competition from new and existing stfrage and commercial facilities and other
storage alternatives;

91 the risk that our existing se$torage facities may be at a disadvantage in competing with newly
developed facilities with more visual and customer appeal;

9 difficulties in our ability to successfully evaluate, finance, integrate into our existing operations, and
manage propertighat we acquireidectly or through the acquisition of entities that own and operate
self-storage facilities

9 increased reliance on Google as a customer acquisition channel;

91 risks associated with international operations including, but not limited to, unfavorable foreign
currency rate fluctuations, changes in tax laws, and local and global economic uncertainty that could
adversely affect our earnings and cash flows;

9 risks rehted to our participation in joint ventures;

1 the impact of the legal and regulatory environment, including changes in federal, state, and local
laws and regulations governing environmental issues, taxes, our tenant reinsurance business, pricing

of our selfstorage space, and labor;

9 risks of increased tax expense associated either with a possible failure by us to qualify as a real

estate investment trust (AREITO), or with chal

taxable REIT subsidiaries;



1 risks due to a potential November 2020 California ballot initiative (or other equivalent actions) that
could remove theroperty taxprotections of Proposition 13 with respect to Gatiforniareal estate
and result in substantial increases in Gatiforniaproperty taxexpensg

f changes in United States (AU.S.0) federal or st
corporations;

1 security breaches or a failure of our networks, systems or technology could adversely impact our
operatioms or ourbusinesscustomer, and employee relationships or result in fraudulent payments;

1 risks associatedvith the selfinsurance of certain business risks, including property and casualty
insurance, employee health insurance and workers compensatibiielgab

1 difficulties in raising capital at a reasonable cost;
91 delays and cost overruns on our projects to develop or expand our facilities;

f ongoing |itigation and other | egal and regul ato
attention, requi us to pay damages and expenses or restrict the operation of our business; and

I economic uncertainty due to the impact of war or terrorism.

These forward looking statements speak only as of the date of this report or as of the dates indicated in the
statenents. All of our forwardooking statements, including those in this report, are qualified in their entirety by this
statement. We expressly disclaim any obligation to update publicly or otherwise revise any -fookigl
statements, whether as a régilnew information, new estimates, or other factors, events or circumstances after the
date of these forward looking statements, except when expressly required by law. Given these risks and uncertainties,
you should not rely on any forwatdoking statenents in this report, or which management may make orally or in
writing from time to time, neither as predictions of future events nor guarantees of future performance.

General

Public Storage (referred to her earylandREIT,fvaslorganized mpany o
in 1980.

At December 31, 2019, our principal business activities were as follows:

() Self-storage OperationsWe acquire, develop, own and operate-stdfage facilities, which offer
storage spaces for lease on a mdntmonth tasis, for personal and business use. We are the
largest owner and operator of sstbrage facilities in the U.SAt December 31, 2019, avhave
direct and idirect equity interests in 2,4&®lfstorage facilities that weonsolidate (an aggregate
of 169million net rentable square feet of space) located in 38 states within the U.S. operating under
the APublic Storaged brand name.

(i) Ancillary Operations We reinsure policies against losses to goods stored by customers in-our self
storage facilities ande#l merchandise, primarily locks and cardboard boxes, at ousteetfge
facilities.

(iii) Investment in PS Business Park®e have a42% equityinterest in PS Business Parks, Inc.
(APSBO) , a publicly held REI T t hatcialpnpedies, oper at
primarily multi-tenant flex, office, and industrial parks. At December 31, 2019, PSB owns and
operaes27.6million rentable square feet of commercial space.




(iv) Investment in ShurgardWehavea 35% equity interesh Shurgad Self Storag6§ A ( iShur gar d o)
a public company traded on Euronext B4selssel s un
storage facilities (13nillion net rentable square feet) located in seven countries in Western Europe
operated und@&rbt dred AbBlieweSlumardiethe largest owner and operator
of selfstorage facilities in Western Europe.

We alsomanageb5 self-storage facilities for third parties as of December 31, 2019. In order to further
increase our economies of scale and leverage andbin 2018 we began an effort to expand the number of facilities
we manage, through a dedicated internal sales, administration, and implementation team. During the year ended
December 31, 2019, wadded22 facilities to our third party management platfie At December 31, 2019, wee
under contract to manad® additional facilities currentlyunder onstruction, following their completion It is
uncertain how many third party managed facilities we will add to our platform over time. Weanads®9 million
net rentable square feet of commercial space which is managed primarily by PSB.

For all periods presented herein, we have elected to be treated as a REIT, as defined in the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended nftintueU.Si f€derdl éncone tax if e disaibutie EOO% , we
of our AREIT taxable incomed (generally, net rents and
(for this purpose, certain distributions paid in a subsequent year may be considecedf we meet certain
organizational and operational rules. We believe we met these requirements in all periods presented herein and we
expect to continue to elect and qualify as a REIT.

We report annually to the SEC on Form-KQwhich includes ihancial statements certified by our
independent registered public accountants. We also report quarterly to the SEC on f@rmhich includes
unaudited financial statements. We expect to continue such reporting.

On our websitewww.publicstorage.comwe make available, free of charge, our Annual Reports on
Form10- K, quarterly reports on Form 1Q, current reports on Formk, and all amendments to those reports as
soon as reasonably practicable after the reports and amendments are electroattallyhfibr furnished to the SEC.

The information contained on our website is not a part of, or incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on
Form10-K.

Competition

We believe that our customers generally store their goods within a three toléveadius of their home or
business. Our facilities compete with nearby-stdfage facilities owned by other operators using marketing channels
similar to ours, including Internet advertising, signage, and banners and offer services similar to cauresults
competition is significant and affects the occupancy levels, rental rates, rental income and operating expenses of our
facilities.

In the last three years, there has been a marked increase in development ot skanagelffacilities in many
of the marketsvhere we operatedue to the fav@ble economics of developing new propertieBhese newly
developed facilities compete with many of the facilities we own, negatively impacting our occupancies, rental rates,
and rental growth. This increms$n supply has been most notable in Atlanta, Austin, Charlotte, Chicago, Dallas,
Denver, HoustonMiami, New York, and Portland.

Ownership and operatiaf self-storage facilities is highly fragmented. As the largest owner oEsaifige
facilities, webelieve that we own approximately 7% of the sttfrage square footage in the U.S. and that collectively
the five largest selétorage owners in the U.S. own approximated¥o]l with the remaining 8% ownedby regional
and local operators.

The high leveof ownership fragmentation in the industry is partially attributable to the relative simplicity of
managing a local seftorage facility, such that smaitale owners can operate sglifrage facilities at a basic level
of profitability without signifiant managerial or operational infrastructure. However, we believe that the economies
of scale inherent in this business result in our being able to operastoselfe facilities at a materially higher level



of cashflow per squarefoot than other operatr s wi t hout our scale. See ABuUusi ne
discussion of these economies of scale.

While this fragmentation offers us opportunities to acquire additional facoiiestime and our scale allows
us to extract more cadlow from the properties we acquire, we compete for facilities that are marketed for sale with
a wide variety of institutions and other investors who also viewssethge facilities as attractive investments. The
amount of capital available for real estate stweents greatly influences the competition for ownership interests in
facilities and, by extension, the yields that we can achieve on newly acquired investments.

Recently, larger national operators (including ourselves) are offering to manage familitied by third
parties on their platform for a fee (AThird Party Mana
for small operators to compeisth larger operatoris paid search biddingampaigns to drive web traffic and increase
reservéions These two developmentgve the potential tdiminish the competitivedvantage we have versus
smaller owner/operatarsThe extent to which this trend becomes impactful is dependent on (i) how many smaller
operators will choose to avail themseleéd hird Party Management, (ii) the extent to which large national operators
seek to increase the number of properties under Third Party Management and (iii) the extent to which smaller operators
are attracted to Googl e bosmpmeethk efficacynofthep maakethggr m and ar e al

We generally own facilities in major markets. We believe that we have significant market share and
concentration in major metropolitan centers, végproximately70% of our 2019 samstore revenues generated in
the 20Met ropol i tan Statistical Areas (each, an AMSAO, as
population levels. We believe this is a competitive advantage relative to othstosatfe operators, which do not
have our geographic conceatibn and market share in the major MSAs.

Business Attributes

We believe that we possess several primary business attributes that permit us to compete effectively:

Centralized information networksOur centralized reporting and information network eaalis to identify
changing market conditions and operating trends as well as analyze customer data and, on an automated basis, quickly
change each of our individual p r o p enarketing spéndipgrsuclctien g and
relaive level of bidding for various paid search terms on paid search engines.

Convenient shopping experienceCustomers can conveniently shop for available storage space, reviewing
attributes such as facility location, size, amenities such as clzoatel|, as well as pricing, through the following
marketing channels:

1 Our Desktop and Mobile WebsitesThe online marketing channel is a key source of customers.
Approximately75% of our moveins in 2019 were sourcetrough our websitand we believe that
many of our other customers who reserved directly through our call center or arrived at a facility
and moved in without a reservation, have reviewed our pricing and availability online through our
websites. We seek to regularly updtte structure, fout, and content of our website order to

enhance our placement in fAunpaidd search i n Gooq
of our bids in Apaidd search campaignpouand to |
website

91 Our Call Center: Our call center is staffed by skilled sales specialists. Customers reach our call
center by calling our advertised tdiee telephone numbers provided on search engines or our
website. We believe giving customers théi@pto interact with a call center agent, despite the
higher marginal cost relative to a reservation made on our website, enhances our ability to close
sales with potential customers.

91  Our Properties: Customers can also shop at any one of our facilitloperty managers access
the same information that is available on our website and to our call center agents, and can inform



the customer of available space at that site or our other nearby storage facilities. Property managers
are trained to maximizehe conver sion of such fiwalk ind shopj

Managerial economies of scaléfhe size and scope of our operations have enabled us to achieve high
operating margins and a low level of administrative costs relative to revenues through thkzatotr of many
functions, such as facility maintenance, employee compensation and benefits programs, revenue management, as well
as the development and documentation of standardized operating procedures. We also believe that our major market
concentrabn provides managerial efficiencies stemming from having a large percentage of our facilities in close
proximity to each other.

Marketing economies of scaléOur majormarket concentration relative to the fragmented ownership and
operation of the restfdhe industry, combined with our welcognized brand name, improves our prominence in
unpaid online searchresultsforselt or age and reduces our akeywardadvertislgp st per
Such concentration and the resulting volunmatdes us to efficiently leverage systematic bidding strategies to
maximize our return on investment across multiple keywords

Brand name recognitonWe bel i eve t hat the fAPublic Storaged br
established name in the setbrage industry, due to our national reach in major markets in 38 states, our highly visible
facilities, and our facilitiesd distinct orange col ore

of the most frequently used search tetrssd by customers using Internet search engines festeedige. We believe
that the @ Shur @hlurgardis abveltastablisheduasderalualbeyorand in Europe. We believe that the
awareness of our brand name results in a high percentggeenttial storage customers considering our facilities
relative to other operators.

Growth and Investment Strategies

Ourongoinggrowth strategies consist of) {improving the operating performance of our existing-seifage
facilities, (ii) acquiring more facilities, (iii) developing new facilities and adding moressethge space tour
existing facilities, (iv)participating in the growth of our investmeéntPSB, and (v) participating in the growth of our
investment in Shurgard. While our lotgym strategy includes each of these elements, in the short run the level of
growth in our asset base in any period is dependent upon the cost and availahdlftitadf as well as the relative
attractiveness of available investment alternatives.

From time to time we explore expansion of our activities to other countries. Any such strategic expansion

would most likely involve acquiring an interestinanexistnger at or 6s pl at f or m. There ca
such expansion will occur in the future or the timing thereof.

Improve the operating performance of existing facilitie§/e seek to increase the net cash flow of our
existing selfstorage facilitts through maximizing revenues and controlling operating costs. We seek to maximize
revenues through striking the appropriate balance between occupancy and rates to new and existing tenants, by
regularly adjusting(i) our promotional and other discounts) the rental rates we charge to new and existing
customersand (iii) our marketingspending and intensity We inform these pricing and marketing decisions by
observing their impact on web and call center traffic, reservations,-meyenoveouts, teant length of stay, and
other indicators of response. We also seek to control operating costs and provide a favorable experience to new,
existing, and potential customeby leveraginginformation technology and our economies of scaféctively
overseing our customefacing and bacloffice property management personnahd by providing convenient
shopping options for the customer.

Acquire properties owned by others in the U.8Ve seek to capitalize on the fragmentation of the self
storage busineghirough acquiring attractively priced, wédicated existing selétorage facilities. We believe our
presence in and knowledge of substantially all of the major markets in the U.S. enhances our ability to identify
attractive acquisition opportunities. @aon the rental rates and occupancy levels of our existing facilities provide us
an advantage in evaluating the potential of acquisition opportunities. Our aggressiveness in bidding for particular
marketed facilities depends upon many factors includiegpbtential for future growth, the quality of construction
and location, the cash flow we expect from the facility when operated on our platform, how well the facility fits into

8



our current geographic footprint, as well as oeturn on capitakxpectatios. FromJanuary 1,2015 through
December 312019, we acquired an aggregateld@3facilities from third parties at an aggregate costlofi$illion.

We will continue to seek to acquire properties i2@thowever, there is significant competition &gaire existing
facilities, and sels t or age ownersd desire to sell is based wupon
returns, expectations of future growth, estimated value, the cost of debt financing, as well as personal considerations.
As a result, there can be no assurance as to the level of facilities we may acquire.

Develop new selétorage facilities and expand existing facilitiesThe development of new sedforage
locations and the expansion of existing facilities has been antempgource of growth. Since the beginning of 2013,
we have expanded our development efforts due in part to the significant increase in prices being paid for existing
facilities, in many cases well above the cost of developing new facilities. At Dec&hp019, we had a
development pipeline to develd new selfstorage facilities and expard® existing selfstorage facilities, which
will add approximatelyt.4 million net rentable square feett a cost of $619.@illion. Some of these projects are
subject to significant contingencies such as entitlement approval. We expect to continue to seek additional
development projects; however, the level of future development may be limited due to various constraags such
difficulty in finding projects that meet our riskdjusted yield expectations, challenges in obtaining building permits
for selfstorage activities in certain municipalities, as well as challenges in sourcing quality construction materials,
labor, anddesign elements.

Participate in the growth of PS Business Parks, IndQur investment in PSB provides diversification into
another asset type. PSB is a statwhe public company traded on the NYSE. As of December 31, 2019, we have a
42% equity interst in PSB.

PSB seeks to grow its asset basé@srexistingmarkets as well as increase the cash flows froravitsed
portfolio. As of December 31, 2019, PSB owrsedl operated approximate®r.6million rentable square feet of
commercial space, and had enterprise value of approximatel§.$billion(b ased wupon the trading
common stock combined with the liquidation value of its preferred stock as of December 31, 2019).

Participate in the growth of ShurgardWe believe Shurgard is tharbest selstorage company in Western
Europe. It owns andperate234 self-storage facilities with approximately 13 millioret rentable square feet in:
France (principally Paris), Sweden (principally Stockholm), the United Kingdom (principally Lonttoa),
Netherlands, Denmark (principally Copenhagen), Beldjorimcipally Brusselsand Germany. On October 15, 2018,
Shurgard completed an initial gl obal of feri naqgildnt he AOf
ingross proceeds,dn i t s shares commenced trading on Euronext Bru
the Offering (we did not acquire any additional common shares or sell any of our existing shares in the Offering), our
equity interest in Shurgard decreased fr@®o4o 35.2%.

Customer awareness and availabiliti/ selfstorage is significantly lower in Europe than in the U.S.
However, with more awareness and product supply, we believe there is potential for increased demand for storage
space in Europe. We believshurgard can capitalize on potential increased deteiadgh the development of
newfacilities and acquiring existing facilities. Fraranuary 12014 througtbecember 312019, Shugard acquired
39facilities from third parties foapproximately $38.1 million, and ha®penedlL0 development properties atatal
cost ofapproximately$122.9 million. At December 31, 2019, Shurgard had contracts to acquire six properties and
had six properties under development.

Financial Profile and Sources of Growth Capital

Capital Constraints as a REIT While being a REIT allows us to minimize the payment of fedardlstate
income tax expense, we are required to distribute 100% of our taxable income to our shareholders. This requirements
limits cashflow from operations that can be retained and reinvested in the business, increasing our reliance upon
raising capital to fund growth

Access to Capital Because raising capital is important to our growth, we endeavor to maintain a strong

financial profile characterized by strong credit metrics, including low leverage relative to our total capitalization and
operating cash fl ows. We are one of the highest rated
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& Poords. deburhasnaonrfiAo credit rating by Standard & P
on each of our series of preferred shares are AA30 by I
and ratings enable us to effectively access Hatpublic and private capital markets to raise capital.

While we must distribute our taxable income, we are nonetheless able to retain operating cash flow to the
extent that our tax depreciation exceeds our maintenance capital expenditures. In resemieybave retained
approximately $200 million to $300 million per year in cash fl@@apital needs in excess of retained désh are
met with: (i) preferred equity(ii) medium and longerm debt, andiii) common equity. We select among these
source of capital based upon relative cost, availability, the desire for leverage, and potential constraints caused by
certain features of capital sources, such as debt covenants. We view our line of credit, as welleasngank loans,
as bridge financing

We could also raise capital through joint venture financing or the sale of properties, however, we have no
current plans to use these sources of capital.

Preferred equity: Preferred equity is an important sourcelamfg-term capital While prefered equi t y 6 s
coupon rategienerallyexceed interest rates dong-term debt, we believe the issuance of preferred equity is a
favorable source of capital when available because it does not require repayment and, at our option, we can redeem
the security a#ir five years if, for example, market coupon rates have declined and we can reissue new securities at a
lower rate.

Notwithstanding these favorable characteristics, the rates and market conditions for the issuance of preferred
securities can be volatile or inefficient from time to time, and the amount that can beinsanggarticular offering
is generally limited t@approximately $300 million at any one point in time, because demand for these securities comes
primarily from retail investors rather than institutional investors.

The level of preferred equity outstanding has remairgdtively constant, totaling $4.Billion at
DecembeBl, 2014 and $4.1 billion at December 31, 2019. However, dthisgtimeframe, we have regularly
redeemed preferred shares pursuant to our redenggttam, and issued new preferred equity at lower rates, reducing
the average coupaate from5.88% at December 31, 2014 to 5%zt Decembe31,2019.

As of February 25, 2020, we believe that the market coupon rate feryge securities approximate§8%.
As of February 25, 2020, we hav e, thelfolowingpseriesoal prefeoedr e d e e m
securities: our 5.375% Series V Preferred Shares ($495 million), our 5.200% Series W Preferred Shares ($500
million), and our 5.200% Series X Preferred Shares ($225 million). Redemption of such preferred sharesndill dep
upon many factors, including the rate at which we could issue replacement preferred securities.

Medium and LongTerm Debt We have increased our debt outstanding from $64 million at December 31,
2014 to $1.9 billion at December 31, 2019, and onudey 24 2 0 2 0, we issued an addit:.
($551.6million) of senior unsecured debt. Our $dillion of debt outstanding at February 25, 2020 has an average
interest rate opproximately2.43%. While we have increased our use of debt eapétal source, and have broad
powers to issue debt without a vote by our preferred or common shareholders, we expect to continue to remain
conservatively capitalized and not subjectl adudredeéelingds ot
our maturities.

Common equity: Except in connection with mergers, most notably a merger in 2006 with Shurgard Storage
Centers, we have not raised capital through the issuance of common equity because lower cost alternatives have been
available. Howeer, we believe that the market for our common equity is liquid, with average tradimgesol 2019
of approximately 8800 common shares per day and, as a result, common equity is a significant potential source of
capital.

Bridge financing: We have &500.0 million revolving line of credit which we occasionally use as temporary
Abri dged f i nanci-term bankalbansn gntil we dréh able to aaisé lorigem capital. As of
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DecembeB1, 2019, there were no borrowings outstanding on our vienpline of credit and no shetérm bank
loans.

Joint Venture Financing: We have participated in joint ventures with institutional investors in the past to
acquire, develop, and operate salfrage facilities, most notably our joint venture to ownr§ard, prior to its
Offering. Any future uses of joint venture financing will be based upon, among other considerations, the relative cost
of joint venture financing as compared to other sources of capital. We do not have any current plans tonttilize joi
venture financing.

Sale of Properties: Generally, we have disposed of sslfrage facilities only when compelled to do so
through condemnation proceedings. Because we believe that we are an optimal operatstooégelfacilities, we
have geneally found that we cannot obtain sufficient value in selling propeli&sause potential buyers cannot
extract as much cash flow from the properties as we éana result, we do not presently expect to raise significant
capital selling selktorage fadities; however, there can be no assurance that we will not.

Investments in Real Estate and Unconsolidated Real Estate Entities

Investment Policies and Practices with respect to our investmdfddowing are our investment practices
and policies which, thugh we do not anticipate any significant alteration, can be changed by our board of trustees
(the ABoardod) without a sharehol der vot e:

1 Ourinvestments primarily consist of direct ownership ofstdfage facilities, as well as partial interests
in entities we control that own sedft or age faci |l ities that we manage
name in the U.S. Our investments in sstirage facilities are described in more detail in Item 2,
AProperties, 0 bel ow.

1 We have an ownership interest in Shudyavhich owns storage facilities located in Europe under the
AShurgardo brand name.

1 Additional acquired interests in real estate will primarily include the acquisition of properties from third
parties, as well as to a lesser extent, partial interesttities in which we already have an interest.

1 To a lesser extent, we have interests in existing commercial properties (described in Item 2,
APropertieso), containing commerci al and industri
PSB.

Facilities Owned by Unconsolidated Real Estate Entities

At December 31, 2019, we had ownership interests in PSB and Shurgard (each discussed above), which we
do not control or consolidate.

PSB and Shurgardés debt has no r3g e0dafines@al staements . Se
for further disclosure regardiraur investments iPSB andShurgard In addition, PSB&ds publ
at its websitewww.psbusinessparks.caand on the SEC website, aBtlurgard s publ i ¢ f irkportedg s and
information can be obtained on its websditigps://corporate.shurgard.and on the website of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange, http://www.bourse.lu.

— — TN

Canadian seltstorage facilities owned byTamara HughesGustavson

At December 31, 2019, Tamara Hughes Gustawsamember of our Board of Trusteegned and controlled
63 self-storage facilitesinCanadd hese facilities operate under the HAPubl
to the owners of these facilitidsr use in Canada on a royaftee, norexclusive basis. We have no ownership
interest in these facilities and we do not own or operate any facilities in Calfiaga.chose to acquire or develop
our own facilities in Canada, we would have to shareuttsee of t he #APublic Storageodo nal
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right of first refusal, subject to limitations, to acquire the stock or assets of the corporation engaged in the operation
of these facilities if their owners agree to sell them. Our subsidiariesureirisks relating to loss of goods stored by
customers in these facilities, and have receamatoximately $1.5 million, 53 millionand #.1 millionfor the years

ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Our rigbhtioue receivinghtese premiums may be
qualified.

Limitations on Debt

Our revolving credit facility, U.S. Dollar Notes and Euro Notes contain various customary financial
covenants, including limitations on our ability to encumber our properties with mortgages arteblsion the level
of indebtedness. We believe we complied with each of these covenants as of December 31, 2019.

Employees

We had approximately 5,900 employees in the U.S. at December 31, 2019 who are engaged primarily in
property operations.

Seasonality

We experience minor seasonal fluctuations in the demand festsedfge space, with demand and rental
rates generally higher in the summer months than in the winter months. We believe that these fluctuations result in
part from increased mawj activity during the summer months.

Insurance

We carry property, earthquake, general liability, employee medical insurance and workers compensation
coverage through internationally recognized insurance carriers, subject to deductibles. Our dedugtileréd
liability is $2.0 million per occurrence. Our annual deductible for property loss is B8@5dh per occurrence. This
deductible decreases to $5.0 million once we reach $35.0 million in aggregate losses for occurrences that exceed
$5.0milion. l nsurance carriersd aggr eg arnilkon fori propertys lossesm and he s e
$102.0million for general liability losses are higher than estimates of maximum probable losses that could occur from
individual catastrophic events detened in recent engineering and actuarial studies; however, in case of multiple
catastrophic events, these limits could be exceeded.

We reinsure a program that provides insurance to our customers from an independgatrtyiiasurer.
This program coversustomer claims for losses to goods stored at our facilities as a result of specific named perils
(earthquakes are not covered by this program), up to a maximum limit of $5,000 per storage unit. We reinsure all
risks in this program, but purchase insw&ito cover this exposure for a limit of $15.0 million for losses in excess of
$5.0 million per occurrence. We are subject to licensing requirementeguidtions in several states. Customers
participate in the program at their option. At Decembef819, there were approximatel$®000 certificates held
by our selfstorage customers, representing aggregate coverage of approxirB2ddiidn.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information in our Annual Report on ForaK1§ou shoull consider the risks
described below that we believe may be material to investors in evaluating the Company. This section contains
forward-looking statements, and in considering these statements, you should refer to the qualifications and limitations
onaur forwardl ooki ng st atements that are described in Item 1,

We have significant exposure to real estate risk.
Since our business consists primarily of acquiring, developing, and operating real estate, we are subject to
risks related to the ovemship and operation of real estate tild result in reduced revenues, increased expenses,

increased capital expenditures, or increased borrowings, which could negatively impact our operating results, cash
flow available for distribution or reinvestmiand our stock price
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Natural disasters or terrorist attacks could cause damage to our facilities, resulting in increased costs and
reduced revenueNatural disasters, such as earthquakes, fires, hurricanes and floods, or terrorist attacks eould caus
significant damage to our facilities and require significant repair costs, and make facilities temporarily uninhabitable,
thereby reducing our revenues. Damage and business interruption losses could exceed the aggregate limits of our
insurance coveragdn addition, because we séifsure a portion of our risks, losses below a certain level may not be
covered by insurance. See Note 13 to our December 31, 2019 financial statements for a description of the risks of
losses that are not covered by thiralty insurance contracts. Whmeay not have sufficient insurance coverage for
losses caused by a terrorist attack, or such insurance may not be maintained, availableffectest In addition,
significant natural disasters, terrorist attacks, threfdtgare terrorist attacks, or resulting wider armed conflicts could
have negative impacts on sstbrage demand and/or our revenues.

Consequences of climate change, including severe weather events, and the steps taken to prevent climate
change, could result in increased capital expenditures, increased expenses, and reduced rBieutiesid indirect
impacts of climate change, such mcreased destructive weather events, fires, reduced lifespans and population
reduction, reduced natural habitats, water, food, arable land, and other resources, as well as resulting armed conflicts,
could increase our costs or reduce demand for oustrtige facilitiesGovernmental, political, and societal pressure
could (i) require costly changes to future newly developed facilities, or require retrofitting of our existing facilities, to
reduce carbon emissions through multiple avenues includiaggels to insulation, space configuration, lighting,
heating, and air conditioning, (ii) increase energy costs as a result of switching to lessirarisive, but more
expensive, sources of energy to operate our facilities, and (iii) result in conseahecsg their individual carbon
footprints by owning fewer durable material consumer goods, collectibles, and other such items requiring storage,
resulting in a reduced demand for our sttfrage space.

Operating costs, including property taxes, coirldrease We could be subject to increases in insurance
premiums, property or other taxes, repair and maintenance costs, payroll, utility costs, workers compensation, and
other operating expenses due to various factors such as inflation, labor shartage®dity and energy price
increases, weather, increases to minimum wage rates, changes to governmental safety and real estate use limitations,
as well as other governmental actions. Our property tax expense, which agatedimately $80.5 million during
the year ended December 31, 2019, generally depends upon the assessed value of our real estate facilities as
determined by assessors and government agencies, and accordingly could be subject to snbstastal if such
agencies changatleir valuation approaches or opinions or if new laws are enacted, especially if new approaches are
adopted or laws are enacted that result in increased property tax assessments in states or geographies where we have
a hich concentration of facilities. eSe  aWeave @kposure to increased property tax in Califérniab e | o w.

The acquisition of existing properties selfstorage operating companids subject to risks that may
adversely affect our growth and financial resulié/e have acquired setfiorage facilities from third parties in the
past, and we expect to continue to do so in the futW& face significant competition for suitable acquisition
properties from other real estate investors. As a result, we may be unable to acquire addipenétp we desire
or the purchase price for desirable properties may be significantly incréeades or unexpected circumstances in
integrating facilities that we acquire directly or via the acquisition of operating companies into our operations, o
circumstances we did not detect or anticipate during due diligence, such as environmental matters, needed repairs or
deferred maintenance, customer collection issues, assumed liabilities, turnover of critical personnel involved in
acquired operating corapies, or the effects of increased property tax following reassessment of aaceuised
property, as well as the general risks of real estate investment and mergers and acquisitions, could jeopardize
realization of the anticipated earnings from an asitjan.

Development of sefftorage facilities can subject us to risk&t December 31, 2019, we have a pipeline of
development projects totalin@g$9.2million (subject to contingencies), and we expect to continue to seek additional
development projest There are significant risks involved in developing-stdfage facilities, such as delays or cost
increases due to changes in or failure to meet government or regulatory requirements, failure of revenue to meet our
underwriting estimates, weather issyu unforeseen site conditions, or personnel problems.-st8edfge space is
generally not préeased, and rentp of newly developed space can be delayed or ongoing cash flow yields can be
reduced due to competition, reductions in storage demand, orfathers.
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There is significant competition among ssitfrage operators and from other storage alternativ@sr self
storage facilities generate most of our revenue and earnings. Competition in the local market areas in which many of
our properties i@ located is significant and has affected our occupancy levels, rental rates, and operating expenses.
Development of sel§torage facilities has increased in recent years, which has intensified competition and will
continue to do so as newly developedilfies are opened. Development of setifrage facilities by other operators
could continue to increase, due to increases in availability of funds for investment or other reasons, and further
intensify competition.

Our newly developed and expanded Ilfies, and facilities that we manage for third party owners, may
negatively impadhe revenues of our existing facilitied/e continue to develop new sslforage facilities and expand
our existing sekstorage facilities. In addition, we are seekingicrease the number of sstbrage facilities that we
manage for third party owners in exchange for a fee, many of which are in the process of stabilization and are in
proximity to our existing stabilized sedtorage facilities. In order to hasten file-up of these new facilities, we
aggressively price such space during theufillperiod. While we believe that this aggressive pricing allows us to
increase our market share relative to our competitors and increase the cash flows of these pogeigsing and
the added capacity may also negatively impact our existing stabilizest@elfe facilities that are in proximity to
these unstabilized facilities.

Many of our existing seBtorage facilities may be at a competitive disadvantageetolyn developed
facilities. There is a significant level of development of new-stdfage facilities, by us and other operators. These
newly developed facilities are generally of high quality, with a more fresh and vibrant appearance, more amenities
sudh as climate control, more attractive office configurations, newer elements, and a more imposing and attractive
retail presence as compared to many of our existing stabilizestsedfje facilities, some of which were built as much
as 50 years ago. Sughalitative differentials may negatively impact our ability to compete with these facilities for
new tenants and our existing tenants may move to newly developed facilities.

We may incur significant liabilities from environmental contamination or mashfiltration. Existing or
future laws impose or may impose liability on us to clean up environmental contamination on or around properties
that we currently or previously owned or operated, even if we were not responsible for or aware of the erteironmen
contamination or even if such environmental contamination occurred prior to our involvement with the property. We
have conducted preliminary environmental assessments on most of our properties, which have not identified any
material liabilites. Thes assessment s, commonly referred to as MAPhas
investigation (excluding soil or groundwater sampling or analysis) and a review of publicly available information
regarding the site and other nearby properties.

We ae also subject to potential liability relating to moisture infiltration, which can result in mold or other
damage to our or our customersdé property, as wel |l as
otherwise become aware that an aialijy concern exists, we implement corrective measures and seek to work
proactively with our customers to resolve issues, subject to our contractual limitations on liability for such claims.

We are not aware of any environmental contamination or moistiilteation related liabilities that could be
material to our overall business, financial condition, or results of operation. However, we may not have detected all
material liabilities, we could acquire properties with material undetected liabilitie®veo conditions could arise or
develop at our properties, any of which could result in a cash settlement or adversely affect our ability to sell, lease,
operate, or encumber affected facilities.

Economic conditions can adversely affect our business, fineial condition, growth and access to capital.

Our revenues and operating cash flow can be negatively impacted by reductions in employment and
population levels, household and disposable income, and other general economic factors that lead to ameduction i
demand for rental space in each of the markets in which we operate.

Our ability to raise capital to fund our activities may be adversely affected by challenging market conditions.

In periods when the capital and credit markets experience signifiosattlity, the amounts, sources, and cost of
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capital available to us may be adversely affected. If we were unable to raise capital at reasonable rates, prospective
earnings growth through expanding our asset base could be limited.

We have exposure td&curopean operations through our ownership in Shurgard.

We own approximately 35% of the common shares of Shurgard, and this investment3ggQartiilion
book value and al® billion mar ket value (based upon the crdsoskaig trad,i
December 31, 2019. We recognizekb% million in equity in earnings, and received3l million in dividends, in
2019, with respect to Shurgard.

Shurgardas an owner, operator, and developer ofs&elfage facilities, is subject to many of the same risks
we are with respect to sedforage. However, through our investment in Shurgard, we are exposed to additional risks
unique to the various European ikets Shurgard operates in which may adversely impact our business and financial
results, many of which are referred to in Shurgardds p

1 Currency risks:Currency fluctuations can impact the fair value ofiouestment in Shurgard, our equity
earnings, our ongoing dividends, and any other related repatriations of cash.

1 Legislative, tax, and regulatory risk&hurgard is subject to a variety of local, national, and pan European
laws and regulations related permitting and land use, the environment, labor, and other areas, as well
as income, property, sales, value added and employment tax laws. These laws can be difficult to apply
or interpret and can vary in each country or locality, and are subject;tpaated changes in their form
and application due to regional, national, or local political uncertainty and other factors. Such changes,

or Shurgardoés failure to comply with these | aws,
changes irbusiness processes, as well as potentially adverse income tax, property tax, or other tax
burdens.

1 Impedimats to capital repatriation could negatively impact the realization of our investment in
Shurgard: Laws in Europe and the U.S. may create, impedicrease our cost to repatriate distributions
received from Shurgard or proceeds from the sale ¢

1 Risks of collective bargaining and intellectual propert€ollective bargaining, which is prevalent in
certain areas in Europe, cdul negati vely i mpact Shurgardos l abor
Shurgardés empl oyees participate in various nati ol

I Potential operating and individual country risk€Economic slowdowns or extraordinary political or
social change in the courds in which it operates have posed, and could continue to pose, challenges or
result in future reductions of Shurgardés operati.:

1 Liquidity of our ownership staka/e have no plans to liquidate our interest in Shurgard. However, while
Shurgard is a publicly held entity, if we chose to, our ability to liquidate our shares in Shurgard in an
efficient manner could be | imited by the | evel of
we sought to sell. Our existing relatibis with our legacy joint venture partner may place further
contractual limitations on our ability to sell all of the shares we own if we desired to do so.

1 Impediments ofShurgard s publ i ¢ owneShwsgudg stracegie: deci si ol
activities such as borrowing money, capital contributions, raising capital from third parties, as well as
selling or acquiring significant assets, are determined by its board of directors. As &hasglardnay
be precluded from taking advantage of ogipnities that we would find attractive but that we may not be
able to pursue economically separately, or it could take actions that we do not agree with.
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We have exposure to commercial property risk through our ownership in PSB.

We own

approximatel#2% of the commoequity of PSB, and this investment ha$427.9million book

valueanda®4bi | | i on mar ket value (based upon the clI8lsing tr
2019. We recognizei54.1 million in equity in earnings, anteceived $0.7 millionin dividends, in 2019, with

respect to PSB.

PSB, as an owner, operator, and developer of real estate, is subject to many of the same risks we are with
respect to real estate. However, we may be exposed to other risks asafesuP SBds owner ship spe

commer Ci

al facilities. T h e K éor theiyeakendechDeeemizee3tl, 2019, uriddr i n

fi | t e rRisklLFActors 0O

The Hughes Family couldsignificantly influence us and take actions adverse to ber shareholders.

At December 31, 2019, B. Wayne Hughes, our former Chairman and his family, which includes his daughter,
Tamara Hughes Gustavson and his son, B. Wayne Hughes, Jr., who are both members of our Board of Trustees
(col l ecti velkagmi ltiydeppirdianatdiyeld. 1% afur aggregate outstanding common shares. Our
declaration of trust permits the Hughes Family to own up to 35.66% of our outstanding common shares while it
generally restricts the ownership by other persons and erttiti8% of our outstanding common shanatess our
Board of Trustees grants an ownership waia has occurred in certain cases for large mutual fund companies
Consequently, the Hughes Family may significantly influence matters submitted to a vate sifiareholders,

including electin
transactions, su
shareholders.

g trustees, amending our organizational documents, dissolving and approving other extraordinary
ch as a takeover attempt, which may result in an outcome that may not be favorable to other

Takeover attempts or changes in control could be thwarted, even if beneficial to shareholders.

In certain circumstances, shareholders might desire a change of control or acquisition of us, in order to realize

a premium over

the theprevailing market price obur shares or for other reasons. However, the following could

prevent, deter, or delay such a transaction:

il

Provisions of Maryland law may impose limitations that may make it more difficult for a third party

to negotiate or effect a business combimati@nsaction or control share acquisition with Public
Storage. Currently, the Board has opted not to subject the Company to these provisions of Maryland
law, but it could choose to do so in the future without shareholder approval.

To protect againsthe loss of our REIT status due to concentration of ownership levels, our
declaration of trust generally limits the ability of a person, other than the Hughes Family or
Afdesignated investment entitiesodo (eadubllyas def.i
constructively, more than 3% of our outstanding common shares or 9.9% of the outstanding shares

of any class or series of preferred or equity shares. Our Board may grant, and has previously granted,

a specific exemption. These limits couldaburage, delay or prevent a transaction involving a

change in control of the Company not approved by our Board.

Similarly, current provisions of our declaration of trust and powers of our Board could have the

same effect, including (1) limitations onmeval of trustees, (2) restrictions on the acquisition of

our shares of beneficial interest, (3) the power to issue additional common shares, preferred shares

or equity shares on terms approved by the Board without obtaining shareholder approval, (4) the
advance notice provisions of our bylaws and (5)
obtaining shareholder approval, to implement takeover defenses that we may not yet have and to
take, or refrain from taking, other actions that could have tfectebf delaying, deterring or

preventing a transaction or a change in control.
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If we failed to qualify as a REIT, we would have to pay substantial income taxes.

REITs are subject to a range of complex organizational and operational requirements. A qualifying REIT
does not generally incur federal income tax on its net income that is distributed to its shareholders. Our REIT status
is also dependent upon the omgpREIT qualification of PSB as a result of our substantial ownership interest in it.
We believe we have qualified as a REIT and we intend to continue to maintain our REIT status.

There can be no assurance that we qualify or will continue to qualifyREss, because of the highly
technical nature of the REIT rules, the ongoing importance of factual determinations, the possibility of unidentified
issues in prior periods, or changes in our circumstances, as well as share ownership limits in our articles of
incorporation that do not necessarily ensure that our shareholder base is sufficiently diverse for us to qualify as a
REIT. For any year we fail to qualify as a REIT, unless certain relief provisions apply (the granting of such relief
could nonetheless salt in significant excise or penalty taxes), we would not be allowed a deduction for dividends
paid, we would be subject to corporate tax on our taxable income, and generally we would not be allowed to elect
REIT status until the fifth year after such iaglalification. Any taxes, interest, and penalties incurred would reduce
our cash available for distributions to shareholders and could negatively affect our stock price. However, for years in
which we failed to qualify as a REIT, we would not be suli@®EIT rules that require us to distribute substantially
all of our taxable income to our shareholders.

Holders of our preferred shares have dividend, liquidation and other rights that are senior to the rights of the
holders of shares of our common stock.

Holders of our preferred shares are entitled to cumulative dividends before any dividends may be declared
or set aside on our common stock. Upon liquidation, holders of our preferred shares will receive a liquidation
preference of $25,000 per share$@6.00 per depositary share) plus any accrued and unpaid distributions before any
payment is made to the common shareholders. These preferences may limit the amount received by our common
shareholders either from ongoing distributions or upon liquidatioraddition, our preferred shareholders have the
right to elect two additional directors to our Board whenever dividends are in arrears in an aggregate amount equivalent
to six or more quarterly dividends, whether or not consecutive.

We are increasinglydependent upon Google to source our customers.

Approximately 59% of our new storage customers in 2019 were sourcedydedtidirectly through
flunpaidd searcha n d  diseaach dampaigren Google. We believe that the vast majority of customers sagrchi
for seltstorage use Google at some stage in their shopping experience. Google is providing tools to allow smaller
and less sophisticated operators to bid for search terms, increasing competitiondtoragt search terms. The
predominanceof Godge i n t he shopping experience, as well as Goo
placements in setorage search terms, may reduce the number of new customers that we can procure, and/or increase
our costs to obtain new customers.

Preferred Shareholders are subject to certain risks.

Holders of our preferred shares have preference rights over our common shareholders with respect to
liquidation and distributions, which give them some assurance of continued payment of their stated iditédand
receipt of their principal upon liquidation of the Company or redemption of their securities. However, holders of our
Preferred Shares should consider the following risks:

1 The Company has in the past, and could in the future, issue or asdiitt@atidebt. Preferred
shareholders would be subordinated to the interest and principal payments of such debt, which
would increase the risk that there would not be sufficient funds to pay distributions or liquidation
amounts to the preferred sharehotde
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1 The Company has in the past, and could in the future, issue additional preferred shares that, while
pari passu to the existing preferred shares, increases the risk that there would not be sufficient funds
to pay distributions to the preferred shareleos.

1  While the Company has no plans to do so, if the Company were to lose its REIT status or no longer
elect REIT status, it would no longer be required to distribute its taxable income to maintain REIT
status. If, in such a circumstance, the Compamget paying dividends, unpaid distributions to
the preferred shareholders would continue to accumulate. The preferred shareholders would have
the ability to elect two additional members to serve on our Board of Trustees until the arrearage
was cured. Thereferred shareholders would not receive any compensation (such as interest) for
the delay in the receipt of distributions, and it is possible that the arrearage could accumulate
indefinitely.

Changes in tax laws could negatively impact us.

The UnitedStates Treasury Department and Congress frequently review federal income tax legislation,
regulations and other guidance. We cannot predict whether, when, or to what extent new federal tax laws, regulations,
interpretations or rulings will be adopted. JAlegislative action may prospectively or retroactively modify our tax
treatment and, therefore, may adversely affect taxation of us or our shareholders.

Changes made by the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ouwhe ATCJ
ability to deduct compensation in excess of $1 million paid to certain senior executives. This could require us to
increase distributions to our shareholdearthe futurein order to avoid paying tax and to maintain our REIT status.

We may pay someaaxes, reducing cash available for shareholders.

Even if we qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we may be subject to some federal, foreign,
state and local taxes on our income and property. Since January 1, 2001, certain consolidatdd solzidiaries
of the Company have elected to be treated as fdtaxabl e
taxable as regular corporations and subject to certain limitations on intercompany transactions. If tax authorities
determne that amounts paid by our taxable REIT subsidiaries to us are not reasonable compared to similar
arrangements among unrelated parties, we could be subject to a 100% penalty tax on the excess payments, and ongoing
intercompany arrangements could have tange, resulting in higher ongoing tax payments. To the extent the
Company is required to pay federal, foreign, state or local taxes or federal penalty taxes due to existing laws or changes
thereto, we will have less cash available for distribution toetedders.

In addition, certain local and state governments have imposed taxes-stose rent. While in most cases
those taxes are paid by our customers, they increase the costadbsade rental to our customers and can negatively
impact ourrevenues. Other local and state governments may impossaelfie rent taxes in the future.

We have exposurdo increased property tax in California.

Approximately $80 million of our 2019 net operating income is from our properties in Californiayend
incurred approximately #million in related property tax expense. Due to the impact of Proposition 13, which
generally limits increases in assessatlies to 2% per year, the assessed value and resulting property tax we pay is
less than it would bd the properties were assessed at current values. From time to time, proposals have been made
to reduce the beneficial impact of Proposition 13, particularly with respect to commercial and industrial (non
residential) real estate, which would includeself or age faci l i ti es. I n |l ate 2018
November 2020 statewide ballot that would create a A
applicable to residential real estaféhe sponsors of the gihal initiative are attempting to qualify a revised proposal
that has a similar impact in terms of property taxes, but may have a higher change of passage. If the revised initiative
is qualified, it will replace the first initiative on the November 2@2dlot. If the original or replacement initiative
were to be adopted, it would end the beneficial effect of Propodiidar our properties, and our property tax expense
could increase substantially, adversely affecting our cash flow from operationstandome.

s p
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We cannot predict whether (i) the revised initiative will qualify to replace the first qualified initiative, (ii) the
initiative that ends up on the November 2020 ballot will pass or (iii) other changes to Proposition 13 may be proposed
or adopted in the future.

We are exposed to ongoing I|litigation and other | egal a
time and attention, require us to pay damages and expenses or restrict the operation of our business.

We have over 5,900mployees, more than 1.4 milli@ustomers, and we conduct business at facilities with
169 million net rentable square feet of storage space. As a result, we are subject to the risk of legal claims and
proceedinggincluding class actions) and regulat@myforcement actions in the ordinary course of our business and
otherwise, and we could incur significant liabilities and substantial legal fees as a result of these actions. Resolution
of these claims and actions may divert time and attention by our sraeag could involve payment of damages or
expenses by us, all of which may be significant, and could damage our reputation and our brand. In addition, any such
resolution could involve our agreement to terms that restrict the operation of our busitessesdits of legal
proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty. We cannot guarantee losses incurred in connection with any current
or future legal or regulatory proceedings or actions will not exceed any provisions we may have set aside in respect
of such proceedings or actions or will not exceed any available insurance coverage. The impact of any such legal
claims, proceedings, and regulatory enforcement actions and could negatively impact our operating results, cash flow
available for distribution oreinvestment, and/or the price of our common shares.

In addition, through exercising their authority to regulate our activities, governmental agencies can otherwise
negatively impact our business by increasing costs or decreasing revenues.

We are heaily dependent on computer systems, telecommunications and the Internet to process transactions,
make payments, summarize results and manage our business. The failure or disruption of our computer and
communications systemsould significantly harm our business

We are heavily dependent upon automated information technology and Internet commerce, with more than
half of our new customers coming from the telephone or over the Internet. We centrally manage significant
components of our operations with owngputer systems, including our financial information, and we also rely
extensively on thirgparty vendors to retain data, process transactions and provide other systems services. These
systems are subject to damage or interruption from power outagesuteorapd telecommunications failures,
hackers, computer worms, viruses and other destructive or disruptive security breaches and catastrophic events. Such
incidents could also result in significant costs to repair or replace such networks or inforrystiionss as well as
actual monetary losses in case of a breach that resulted in fraudulent payments or other cash transactions. As a result,
our operations could be severely impacted by a natural disaster, terrorist attack, attack by hackers, adisrof vanda
data theft, misplaced or lost data, programming or human error, or other circumstance that results in a significant
outage of our systems or those of our third party providers, despite our use of back up and redundancy measures.

If our confidential information is compromised or corrupted, including as a result of a cybersecurity breach,
our reputation and business relationships could be damaged, which could adversely affect our financial
condition and operating results.

In the ordinary course of olusiness we acquire and store sensitive data, including personally identifiable
information of our prospective and current customers and our employees. The secure processing and maintenance of
this information is critical to our operations and busirstestegy. Although we believe we have taken commercially
reasonable steps to protect the security of our confidential information, information security risks have generally
increased in recent years due to the rise in new technologies and the incregdmsiication and activities of
perpetrators of cyberattacksDespite our security measuresge have experienced security breaches due to
cyberattacks and additional breaches could occur in the future. In these cases, our information technology and
infrat ructure could be vulnerable and our or our cust omi
compromised or misappropriated. Any such breach could result in serious and harmful consequences for us or our
tenants.

Our confidential information may also be compromised due to programming or human error or malfeasance.
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We must continually evaluate and adapt our systems and processes to address the evolving threat landscape, and
therefore there is no guarantee that tivlybe adequate to safeguard against all data security breaches or misuses of
data. In addition, as the regulatory environment related to information security, data collection and use, and privacy
becomes increasingly rigorous, with new and changingireqents applicable to our business from multiple
regulatory agencies at the local, state, federal, or international level, compliance with those requirement could also
result in additional costs, or we could fail to comply with those requirements glagdas reasons such as not being

aware of them.

Any such access, disclosure or other loss of information could result in legal claims or proceedings, liability
under laws that protect the privacy of personal information, regulatory penalties, distoptiar operations and the
services we provide to customers or damage our reputation, any of which could adversely affect our results of
operations, reputation and competitive position. In addition, our customers could lose confidence in our ability to
protect their personal information, which could cause them to discontinue leasing estosede facilities. Such
events could lead to lost future revenues and adversely affect our results of operations and could result in remedial
and other costs, fines lawsuits, which could be in excess of any available insurance that we have procured.
We are subject to Californiads new privacy |l aw which wi
us to litigation that may affect our operating results ad financial condition.

The California Consumer Privacy Act (the ACCPAO) v
requires, among other things, companies that collect personal information about California residents to make new
disclosures to those siglents about their data collection, use and sharing practices, allows residents to opt out of
certain data sharing with third parties, and provides a new cause of action for data brelaetesger, regulations
from the California Attorney General havetrieen finalized, and it is expected that additional amendments to the
CCPA will be introduced in 2020. It therefore remains unclear what, if any, modifications will be made to the CCPA
or how it will be interpretedWhile we believe we have developedgpesses to comply with CCPA requirements, a
regulatory agency may not agree with certain of our implementation decisions, which could subject us to litigation,
regulatory actions or changes to our business practices that could increase costs or reties @her states have
also considered or are considering privacy laws similar to the CCHilar laws may be implemented in other
jurisdictions that we do business in and in ways that may be more restrictive than the CCPA, increasing the cost of
comgdiance, as well as the risk of noncompliance, on our business.

Our tenant reinsurance business is subject to governmental regulation which could reduce our profitability or
limit our growth.

We hold Limited Lines SelService Storage Insurance Agent lises from a number of individual state
departments of insurance and are subject to state governmental regulation and sup€ursgamtinued ability to
maintain these Limited Lines SeHervice Storage Insurance Agent licenses in the jurisdictions ichwie are
licensed depends on our compliance with related rules and regulafio@segulatory authorities in each jurisdiction
generally have broad discretion to grant, renew and revoke licenses and approvals, to promulgate, interpret, and
implement rgulations, and to evaluate compliance with regulations through periodic examinations, audits and
investigations of the affairs of insuraregents. As a result of regulatory or private action in any jurisdiction, we may
be temporarily or permanently susiled from continuingome or all of our reinsurance activities otherwise fined
or penalized or suffer an adverse judgment, which could reduce our net income.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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ITEM 2. Properties

At December 31, 2019ve had controlling ownershimterests in 2,83 selfstorage facilities locad in
38 states within the U.S.

At December 31, 2019

Number of Storage Net Rentable Square F«
Facilities (in thousands)
California

Southern 250 18,356
Northern 179 11,271
Texas 311 23,761
Florida 295 20,312
lllinois 126 7,952
Georgia 113 7,625
Washington 100 6,960
North Carolina 93 6,824
Virginia 104 6,455
Colorado 75 5,532
New York 67 4,650
Minnesota 57 4,249
New Jersey 58 3,863
Maryland 62 3,761
South Carolina 63 3,654
Ohio 49 3,199
Arizona 47 3,103
Michigan 45 3,094
Indiana 39 2,451
Missouri 38 2,236
Tennessee 35 2,228
Oregon 39 2,040
Pennsylvania 28 1,957
Massachusetts 27 1,875
Nevada 27 1,818
Oklahoma 22 1,533
Kansas 21 1,268
Other states (12 states) 113 6,881
Total (a) 2,483 168,908

(@ SeeSchedule T 11: Real Est ate and Ac cfinamials,dor & shmniaey pfrlad; i at i on

building, accumulated depreciation, square footage, and enofilproperties by market

We seek to maximize our facilitiesd cash flow thro
and promotions granted to oexisting and new incoming customers, and controlling expenses. For the year ended
December 31, 201%he weighted average occupancy level and the average realized rent per occupied square foot for
our seltstorage facilities were approximatéd9.96 and$17.02 respectively

At December 31, 20127 of our facilities with a net book value of $& million were encumbered by an
aggregate of $27 million in mortgagetes payable.

We have no specific policy as to the maximum size of any one particlilat@@ge facility. However, no
individual facility involves, or is expected to involve, 1% or more of our total assets, gross revenues or net income.
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Description of SelStorage Facilities: Self-storage facilities, which comprise the majority of our
investments, offer accessible storage space for personal and business use at a relatively low cost. A user rents a fully
enclosed space, securing the space with their lock, which is for the user's exclusive use and to which only the user has
access. Propsrmanagers operate the facility and are supervised by district managers. Sestaragdf facilities
also include rentable uncovered parking areas for vehicle storage. Space is rented onta-momih basis and
rental rates vary according to the dtion of the property, the size of the storage space and other characteristics that
affect the relative attractiveness of -uepadc ha cpcaerstsi,c uiltasr ps
to elevators, or if the space is climate coédl All of our selfstorage facilitiesare operated under the "Public
Storage" brand name.

Users include individuals from virtually all demographic groups, as well as businesses. Individuals usually
store furniture, household appliances, personal beigagmotor vehicles, boats, campers, motorcycles and other
household goods. Businesses normally store excess inventory, business records, seasonal goods, equipment and
fixtures.

The configuration of selétorage facilities hasvolved overtime. Theoldestfacilities are comprised
generallyof multiple singlestory buildings, and have on averamproximatels 0 0 pri mar i |y dAdri ve wu
facility, and a smalftentaloffice. The most prevalent recently constructed facilities have higher ddasityrints
with large, multistory buildings with climate control and generally up to 1,000stelfage spaces, a more imposing
and visible retail presence, and a prominent and large rental office designed to appeal to customers as an attractive
andretd-f ocused fis t-siarage portfolio@ualudes daeilltigs with characteristics of the oldest facilities,
characteristics of the most recently constructed facilities, and those with charactefibtitk older and recently
constructed facilitiesMost spaces have between 25 and 400 square feet and an interior height of approximately eight
to 12 feet.

We experience minor seasonal fluctuations in the occupancy levels-sfagalfje facilities with occupancies
generally higher in the summer monthan in the winter months. We believe that these fluctuations result in part
from increased demand from moving activity during the summer months and incremental demand from college
students.

Our selfstorage facilities are geographically diversified am@ located primarily in or near major
metropolitan markets in 38 states in the U.S. Generally oustegtige facilities are located in heavily populated
areas and close to concentrations of apartment complexes, single family residences and corersdogiaiahts.

Competition from other seltorage facilities is significant and affects the occupancy levels, rental rates,
rental income and operating expenses of our facilities.

We believe that selftorage facilities, upon achieving stabilized occuydevels of approximately 90%,
have attractive characteristics consisting of high profit margins, a broad tenant base, low levels of capital expenditures
to maintain their condition and appearance and excellent returns on invested capital. Histopoallggaching
stabilization, our U.S. seltorage facilities have generally shown a high degree of stability in generating cash flows.

Description of Commercial Propertie$Ve have an interest in PSB, which, as of December 31, 2019, owns
and operates gpoximately27.6 million rentable square feet of commercial space in six states. At December 31,
2019, the 827.9million book value and &.4 billion market value, respectively, of our investment in PSB represents
approximately 4% an?1%, respectivelyof our total book value assets. We also directly o@mllion net rentable
square feet of commercial space managed primarily by PSB.

The commercial properties owned by PSB consist primarily of flex, #irint office and industrial space.
Flex spae is defined as buildings that are configured with a combination of office and warehouse space and can be
designed to fit a wide variety of uses (including office, assembly, showroom, laboratory, light manufacturing and
warehouse space).
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Environmental Matters: We accrue environmental assessments and estimated remediation cost when it is
probable that such efforts will be required and the related costs can be reasonably estimated. Our current practice is
to conduct environmental investigations in conimecwith property acquisitions. Although there can be no assurance,
we are not aware of any environmental contamination of any of our facilities, which individually or in the aggregate
would be material to our overall business, financial condition,ardt®of operations.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to contingent losses as a result of being a party to various claims, complaints, and legal
proceedings. However, we believe that there is a remote likelihood that the resolution of theger@aswill
result in a material loss or have a material adverse affect on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART 1l

ITEM 5. Mar ket for Regi strant 6s Caderiatiers &d lasuer Qurchagesdfat ed St
Equity Securities

Our CommonShares of beneficial interest (the fACommon S
NYSE since October 19, 1984. As of Februaty 2020, there wereapproximately 1,573 holdersof record of our
Common Shares.

Our Board of Trustees has authorized management to repurchase up to 35,000,000 of our common shares on
the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. From the inception of the repurchase program through
February 3, 220, we have repurchased a total of 23,721,916 common shares (all purchased prior to 2010) at an
aggregate cost @pproximately $679.million. Our common share repurchase program does not have an expiration
date and there are 11,278,084nwoon shares that may yet be repurchased under our repurchase program as of
December 31, 2019 We have no current plans to repurchase shares; however, future levels of common share
repurchases will be dependent upon our available capital, investmerdtialesnand the trading price of our common
shares.

Refer to Iteml1 2 . ASecurity Ownership of Certain Benefici
Sharehol der Mattersod for information about our equity ¢
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

For the year ended December 31,

25

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)
Revenues $ 2,846,82: $ 2,754,280 $ 2,668,526 $ 2,560,54¢ $ 2,381,69¢
Expenses:
Cost of operations 796,783 739,722 707,978 669,083 635,502
Depreciation and amortization 512,918 483,646 454,526 433,314 426,008
General and administrative 71,983 118,72C 82,882 83,656 88,177
Interest expense 45,641 32,542 12,690 4,210 610
1,427,32E 1,374,63C 1,258,07¢€ 1,190,267 1,150,297
Other increasédecrease) to net income:
Interest and other income 28,436 26,442 18,771 15,138 16,544
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated real
estate entities 69,547 103,495 75,655 56,756 50,937
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) 7,829 18,117 (50,045 17,570 306
Casualty loss - - (7,789 - -
Gain on sale of real estate 341 37,903 1,421 689 18,503
Gain due to Shurgard public offering - 151,616 - - -
Net income 1,525,651 1,717,22¢ 1,448,465 1,460,43¢ 1,317,68¢
Net income allocated to noncontrolling
equity interests (5,117 (6,192 (6,248 (6,863 (6,445
Net income allocableo Public Storage
shareholders $ 1520534 $ 1,711,031 $ 1,442217 $ 1,45357¢ $ 1,311,24
Per Common Share:
Distributions $ 8.00 $ 8.00 $ 8.00 $ 730 $ 6.50
Net income Basic $ 730 $ 8.56 $ 6.75 $ 6.84 $ 6.10
Net incomé’ Diluted $ 729 $ 854 $ 6.73 $ 6.81 $ 6.07
Weighted average common shares:
Basic 174,287 173,969 173,613 173,091 172,69¢
Diluted 174,530 174,297 174,151 173,878 173,51C
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 11,365,44¢ $ 10,928,27( $ 10,732,892 $ 10,130,33¢ $ 9,778,232
Total debt $ 1,902,497 $ 1,412,28: $ 1,431,322 $ 390,74¢ $ 319,01¢€
Total preferred equity $ 4,06500C $ 4,025,00C $ 4,02500C $ 4,367,50C $ 4,055,00C
Public Storage sha$ 9062911 $ 09,11947¢ $ 8,940,00¢ $ 9,41191C $ 9,170,641
Per manent noncontr
equity $ 16,756 $ 25,250 $ 24,360 $ 29,744 $ 26,997
Net cash flow:
Provided by operating activities $ 2,067,642 $ 2,063,637 $ 1,972,88¢ $ 1,94524¢ $ 1,748,12¢
Used in investing activities $ (897,360 $ (515,912 $ (737,064 $ (699,023 $ (455,982
Used in financing activities $ (1,120,735 $ (1,619,588 $ (992,219 $ (1,148,826 $ (1,391,283



ITEM7. Management 6s Discussion and Analysis of Financi al

Management 6s Discussion and Analysis of Financial C
be read in conjunction with our financial statements anesiereto.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our MD&A discusses our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (AGAAPO), and atee affecH
to our December 31, 2019 financial statements, primarily Note 2, summarize our significant accounting policies.

We believe the following are our critical accounting policies, because they have a material impact on the
portrayal of our financial condi@n and results, and they require us to make judgments and estimates about matters
that are inherently uncertain.

Income Tax Expense:We have elected to be treated as a REIT, as defined in the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amende dRE[Ttwe do ndt Daudfedérgl incomeAax onaour REIT taxable income that is
fully distributed each year (for this purpose, certain distributions paid in a subsequent year may be considered), and if
we meet certain organizational and operational rulesbé&lfeve we have met these REIT requirements for all periods
presented herein. Accordingly, we have recorded no federal income tax expense related to our REIT taxable income.

Our evaluation that we have met the REIT requirements could be incorrect,dbecmydiance with the tax
rules requires factual determinations, and circumstances we have not identified could result in noncompliance with
the tax requirements in current or prior years. For any taxable year that we fail to qualify as a REIT anchfor whi
applicable statutory relief provisions did not apply, we would be taxed at the regular corporate rates on all of our
taxable income for at least that year and the ensuing four years, we could be subject to penalties and interest, and our
net income wouwl be materially different from the amounts estimated in our financial statements.

I n addition, certain of our consolidated corporate
subsidiarieso for feder al i A regular corparationp and pubjecete certaimh i ¢ h
limitations on intercompany transactions. If tax authorities determine that amounts paid by our taxable REIT
subsidiaries to us are not reasonable compared to similar arrangements among unrelated pantilEsbevsubject
to a 100% penalty tax on the excess payments. Such a penalty tax could have a material adverse impact on our net
income.

Impairment of LongLived Assets: The analysis of impairment of our lotiged assets involves
identification of indcators of impairment, projections of future operating cash flows, and estimates of fair values, all
of which require significant judgment and subjectivity. Others could come to materially different conclusions. In
addition, we may not have identified alirrent facts and circumstances that may affect impairment. Any unidentified
impairment loss, or change in conclusions, could have a material adverse impact on our net income.

Accrual for Uncertain and Contingent Liabilities: We accrue for certain cangent and other liabilities
that have significant uncertain elements, such as property taxes, workers compensation claims, tenant reinsurance
claims, as well as other legal claims and disputes involving customers, employees, governmental agencies and othe
third parties. We estimate such liabilities based upon many factors such as assumptions of past and future trends and
our evaluation of likely outcomes. However, the estimates of known liabilities could be incorrect or we may not be
aware of all suchidbilities, in which case our accrued liabilities and net income could be misstated.

Allocating Purchase Pricdfor Acquired Real Estate Facilities:We estimate the fair values of land and
buildings for purposes of allocating the aggregate purchase qfriaequired properties. The related estimation
processes involve significant judgment. We estimate the fair value of acquired buildings by determining the current
cost to build new purposdeauilt selfstorage facilities in the same location, and adjgdtiose costs for the actual age,
quality, condition, amenities, and configuration of the buildings acquired. We estimate the fair value of acquired land
by considering the most directly comparabl engrtleecent | vy
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transacted values for differentials to the acquired land such as location quality, parcel size, and date of sale, in order
to derive the estimated value of the underlying acquired land. These adjustments to the Land Comps require significant
judgment, particularly when there is a low volume of Land Comps or the available Land Comps lack similarity to the
acquired property in proximity, date of sale, or location quality. Others could come to materially different conclusions
as to the estimated fainlues, which would result in different depreciation and amortization expense, gains and losses
on sale of real estate assets, as well as the level of land and buildings on our balance sheet.

Overview

Our selfstorage operations generate most of ouineetme, and we believe that our earnings growth is most
impacted by the level of organic growth in our existing-sedfage portfolio. Accordingly, a significant portion of

management 6s time is devoted t o -storagd fagiitess ng cash fl ows

Most of our facilities compete with other wetlanaged and welbcated competitors within the local trade
area, which is generally a three to five mile radius. In addition to local competition, we are subject to general economic
conditions, particularly those that affect the spending habits of consumers and moving trends. We believe that our
centralized information networ ks, national telephone
and our economies of scale bteaus to meet such challenges effectively.

In the last thee years, there has been a marked increase in development of retaraghé facilities in many
of the marketsvhere we operatedue to the favorable economics aéveloping new properties Thesenewly
developed facilities compete with many of the facilities we own, negatively impacting our occupancies, rental rates,
and rental growth. This increase in supply has been most notable in Atlanta, Austin, Charlotte, Chicago, Dallas,
Denver, HoustonMiami, New York, and Portland.

Thequality of the new supply may also allow these new facilities to compete more effectively with existing
self-storage assetsMuc h of this new supply, including our nown,
have a more fresh and vibrant appearance, more amenities such as climate control, more attractive office

configurations, newer elements, and a more imposing and attractive retail presence as compared to the existing stock

of seltstorage facilities whickvere built over the last 50 years.

In order to enhance the competitive position of certain of our facilities relative to local competitors (including
newly developed #dAfifth generationo facilities), we
properties, in order to develop more pronounced, attractive, and clearly identifiable color schemes and signage, as
well as to upgrade the configuration and layout of the offices and other customer zones to improve the customer
experience. This progranmas initially been concentrated in properties located in a limited number of markets. The
extent to which we continue this program in additional markets, and the relative scope of work, will depend in part
upon the results of the initial implementatiortloé program.

In addition to managing our existing facilities for organic growth, we plan on growing through the acquisition
and development of new facilitiesidh expanding our existing sedforage facilities. Since the beginning of 2013
through Decembe31, 2019, we acquired a total 40facilities with 23.8 million net rentable square feet from third
parties for approximately $Bbillion, and we opened newly developed and expandesteetge space for a total
cost of $16 billion, addingapproximagly 15.1 million net rentable square feet.

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, we acquired or were under contract to @eudpjget to customary
closing conditions)14 self-storage facilities, withapproximately 1.1 million net rentable square feet, for
$245.3million. We will continue to seek to acquire properties; however, there is significant competition to acquire
existing facilitiesand there can be no assurance as to the level of facilities we may acquire.

At Decemlter 31, 2019, we had a development pipeline to develop 12 nestealfje facilities and expand

35 existing selktorage facilities, which will add approximately 4.4 million net rentable square feet at a cost of
$619.2million. We expect to continue to ele additional development projects; however, the level of such activity
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may be limiteddue to various constraints such as difficulty in finding available sites that meet ecadjisied yield
expectations, as well as challenges in obtaining buildingipsefon selfstorage activities in certain municipalities.

We believe that our development and redevelopment activities generate favorabthusskd returns over
the long run.However, in the short run, our earnings are diluted during the conetrid stabilization period due
to the cost of capital to fund the development cost, as well as the related construction and development overhead
expenses included in general and administrative expense. We believe the level of dilution incurred il 2019 wi
continue at similar levels in 2020.

On October 15, 2018, S h ur ¢ eomgletedanlinitial @dba offerme th& A ( A S
Afof feringo) of its common shares, and its shares commen
In the Offering, Shurgard issued 250 | | i on of i ts common sharpershatdort hi r d

U 5 Tnblion in gross proceeds. The gross proceeds were used to repaestmoborrowings, invest in real estate

assets, and for other mrate purposes. Our equity interest, comprised of a direct and indireett@rownership
interest in 31.3 million shares, decreased from 49% to
in Shurgardo below for more information.

As of December 31, 2019, we expect capiaburces over the next year of approximately $illion, which
exceeds our currently identified capital needs of approximate®l2.mmillion. Our expected capital resources
include: (i) $109.7 million of cashas of December 31, 2019, (#184.1million of available borrowing capacity on
our revolving line of credit, (iii) $545.2 million in net proceeds from the public issuance of senied&wminated
notes and (iv) approximately $200 million to $250 miiliof expected retained operating cash flow in the next year.
Retained operating cash flow represents our expected cash flow provided by operating activities, less shareholder
distributions and capital expenditures to maintain our real estate facilities.

Our currently identified capital needs consist primarily of $245ilBon in property acquisitions currently
under contract and $477.3 million of remaining spending on our current development pipeline, which will be incurred
primarily in the next 18 mohs. We have no substantial principal payments on debt until 2022. We expect our capital
needs to increase over the next year as we add projects to our development pipeline and acquire additional properties.
Additional potential capital needs could rdsfiom various activities including the redemption of outstanding
preferred securities, repurchases of common stock, or mergers and acquisition activities such as a potential acquisition
of National StorageBITdes cr i bed i n Not e 1o0br,Decéntharl3l 2049dimancial sthtenmems; s 0 t o
however, there can be no assurance of any such activities transpiring in the near or longer term.

See Liquidity and Capital Resourcefor further information regarding our capital requirements and
anticipated sorces of capital to fund such requirements.

Results of Operations

Operating results for 2019 and 2018

In 2019, net income allocable to our common shareholders was $1,272.8 million or $7.29 per diluted common
share, compared to $1,488.9 million or $8/5dr diluted common share in 2018presenting a decrease of
$216.1million or $1.25 per diluted common share. The decrease is due primarily to (i) $183.1 million in aggregate
gai ns due inital pdblicofferingandltiie sale of our facility in West London to Shurgard in October 2018,
(i) our $37.7 million equity share of gains recorded by PS Business Parks during 20a&1@iB million decrease
due to the impact of foreign currencyxchange gains associated with our eurmameinated debt and (iv) a
$32.7million allocation to our preferred shareholders associated with our preferred share redemption activities in
2019. These impacts were offset partially by a $30.1 million increaselfistorage net operating income (described
below) and a reduction in general and administrative expense attributable to $30.7 million in incremerbalssithre
compensation expense in 2018 for the planned retirement of our former CEO and CFO.

The $30.1million increase in sel§torage net operating income is a result of a $2.6 million increase in our
Same Store Facilities and $27.5 million increase in our3mme Store Facilities. Revenues for the Same Store
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Facilities increased 1.4% or $3318llion in 2019 as compared to 2018, due primarily to higher realized annual rent
per occupied square foot. Cost of operations for the Same Store Facilities increased by 5.0% or $30.6 million in 2019
as compared to 2018, due primarily to 47.2% ($15.3 milliomeeme in marketing expenses and increased property
taxes. The increase in net operating income of $27.5 million for th&aom Store Facilities is due primarily to the
impact of facilities acquired in 2018 and 2019 and thaufillof recently developeahd expanded facilities.

Operating results for 2018 and 2017

In 2018, net income allocable to our common shareholders was $1,488.9 million or $8.54 per diluted common
share, compared to $1,171.6 million or $6.73 per diluted common share in 2017 repyeaantitrease of
$317.3million or $1.81 per diluted common share. The increase is due primarily to (i) $183.1 million in aggregate
gains due to Shurgardo6s initial public offer@i)mg and t
$47.1million increase in seltorage net operating income (described below), (iii) our $37.7 million equity share of
gains recorded by PS Business Parks in 2018, (iv) a $68.2 million increase due to the impact of foreign currency
exchange gains and losses assodiati#h our euro denominated debt, (v) a $29.3 million allocation to preferred
shareholders associated with preferred share redemptions in 2017 and (vi) a $7.8 million casualty loss and $5.2 million
in incremental tenant reinsurance losses related to ldaggcHarvey and Irma in 2017. These impacts were offset
partially by a $36.1 million increase in general and administrative expense due to the accelerationbafssidare
compensation expense accruals for our former CEO and CFO in 2018 as a resultretittient on December 31,

2018 and the reversal of shabased compensation accruals forfeited by retiring senior executive officers in 2017.

The $47.1 million increase in sadforage net operating income is a result o4 &million increase in ar
Same Store Facilities and $32million increase in ounonSame Store Facilities. Revenues for the Same Store
Facilities increased 4% or $32.5million in 2018 as compared to 2017, due primarily to higher realized annual rent
per occupied square foo€ost of operations for the Same Store Facilities increased¥y@. $176 million in 2018
as compared to 2017, due primarily to increased property taxes. The increase in net operating in@ammiticss
for thenon-Same Store Facilities is due péniy to the impact of facilities acquired 2018 and 2017 and the filip
of recently developedndexpandedacilities.

Funds from Operations and Core Funds from Operations

Funds from Operations ( fiFFCAAP) measwes ddirfedihe Hationad har e a
Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts and are considered helpful measures of REIT performance by REITs
and many REIT analysts. FFO represents GAAP net income before depreciation and amortization, which is excluded
because it is basegbon historical costs and assumes that building values diminish ratably over time, while we believe
that real estate values fluctuate due to market conditions. FFO also excludes gains or losses on sale of real estate
assets and real estate impairment ghsy which are also based upon historical costs and are impacted by historical
depreciation. FFO and FFO per share are not a substitute for net income or earnings per share. FFO is not a substitute
for GAAP net cash flow in evaluating our liquidity orilitly to pay dividends, because it excludes investing and
financing activities presented on our statements of cash flows. In addition, other REITs may compute these measures
differently, so comparisons among REITs may not be helpful.

For the year etedDecember 31, 201%FO was $138 per diluted common share, as comparefi0.45

and$9.70 per diluted common share fhe years ended December 31, 2ahd 20%, respectivelyrepresenting an
increase in 209.0f 1.2% or $013 per diluted commoshare, as compared to 2018.
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The following tables reconcile diluted earnings per share to FFO per share and set forth the computation of
FFO per share:

Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018 2017
(Amounts in thousands, except per shiata)

Reconciliation of Diluted Earnings per Share to
FFO per Share:

Diluted Earnings per Share $ 729 $ 854 % 6.73
Eliminate amounts per share excluded from FFO:
Depreciation and amortization 3.32 3.21 3.00

Gains on sale of real estate investments
and Shurgard IPO, including our equity
share from investments (0.03 (1.30 (0.03
FFO per share $ 1058 $ 1045 $ 9.70

Computation of FFO per Share:

Net income allocable to common shareholders $ 1,272,767 $ 1,488,90C $ 1,171,60¢
Eliminate items excluded from FFO:
Depreciation and amortization 511,413 483,646 454,526
Depreciation from unconsolidated
real estate investments 71,725 79,868 71,931
Depreciation allocated to noncontrolling
interests and restricted share unitholders (4,208 (3,646 (3,567

Gains on sale of real estatwestments and
Shurgard IPO, including our equity share

from investments and other (5,896 (227,332 (4,908
FFO allocable to common shares $ 1845801 $ 1,821,43¢€ $ 1,689,591
Diluted weighted average common shares 174,530 174,297 174,151
FFO per share $ 10.58 $ 1045 $ 9.70

We al so present i C ocGAAP iRdagire tha represdnts FRO,pér share excuding the
impact of (i) foreign currency exchange gaamal losseqii) EITF D-42 charges related to the redemption of preferred
securities, (iii) acceleration of accruals or reduction of accruals due to the departure of senior executives, and (iv)
certain other nottash and/or nonrecurring income or expense items. ewiew Core FFO per share to evaluate our
ongoing operating performance and we believe it is used by investors and REIT analysts in a similar manner.
However, Core FFO per share is not a substitute for net income per share. Because other REITs mayteot com
Core FFO per share in the same manner as we do, may not use the same terminology or may not present such a
measure, Core FFO per share may not be comparable among REITs

30



The following table reconciles FFO per share to Core FFO per share:

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
Percentac Percentac
2019 2018 Change 2018 2017 Change
FFO per share $ 1058 $ 10.45 12% $ 1045 $ 9.70 7.7%
Eliminate he per share impact of items
excluded fom Core FFO, including
our equity share from investments:
Foreign curency exchange (gain) los (0.04; (0.10; (0.10 0.29
Applicationof EITF D-42 0.21 - - 0.19
Casualty losses and tenant claims
due to huricanes - - - 0.07
Shurgard IPO costs and casualty los - 0.03 0.03 -
(Forfeiture/Acceleration of share
based compesation expense due
to the depeure of senior executives (0.01 0.18 0.18 (0.03
Other items 0.01 - - 0.01
Core FFQper share $ 1075 $ 10.56 18% $ 1056 $ 10.23 3.2%

Analysis of Net Income by Reportable Segment

The following discussion and analysis is presented and organized in accordance with Note 11 to our
December 31,201®i nanci al st at e me ntAccordifigy,eefentethettablresdnted imNotéli on . o
in order to reconcile such amounts to our total net income and for further information on our reportable segments.

Self-Storage Operations

Our selfstorage operations are analyzed in four groups: (i) the 2,159 facilities that we have owned and
operatedbn a stabilized basis since JanlDafaciitieslwe acQuired a@fter( t he A S
December 31, 2016 ( t hdlfacikiesghatihavebdenmhewty deiveloped @ expanded, ¢rihati ) 1
we are in the procesd expandinggtDe c e mber 31, 2019 (the fNewlly td&0sel)o mend
other facilities, which are otherwise not stabilized with respect to occupancies or rental rates since January 1, 2017
(the Nn0Osddme Ntomr e eé Wate 11 itotoubBeEmber3l, 5019 financi al stater
I nformation, o for a reconciliation of. the amounts in t|
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Self-Storage Operations

Summary Year Ended December 31, Year EndedDecember 31,
Percentac Percentac
2019 2018 Change 2018 2017 Change
(Dollar amaunts and square footage in thousands)
Revenues:
Same Store facilities $ 2,394,572 $ 2,361,29¢ 14% $ 2,361,29¢ $ 2,328,83: 1.4%
Acquired facilities 59,206 33,871 74.8% 33,871 5,577 507.3%
Newly developed andxpanded facilities 150,571 121,694 23.7% 121,694 99,864 21.9%
Other norsame store facilities 80,203 80,744 (0.7% 80,744 78,159 3.3%
2,684,552 2,597,607 3.3% 2,597,607 2,512,432 3.4%
Cog of operations:
Same Store facilite 641,918 611,273 5.0% 611,273 593,637 3.0%
Acquired facilities 22,472 11,810 90.3% 11,810 2,006 488.7¥
Newly developed and expanded faciliti 63,360 47,870 32.4% 47,870 36,810 30.0%
Other norsamestore facilities 24,829 24,778 0.2% 24,778 25,180 (1.6)%
752,579 695,731 8.2% 695,731 657,633 5.8%
Net operating income (a):
Same Store facilite 1,752,654 1,750,02¢ 0.2%  1,750,02¢ 1,735,19¢ 0.9%
Acquired facilities 36,734 22,061 66.5% 22,061 3,571 517.8%
Newly developed and expanded faciliti 87,211 73,824 18.1% 73,824 63,054 17.1%
Othernon-same store facilities 55,374 55,966 (1.1)% 55,966 52,979 5.6%
Total net operating income 1,931,97% 1,901,87¢ 1.6% 1,901,87¢ 1,854,80C 2.5%
Depreciation and amatization expense:
Same Store facilities (389,737 (382,864 1.8% (382,864 (382,326 0.1%
Acquired facilities (34,980 (23,809 46.9% (23,809 (5,668 320.1%
Newly developed and expanded faciliti (54,065 (45,851 17.9% (45,851 (36,848 24.4%
Other norsame store facilities (34,136 (31,122 9.7% (31,122 (29,684 4.8%
Total depreciationrad
amortization expense (512,918 (483,646 6.1% (483,646 (454,526 6.4%
Net income:
Same Store facilities 1,362,917 1,367,161 0.3)n 1,367,161 1,352,87C 1.1%
Acquired facilities 1,754 (1,748  (200.3)% (1,748 (2,097 (16.6)¥%
Newly developed and expanded faciliti 33,146 27,973 18.5% 27,973 26,206 6.7%
Other norsame store facilities 21,238 24,844 (14.5)% 24,844 23,295 6.6%
Total net income $ 1,419,055 $ 1,418,23C 0.1% $ 1,418,23C $ 1,400,274 1.3%
Number of facilities at period end:
Same Store facilities 2,159 2,159 - 2,159 2,159 -
Acquired facilities 103 59 74.6% 59 34 73.5%
Newly developed and expanded faciliti 141 130 8.5% 130 112 16.1%
Othernonsame store facilities 80 81 (1.2)% 81 82 (1.2)%
2,483 2,429 2.2% 2,429 2,387 1.8%
Net rentable square footage at period
Same Store facilite 139,31E 139,31E - 139,315 139,315 -
Acquired facilities 6,968 3,743 86.2% 3,743 2,114 77.1%
Newly developed and expanded faciliti 16,533 12,807 29.1% 12,807 10,608 20.7%
Other norsame storéacilities 6,092 6,182 (1.5)% 6,182 6,125 0.9%
168,908 162,047 4.2% 162,047 158,162 2.5%
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(&) Netoperatig i ncome o r-GAARfDansial messura that excludes the impact of depreciation and amortization
expense, which is based upon historical real estate costs and assumes that building values diminish ratably over time, while
we believe that reakgate values fluctuate due to market conditions. We utilize NOI in determining current property values,
evaluating property performance, and in evaluating property operating trends. We believe that investors and analysts utilize
NOI in a similar manner.NOI is not a substitute for net income, operating cash flow, or other related GAAP financial
measures, in evaluating our operating results. See Note 11 to our December 31, 2019 financial statements for a
reconciliation of NOI to our total net income falf periods presented.

Net operating income from our sefforage operations has increasei¥o in 2019 as compared to 28land
2.5% in 2018 as compared to 201 These increases are dueémarily to the acquisition and development of new
facilities and tle fill-up of unstabilized facilities.

Same Store Facilities

The Same Store Facilities consist of facilities that have been owned and operated on a stabilized level of
occupancy, revenues and cost of operations since January 1,A@brdingly, ourSame Store Facilities exclude (i)
facilities acquired after December 31, 2016, (ii) newly developed or expanded facilities, (iii) fasidiexpansion
by December 31, 2019, (iv) facilities whose operating trends are significantly affected by $actoras casualty
events, and (v) facilities which were otherwise not stabilized at December 31, 2016 (such as recently developed
facilities acquired from third parties before December 31, 2016). The composition of our Same Store Facilities allows
us to moe effectively evaluate the ongoing performance of ourstelfage portfolio in 2017, 2018, and 2019 and
exclude the impact of flup of unstabilized facilities, which can significantly affect operating treiisbelieve the
Same Store information is @ by investors and REIT analysts in a similar manner.

The following table summarizes the historical operating results of these fadibiges (139.3 millionnet
rentable square feet) that represapproximately 8% of the aggregate net rentable square feet of our U.S.
consolidated selétorage portfolio at December 31, 2019.
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Selected Operating Data for
the Same Store Facilities
(2,159 facilities)

Year Endedecember 31, Year Ended December 31,
Percentac Percentac
2019 2018 Change 2018 2017 Change
(Dollar amounts irthousands, except weighted average amounts)
Revenues:
Rental income $ 2,290,721% 2,258,09¢ 1.4% $ 2,258,099% 2,225,727 1.5%
Late charges and
administrative fees 103,851 103,199 0.6% 103,199 103,106 0.1%
Total revenuega) 2,394,572 2,361,29¢ 1.4% 2,361,298 2,328,833 1.4%
Cost of operations:
Property taxes 233,453 223,088 4.6% 223,088 212,565 5.0%
Onssite property manager
payroll 118,450 115,531 2.5% 115,531 114,212 1.2%
Supervisory payroll 37,771 37,179 1.6% 37,179 40,222 (7.6)%
Repairs and maintenance 50,032 48,488 3.2% 48,488 48,735 (0.5)%
Utilities 42,209 43,457 (2.9)% 43,457 41,771 4.0%
Marketing 47,622 32,344  47.2% 32,344 30,251 6.9%
Other direct property costs 63,572 62,042 2.5% 62,042 59,990 3.4%
Allocated overhead 48,809 49,144 (0.7Y% 49,144 45,891 7.1%
Total cost of operans (a) 641,918 611,273 5.0% 611,273 593,637 3.0%
Net operating income 1,752,654 1,750,02¢ 0.2% 1,750,025 1,735,196 0.9%
Depreciation and
amortization expense (389,737 (382,864 1.8% (382,864 (382,326 0.1%
Net income $ 1,362917 $ 1,367,161 03)% $ 1,367,161$% 1,352,870 1.1%
Gross margin (befe depreciation
and amortization expense) 73.2% 74.1% (1.2)% 74.1% 74.5% (0.5)%
Weighted average for the period:
Square foot occupancy 93.5% 93.1% 0.4% 93.1% 93.7% (0.6)%
Realized annual rental income per (b):
Occupied square foot $ 17.60 $ 17.41 1.1% $ 1741 $ 17.05 2.1%
Available square foot $ 16.45 $ 16.21 15% $ 16.21 $ 15.97 1.5%
At December 31:
Square foot occupancy 91.8% 91.3% 0.5% 91.3% 91.1% 0.2%
Annual contract rent per
occupied square foot (c) $ 18.12 $ 18.03 05% $ 18.03 $ 17.82 1.2%

(@) Revenues and cost of operations do not include tenant reinsurante@hdndise sale revenues and expenses generated at
the facilities. See AAncillary Operationso below for more

34



(b) Realized annual rent per occupied square foot is computed by dividing rental income, before late charges and administrative
fees,bt he wei ghted average occupied square feet for the per
is computed by dividing rental income, before late charges and administrative fees, by the total available net ren¢gable squar
feet for the period. These measures exclude late charges and administrative fees in order to provide a better measure of our
ongoing level of revenue. Late charges are dependent upon the level of delinquency and administrative fees are dependent
upon the level of mveins. In addition, the rates charged for late charges and administrative fees can vary independently
from rental rates. These measures take into consideration promotional discounts, which reduce rental income.

(c) Annual contract rent represents the agrepon monthly rate that is paid by our tenants in place at the time of measurement.
Contract rates are initially set in the lease agreement uponimawel we adjust them from time to time with notice. Contract
rent excludes other fees that are ckdrgn a peitem basis, such as late charges and administrative fees, does not reflect the
impact of promotional discounts, and does not reflect the impact of rents that are written off as uncollectible.

Analysis of Same Store Revenue

Revenues generatéy our Same Store Facilities increased by 1.4% each in 2019 as compared to 2018 and
in 2018 as compared to 2017, due primarily to increases of 1.1% and 2.1% in realized annual rent per occupied square
foot in 2019and 2018, respectively, as compared gtevious year.

Same Store revenue growth is lower thangiterm historical averages due to softness in demand for our
storage space, which has led to lower mioveental rates for new tenants (see below). We attribute some of this
softness to locaconomic conditions and, in some markets most notably Atlanta, Austin, Charlotte, Chicago, Dallas,
Denver, Houstonyliami, New York and Portland, increassdpply of newly constructed sedforage facilities.

Same Store weighted average square foot occyp@mained strong at 93.5%, 93.1% and 93.7% during
2019, 2018 and 2017.

We believe that high occupancies help maximize our rental income. We seek to maintain a weighted average
square foot occupancy level of at least 90%, by regularly adjusting tta r&tes and promotions offered to attract
new tenants as well as adjusting our marketing efforts on the Internet and other channels in order to generate sufficient
movein volume to replace tenants that vacate.

Annual contract rent per foot for customensving in was $3.63 $1409, and $14%4 in 2019, 2018, and
2017, respectively, and the related square footage for the space they moved k08 Wwasllion, 1034.4 million, and
109.4 million, respectively. Annual contract rent per foot for customergimgoout was $16.2, $1619, and $6.01
in 2019, 2018, and 2017, respectively, and the related square footage for the space they moved out of was
1021 million, 1041 million, and 1L1.1 million, respectively.

In order to stimulate moven v ol ume, we often give promotional d
rent for the firstmont ho of fer. Pr omot i on a-n cahtrastualorates fos the rdlated e d
promotional period, totaled?$.4 million, $81.6million, and $86.9 million for 2019, 2018, and 2017, respectively.

Demand is higher in the summer months than in the winter months and, as a result, rental rates charged to
new tenants are typically higher in the summer months than inititerwnonths. Demand fluctuates due to various
local and regional factors, including the overall economy. Demand into our system is also impacted by new supply
of selfstorage space as well as alternatives tostelage.

Wetypically increase rentahtes to our longerm tenants (generally, those that have been with us for at least
a year) once per year. As a result, the number ofterrg tenants we have in our facilities is an important factor in
our revenue growth. The level of rate increasdsiigterm tenants is based upon balancing the additional revenue
from the increase against the negative impact of incremental-mdse

Throughout 2018 and 2019, we have had an increased average length of stay and fewmrtsnoVae

increased averadength of stay contributed to an increased beneficial effect of rent increases to existing tenants, due
to more longterm customers that were abitg for rate increases. However, this was offset partially by the impact of
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lower movein rates and resuttig i ncr eased Arent roll downo for new tenc
out. The extent to which the net positive impact of these trends will continue in 2020 is uncertain at this time.

We believe that the current trends in maéwemoveout, in place contractual rents and occupancy levels are
consistent with continued moderate revenue growth in 2020, with rental growth in 2020 coming primarily from
continued annual rent increases to existing tenants.

However, such shoterm currentrends can be limited in their ability to suggest future revenue growth.
Other factors affecting revenue growth can be volatile and hard to predict, such as (i) the level of consumer demand,
(if) competition from newly developed and existing facilitigs) the length of stay of our existing customers, and
(iv) local and state laws and regulatighat can limitand have limited, the renige can charge to new tenants or the
extent to which we can increase rents to existing tenants.

We are continuingo take a number of actions to improve demand into our system, including increasing
marketing spend on the Internet and offering lower rental rates to new customers.

Analysis of Same Store Cost of Operations

Cost of operations (excluding depreciation angbrtization) increased 5.0% in 2019 as compared to 2018,
and 3.0% in 2018&s compared to 2017, due primarily to increased property tax and marketing expense.

Property tax expensgacreased.6% in 2019 as compared to 2018, and 5.0% in 2018 as compdiedz.
We expect property tax expense growthapproximately 5.0% in 2020 due primarily to higher assessed values
(excluding the potential impact of the California initiative noted bekmg, to a lesser extent, increased tax rates.

As a result of Prposition 13, which limits increases in assessed values to 2% per year, the assessed value
and property taxes we pay in California is less than it would be if the properties were assessed at current values. An
initiative on Cal i fwde ballog & aprivedbyevoibre coulrés@tin the teassessment of
our California properties and substantially increase our property tax expense. It is uncertain (i) whether an initiative
will pass, and (ii) if it does pass, the timing and levelhaf teassessment and related property tax increases. See
ifRi sk FWetbage exposure to increased property tax 1in
aggregate net operating income and property tax expense in California.

On-site propertynanager payroll expense increased 2.5% in 2019 as compared to 2018 and 1.2% in 2018 as
compared to 2017. These increases were due primarily to higher wage rates, offset partially by lower hours worked
in 2018. We have been impacted by a tight labor etaakross the country, as well as increases in minimum wages
in certain jurisdictions. We expecbntinued wage rate increase2020 due to tighter labor markets.

Supervisory payroll expense, which represents compensation paid to the managememipensodirectly
and indirectly supervise the @ite property managers, increased 1.6% in 2019 as compared to 2018 due primarily
to higher wage rates and decreased 7.6% in 2018 as compared to 2017 due to reductions in headcount offset by higher
wage rates We expect inflationary increases in wage rates and increased headcount in 2020.

Repairs and maintenance expense increased 3.2% in 2019 as compared to 2018 and decreased 0.5% in 2018
as compared to 2017. Repair and maintenance costs inchwleesnowal expense totaling $4million, $3.6million,
and $31 million in 2019, 2018, and 2017, respectively. Excluding snow remm&tk, repairs and maintenance
increased &% in 2019 as compared to 2018 aletreased 1% in 2018 as compared to 2017.

Repais and maintenance expense levels are dependent upon many factors such as (i) sporadic occurrences
such as accidents, damage, and equipment malfunctions, (ibtshrarlocal supply and demand factors for material
and labor, and (iii) weather conditionshiah can impact costs such as snow removal, roof repairs, and HVAC
maintenance and repairs. Accordingly, it is difficult to estimate future repairs and maintenance expense.
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Our utility expenses are comprised primarily of electricity costs, which are diepienpon energy prices
and usage levels. Changes in usage levels are driven primarily by weather and temperature. Utility expense
decreased 2.9% in 2019 as compared to 2018 and increased 4.0% in 2018 as compared to 2017. It is difficult to
estimate futire utility costs, because weather, temperature, and energy prices are volatile and not predigtable.
are making investments in energy saving technology such as solar power and LED lights which should generate
favorable returns on investment in the foofmlower utility usage. However, the actual reduction experienced in
2020 will be relatively modest, based upon the expected level of and timing of such investments.

Marketing expense is comprised principally of Internet advertising and the operating costs of our telephone
reservation center. I nternet advertising expense, C
clicko basi s, vaad for sedfstotage sgack, the muantity df people inquiring aboutstelage
through online search, occupancy levels, the number and aggressiveness of bidding competitors and other factors.
These factors are volatile; accordingly, Internet advertisargincrease or decrease significantly in the steorb.

Marketing expense increased 47.2% in 2019 as compared to 2018 and 6.9% in 2018 as compared to 2017. These
increases are due primarily to higher Internet advertising spending, as we have sattgddtttanore customers for

our space and cost per click for keyword search terms increased due to more keyword bidding competition from
existing selfstorage owners and operators, including owners of newly developed facilities and nontraditional storage
providers. We expect continued increases in 2020.

Other direct property costs include administrative expenses specific to eastosmie facility, such as
property insurance, telephone and data communication lines, business license costs, banketatmge®
processing the facilities6 cash receipts, tenant mai
rental office. These costs increased 2.5% in 2019 as compared to 2018 and 3.4% in 2018 as compared to 2017. We
continue to Bperience increased credit card fees due to atfemqg trend of more customers paying with credit cards
rather than cash, checks, or other methods of payment with lower transaction costs. We expect inflationary increases
in other direct property costs 2020

Allocated overhead represents administrative expenses for shared general corporate functions to the extent
their efforts are devoted to selforage operations. Such functions include information technology support,
hardware, and software, as Was$ centralized administration of payroll, benefits, training, repairs and maintenance,
customer service, pricing and marketing, operational accounting and finance, and legal costs. These amounts also
include the costs of senior executives responsilil¢himse processes (other than our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, which are included in general and administrative expense). Allocated overhead decreased
0.7% in 2019 as compared to 2018 and increased 7.1% in 2018 as compared td@@®1i7crease in 2018 as
compared to 2017 was due to increased headcount and information technology expenses. We expect minimal
increases in allocated overhead in 2020.

Analysis of Same Store Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization for Same Store Facilities increb8ain 209 as compared to 28land
0.1% in 2018 as compared to 201 We expect modest increases in depreciation expens@@hdae to elevated
levels of capital expenditures

Quarterly Financial Data

The following table summarizes selected quarterly financial data with respect to the Same Store Facilities:
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For the Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31 Entire Year

(Amounts in thousands, except for per square foot amounts)

Total revenues:

2019 $ 586,004 $ 599,244 $ 611,227 $ 598,097 $ 2,394,572

2018 $ 577,310 $ 587,793 $ 604,705 $ 591,490 $ 2,361,29¢

2017 $ 566,136 $ 579,443 $ 598,402 $ 584,852 $ 2,328,833
Total cost of operations:

2019 $ 168,359 $ 166,913 $ 170,865 $ 135,781 $ 641,918

2018 $ 162,034 $ 158,857 $ 160,543 $ 129,839 $ 611,273

2017 $ 156,854 $ 155,239 $ 156,392 $ 125,152 $ 593,637
Property taxes:

2019 $ 64,945 $ 65,671 $ 65,450 $ 37,387 % 233,453

2018 $ 61,858 $ 62,571 $ 62,373 $ 36,286 $ 223,088

2017 $ 59,214 $ 59,579 $ 59,149 $ 34,623 $ 212,565
Repairs and maintenance:

2019 $ 13,369 $ 11,687 $ 12,785 $ 12,191 $ 50,032

2018 $ 12,124 % 12,081 $ 11,855 $ 12,428 $ 48,488

2017 $ 12,179 $ 11,951 $ 12,005 $ 12,600 $ 48,735
Marketing:

2019 $ 8,751 $ 12,084 $ 13,934 $ 12,853 $ 47,622

2018 $ 6,855 $ 8,090 $ 8,221 $ 9,178 $ 32,344

2017 $ 7,175 % 8577 $ 7,346 $ 7,153 $ 30,251
REVPAF:

2019 $ 16.08 $ 16.48 $ 16.79 $ 16.44 $ 16.45

2018 $ 1584 $ 16.17 $ 16.60 $ 16.23 $ 16.21

2017 $ 1553 $ 1592 $ 1641 $ 16.04 $ 15.97
Weighted average realized annual rentqaaupied square foot:

2019 $ 17.38 $ 1753 $ 1782 $ 1766 $ 17.60

2018 $ 1719 $ 17.23 $ 1769 $ 1755 $ 17.41

2017 $ 16.71 $ 16.85 $ 1738 $ 1726 $ 17.05
Weighted average occupancy levels for the period:

2019 92.5% 94.0% 94.2% 93.1% 93.5%

2018 92.1% 93.8% 93.8% 92.5% 93.1%

2017 92.9% 94.4% 94.4% 92.8% 93.7%
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Analysis of Market Trends

The following table sets forth selected market trends in our Same Store Facilities:

Same Store Facilities Operating

Trends by Market

Market (number of facilities,
square footage in millions)

Revenues:

Los Angeles (204, 14.1)
San Francisco (127, 7.9)

New York (86, 6.0)

Washington DC (88, 5.4)
SeattleTacoma (83, 5.5)

Miami (81, 5.7)
Atlanta (98, 6.4)
Chicago (128, 8.1)

DallasFt. Worth (98, 6.2)
OrlandeDaytona (69, 4.3)

Houston (78, 5.3)

Philadelphia (56, 3.5)

Tampa (50, 3.3)

West Palm Beach (37, 2.4)

Portland (42, 2.2)

All other markets (834, 53.0)

Total revenues

Net operating inome:

Los Angeles

San Francisco
New York
Washington DC
SeattleTacoma
Miami

Atlanta

Chicago
DallasFt. Worth
OrlandeDaytona
Houston
Philadelphia
Tampa

West Palm Beach
Portland

All other markets

Total net operatingncome

Year Ended December 31,

2019

2018

Change

Year Ended December 31,

2018

2017

Chang:

(Amounts in thousands, except for weighted average data)

$ 362057 $ 352672 27% $ 352672 $ 340,987 3.4%
203,195 199,162  2.0% 199,162 194,614 2.3%
151,526 148,676 1.9% 148,676 144,875 2.6%
113,607 110,642 2.7% 110,642 110,670 (0.0)%
107,639 106,261 1.3% 106,261 104,394 1.8%
112,734 114,428 (1.5)% 114,428 113,710 0.6%
85,885 84,450 1.7% 84,450 82,663 2.2%
118,293 117,094 1.0% 117,094 119,859 (2.3)%
82,281 83,155 (1.1)% 83,155 85,562 (2.8)%
60,640 59,001 1.2% 59,901 57,627 3.9%
67,962 71,266 (4.6)% 71,266 70,805 0.7%
59,120 56,747  4.2% 56,747 55,064 3.1%
46,083 46,377 (0.6)% 46,377 45,751  1.4%
43,959 43,630 0.8% 43,630 42,909 1.7%
40,163 40,622 (1.1)% 40,622 41,096 (1.2)%
739,428 726,215  1.8% 726,215 718,247 1.1%

$ 2,394572 $ 2,361,298 1.4% $ 2,361,298 $ 2,328,833 1.4%

$ 208725 $ 292281 22% $ 292281 $ 283,333 3.2%
163,878 162,202 1.0% 162,202 159,265 1.8%
107,992 107,351 0.6% 107,351 104,815  2.4%
84,329 82,745  1.9% 82,745 83,452 (0.8)%
84,315 83,375 1.1% 83,375 82,638 0.9%
84,269 87,277 (3.4)% 87,277 87,222 0.1%
63,630 62,519 1.8% 62,519 61,091 2.3%
63,228 64,906 (2.6)% 64,906 70,143 (7.5)%
56,623 58,461 (3.1)% 58,461 61,332 (4.7)%
44,116 44,066  0.1% 44,066 42,465 3.8%
42,380 47,071 (10.0)% 47,071 46,473  1.3%
41,773 40,097  4.2% 40,097 39,188 2.3%
32,416 33,378 (2.9)% 33,378 33,048 1.0%
32,192 32,397 (0.6)% 32,397 31,702 2.2%
30,511 31,548 (3.3)% 31,548 32,191 (2.0)%
522,277 520,351  0.4% 520,351 516,838 0.7%

$ 1,752,654 $ 1,750,025 0.2% $ 1,750,025 $ 1,735,196 0.9%
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Same Store Facilities Operating
Trends by Market (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018 Changt 2018 2017 Chang:
Weighted average square foot
occupancy:
Los Angeles 95.2% 95.0% 0.2% 95.0% 95.5% (0.5)%
San Francisco 94.3% 94.4% (0.1)% 94.4% 95.2% (0.8)%
New York 94.1% 94.3% (0.2)% 94.3% 94.3% 0.0%
Washington DC 93.4% 92.4% 1.1% 92.4% 92.7% (0.3)%
SeattleTacoma 93.1% 93.2% (0.1)% 93.2% 94.3% (1.2)%
Miami 93.0% 92.9% 0.1% 92.9% 93.6% (0.7)%
Atlanta 93.0% 93.2% (0.2)% 93.2% 93.5% (0.3)%
Chicago 92.1% 90.3% 2.0% 90.3% 91.2% (1.0)%
DallasFt. Worth 92.0% 91.4% 0.7% 91.4% 92.9% (1.6)%
OrlandeDaytona 94.1% 94.5% (0.4)% 94.5% 95.0% (0.5)%
Houston 89.7% 90.9% (1.3)% 90.9% 91.8% (1.0)%
Philadelphia 95.3% 94.9% 0.4% 94.9% 94.6% 0.3%
Tampa 92.6% 92.9% (0.3)% 92.9% 94.0% (1.2)%
West Palm Beach 93.9% 93.8% 0.1% 93.8% 94.7% (1.0)%
Portland 94.0% 94.0% 0.0% 94.0% 95.3% (1.4)%
All other markets 93.5% 92.9% 0.6% 92.9% 93.4% (0.5)%
Total weighted avege
square foobccupancy 93.5% 93.1% 0.4% 93.1% 93.7% (0.6)%
Redized annual rent per
occupied square foot:
Los Angeles $ 26.11 $ 2547 25% $ 2547 $ 24.46 4.1%
San Francisco 26.73 26.14 2.3% 26.14 2529 3.4%
New York 26.05 2551 2.1% 25.51 24.88 2.5%
Washington DC 21.51 21.27 1.1% 21.27 21.06 1.0%
SeattleTacoma 20.20 19.94 1.3% 19.94 19.31 3.3%
Miami 20.31 20.63 (1.6)% 20.63 20.35 1.4%
Atlanta 13.44 13.15 2.2% 13.15 12.85 2.3%
Chicago 15.17 15.33 (1.0)% 15.33 1556 (1.5)%
DallasFt. Worth 13.63 13.88 (1.8)% 13.88 14.05 (1.2)%
OrlandeDaytona 14.12 1390 1.6% 13.90 1331 4.4%
Houston 13.52 14.01 (3.5)% 14.01 13.79 1.6%
Philadelphia 16.65 16.04 3.8% 16.04 15.62 2.7%
Tampa 14.12 14.13 (0.1)% 14.13 13.78 2.5%
West Palm Beach 18.50 18.37 0.7% 18.37 1791 2.6%
Portland 18.52 18.71 (1.0)% 18.71 18.64 0.4%
All other markets 14.20 1403 1.2% 14.03 13.80 1.7%
Total realized rent per
occupied square foot $ 1760 $ 1741 11% $ 1741 $ 17.05 2.1%
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Same Store Facilities Operating
Trends by Market (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018 Chang: 2018 2017 Chang:
REVPAF:

Los Angeles $ 2487 $ 2420 28% $ 2420 $ 23.36 3.6%
San Francisco 25.20 2467 2.1% 24.67 2407 2.5%
New York 24.50 2405 1.9% 24.05 2345 2.6%
Washington DC 20.09 19.65 2.2% 19.65 19.52 0.7%
SeattleTacoma 18.81 18.57 1.3% 18.57 18.21 2.0%
Miami 18.88 19.16 (1.5)% 19.16 19.05 0.6%
Atlanta 12.50 12.25 2.0% 12.25 12.01 2.0%
Chicago 13.97 13.84 0.9% 13.84 14.19 (2.5)%
DallasFt. Worth 12.54 12.68 (1.1)% 12.68 13.05 (2.8)%
OrlandeDaytona 13.29 13.14 1.1% 13.14 12.64 4.0%
Houston 12.13 12.73 (4.7)% 12.73 12.66 0.6%
Philadelphia 15.86 15.22 4.2% 15.22 1477 3.0%
Tampa 13.08 13.13 (0.4)% 13.13 12.96 1.3%
West Palm Beach 17.37 17.23 0.8% 17.23 16.96 1.6%
Portland 17.40 17.58 (1.0)% 17.58 17.75 (1.0)%
All other markets 13.28 13.03 1.9% 13.03 12.88 1.2%
Total REVPAF $ 1645 $ 16.21 15% $ 16.21 $ 15.97 1.5%

We believe tht our geographic diversification and scale across substantially all major metropolitan markets
in the U.S. provides some insulation from localized economic effects and enhances the stability of our cash flows. It
is difficult to predict localized trends shortterm selfstorage demand and operating results. Over the long run, we
believe that markets that experience population growth, high employment, and otherwise exhibit economic strength
and consistency will outperform markets that do not exhibsetlodaracteristics.

Acquired Facilities

TheAcquiredFacilities represeritO3facilities that we acquired in 2017, 2018, and 2019. As a result of the
stabilization process and timing of when these facilities were acquiredoyeayear changes can basificant.

The following table summarizes operating data with respect tadfairedFacilities:
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ACQUIRED FACILITIES
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018 Change (e 2018 2017 Change (a
($ amounts in thousands, except for per square foot amounts)

Revenues (b)

2017 Acquisitions $ 30,473 $ 28,704 $ 1,769 $ 28,704 $ 5577 $ 23,127
2018 Acquisitions 16,029 5,167 10,862 5,167 - 5,167
2019 Acquisitions 12,704 - 12,704 - - -
Total revenues 59,206 33,871 25,335 33,871 5,577 28,294
Cost of operations (b):
2017 Acquisitions 10,203 9,669 534 9,669 2,006 7,663
2018 Acquisitions 7,197 2,141 5,056 2,141 - 2,141
2019 Acquisitions 5,072 - 5,072 - - -
Total cost of operations 22,472 11,810 10,662 11,810 2,006 9,804
Net operating income:
2017 Acquisitions 20,270 19,035 1,235 19,035 3,571 15,464
2018 Acquisitions 8,832 3,026 5,806 3,026 - 3,026
2019 Acquisitions 7,632 - 7,632 - - -
Net operating income 36,734 22,061 14,673 22,061 3,571 18,490
Depreciation and
amortization expense (34,980 (23,809 (11,171 (23,809 (5,668 (18,141
Net income (loss) $ 1,754 $ (1,748 $ 3502 % (1,748 $ (2,097 $ 349

At December 31:
Square foot occupancy:

2017 Acquisitions 89.4% 90.9% Q.7% 90.9% 87.2% 4.2%

2018 Acquisitions 82.6% 79.6% 3.8% 79.6% - -

2019 Acquisitions 73.6% - - - - -
80.7% 85.9% (6.1)% 85.9% 87.2% (1.5)%

Annual contract rent per
occupied square foot:

2017 Acquisitions $ 1540 $ 14.81 4.0% 14.81 14.60 1.4%
2018 Acquisitions 11.98 11.10 7.9% 11.10 - -
2019 Acquisitions 12.27 - - - - -

$ 13.30 $ 1331 O01)%$ 1331 $ 1460 (8.8)%

Number of facilities:

2017 Acquisitions 34 34 - 34 34 -
2018 Acquisitions 25 25 - 25 - 25
2019 Acquisitions 44 - 44 - - -
103 59 44 59 34 25
Net rentable square feet (in thousands):

2017 Acquisitions 2,206 2,114 92 2,114 2,114 -
2018 Acquisitions 1,629 1,629 - 1,629 - 1,629
2019 Acquisitions 3,133 - 3,133 - - -
6,968 3,743 3,225 3,743 2,114 1,629
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ACQUIRED FACILITIES As of

(Continued) December 31
- 2019
Costs to acquire (in thousands):
2017 Acquisitions (c) $ 291,329
2018 Acquisitions 181,020
2019 Acquisitions 429,850
$ 902,199

(@) Represents the percentage change with respect to square foot occupancy and annual contract rent per occupied
square foot, and the absolute nominal change with respect to all other items.

(b) Revenues andost of operations do not include tenant reinsurance and merchandise sale revenues and expenses
generated at the facilities. See AAncillary Operation

(c) Acquisition costs includes i) $149.8 million paid for 22 facilitesjuired from third parties, i§135.5million cash
paid for the remaining 74.25% interest we did not own in 12 stabilized properties owned by a legacy institutional
partnership and iii) the $6.3 million historical book value of our existing investmetheitegacy institutional
partnership.

We believe that olrconomies of scale in marketing and operatiiasvs us to generate higher net operating
income from newly acquired facilities than was achieved by the previous owners. However, it can take&4 or
months for us to fully achieve the higher net operating income and the ultimate levels of net operating income to be
achieved can be affected by changes in general economic conditions. As a result, there can be no assurance that we
will achieve ourexpectations with respect to these newly acquired facilities.

The facilities included above under fA2017 acquisit:i
an aggregate adpproximately7.0 million net rentable square feet, includin@ @illion in Texas, @ million in
Virginia, 0.6 million in each of Florida and Minnesota, 0.4 millioreach ofGeorgia Indiana, North Carolina and
South Caroling0.3 million in each of Nebraskand Ohio, 0.2 million in each of California, Kentucky, Massaettts,
New York, Tennessee and Washington, andrilfion in other states.

For 2019, the weighted average annualized yield on cost, based upon net operating income, for (i) the 22
facilities acquired in 2017 from third partiems 6.2, (ii) the 12 stabiked facilities owned by a legacy institutional
partnership, with respect to the 74.25% interest we acquired s and (iii) the 25roperties acquired in 2018
was4.9%. The yield for thdacilities acquired in 2019 is not meaningful due to our lichibgvnership period.

Subsequent tdecember 312019, we acquired or were under contract to acquireelf-storage facilities
(four in Ohio,three in California, two each in New York and Tennessee and one dacliaing Massachusetts, and
Nebraska) wi 1.1 million net rentable square feet, for4s23 million.

Analysis of Depreciation and Amortization of Acquired Facilities

Depreciation and amortization with respect to the Acquired Facilities totaled $35.0 million, $23.8 million
and $5.7 million for2019, 2018, and 2017, respectively. These amounts include (i) depreciation of the acquired
buildings, which isrecorded generally on a straight line basis over a 25 year perio(ij)amortization of cost
allocated to the tenants in place upon acqaisibf a facility, which is recorded based upon the benefit of such existing
tenants to each period and thus is highest when the facility is first acquired and declines as such tenants vacate. With
respect to the Acquired Facilities ownedacember 312019, depreciation of buildings and amortization of tenant
intangibles is expected to aggregate approximate8/Zimillion in the year ending December 31, 2020. There will
be additional depreciation and amortization of tenant intangibles with respect to new buildings that are acquired in
2020.
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Developed and Expanded Facilities

The developed and expanded facilities idel@1 facilities that were developed on new sites since Jariyary
2013, and 60 facilities subject to expansion of their net rentable square footage. Of these exf@asoosmpleted
at De@mber 3, 2019 and 1 are currently in processt December 312019

The following table summarizes operating data with respect to the Developed and Expanded Facilities:

DEVELOPED AND EXPANDED
FACILITIES Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018 Change (e 2018 2017 Change (a
($ amounts in thousands, except for per square foot amounts)
Revenues (b)
Developed in 20132015 $ 28,331 $ 26,725 $ 1606 $ 26,725 $ 24,910 $ 1,815

Developed in 2016 and 2017 43,358 34,233 9,125 34,233 17,391 16,842
Developed in 2018 and 2019 15,230 3,392 11,838 3,392 - 3,392
Completed Expansions 49,214 41,879 7,335 41,879 41,773 106
Expansions in process 14,438 15,465 (1,027 15,465 15,790 (325
Total revenues 150,571 121,694 28,877 121,694 99,864 21,830
Cost of operations (b):
Developed in 20132015 8,284 8,031 253 8,031 8,093 (62)
Developed in 2016 and 2017 18,188 17,984 204 17,984 11,433 6,551
Developed in 2018 and 2019 11,195 4,136 7,059 4,136 - 4,136
Completed Expansions 21,579 13,756 7,823 13,756 13,427 329
Expansions in process 4,114 3,963 151 3,963 3,857 106
Total cost of operations 63,360 47,870 15,490 47,870 36,810 11,060
Net operating income:
Developed in 20132015 20,047 18,694 1,353 18,694 16,817 1,877
Developed in 2016 and 2017 25,170 16,249 8,921 16,249 5,958 10,291
Developed in 2018 and 2019 4,035 (744, 4,779 (744, - (744,
Completed Expansions 27,635 28,123 (488 28,123 28,346 (223
Expansions in process 10,324 11,502 (1,178 11,502 11,933 (431
Net operating income 87,211 73,824 13,387 73,824 63,054 10,770
Depreciation and
amortization expense (54,065 (45,851 (8,214 (45,851 (36,848 (9,003
Net income $ 33,146 $ 27,973 $ 5,173 $ 27973 $ 26,206 $ 1,767

At December 31:
Square foot occupancy:

Developed in 20132015 90.9% 89.9% 1.1% 89.9% 88.9% 1.1%
Developed in 2016 and 2017 78.4% 73.5% 6.7% 73.5% 52.3% 40.5%
Developed in 2018 and 2019 56.7% 42.1% 34.7% 42.1% - -
Completed Expansions 62.5% 67.0% (6.7)% 67.0% 66.4% 0.9%
Expansions in process 83.1% 88.1% (5. 7)% 88.1% 88.4% (0.3)%
69.7% 69.9% (0.3)% 69.9% 66.4% 5.3%
Annual contract rent per occupie

Developed in 20132015 $ 1656 $ 15.65 58% $ 1565 $ 1494 4.8%
Developed in 2016 and 2017 13.70 12.28 11.6% 12.28 12.11 1.4%
Developed in 2018 and 2019 12.03 10.36 16.1% 10.36 - -
Completed Expansions 13.00 15.40 (15.6)% 15.40 15.73 (2.1)%
Expansions in process 21.92 22.25 (1.5)% 22.25 21.99 1.2%
$ 1406 $ 1441 4% $ 1441 $ 15.03 (4.1)%
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DEVELOPED AND EXPANDED
FACILITIES (Continued) Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018 Change (s 2018 2017  Change (¢
(Amounts in thousands, except for number oflites)

Number of facilities:

Developed in 20132015 20 20 - 20 20 -
Developed in 2016 and 2017 32 32 - 32 32 -
Developed in 2018 and 2019 29 18 11 18 - 18
Completed Expansions 49 49 - 49 49 -
Expansions in process 11 11 - 11 11 -
141 130 11 130 112 18
Net rentable square feet (c):

Developed in 20132015 1,877 1,877 - 1,877 1,877 -
Developed in 2016 and 2017 4,181 4,181 - 4,181 4,181 -
Developed in 2018 and 2019 3,126 1,954 1,172 1,954 - 1,954
Completed Expansions 6,621 4,047 2,574 4,047 3,774 273
Expansions in process 728 748 (20) 748 776 (28)
16,533 12,807 3,726 12,807 10,608 2,199

As of

December 3]
2019

Costs to develop:
Developed in 20132015 $ 188,049
Developed in 2016 and 2017 497,456
Developed in 2018 and 2019 412,574
Completed Expansions (d) 381,940
Expansions in process (e) -
$ 1,480,018

(@) Represents the percentage change with respect to square foot occupancy and annual contract rent per occupied
square foot, and the absolute nominal change with respect to all other items.

(b) Revenues and cosf operations do not include tenant reinsurance and merchandise sale revenues and expenses
generated at the facilities. See AAncillary Operation

(c) The facilities included above have an aggregateamfroximately16.5 million net rentable square feet at
DecembeB1, 2019, including 6.5 million in Texas, 2.4 million in CaliforniaZ tnillion in Florida, 15 million in
Colorado, 0.9million in Minnesota 0.7 million in Washington, 0.6 million itNorth Caplina, 0.4million in
Arizona, 0.3million each in Georgia and Michigan, and 1.2 milliarother states.

(d) These amounts only include the direct cost incurred to expand and renovate these facilities, and do nottinelude (i)

original cost to develop or acquire the facility or {iig lost revenue on space demolished during the construction
and fill-up period.

(e) We have a development pipeline add3.1 million net rentable square fely expanding existinéacilities at an
aggregate cost of approximately®.5million, not includng (i) the original cost to develop or acquire the facility
or (ii) the lost revenue on space demolisdadng the construction and fillp period.

It typically takes at least three to four years for a newly developed or expandst ik facilityd stabilize

with respect to revenues. Physical occupancy can be achieved as early as two to three years following completion of
the development or expansion, through offering lower rental rates duriugp fillAs a result, even after achieving
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high occupncy, there can still be a period of elevated revenue growth as the tenant base matures and higher rental
rates are achieved. Our earnings are diluted during the construction and stabilization period due to the cost of capital
to fund the development costs well as the related construction and development overhead expenses in general and
administrative expense. Despite this stiertn dilution, we believe that our development and expansion activities
generate favorable riskdjusted returns over the pnun.

Newly Developed Facilities

The facilities includz2@lundeer ei Deyvedopeidni 2023D,1320
believe they haveeached stabilization at December 31, 2019. The annualized yield on cost, based upon the net
operatingncome for 2019 was 10%.

The facilities included under f#ADeveloped in 2016 a
stabilized with respect to occupancy or revenues at December 31, 2019, and we expect continued growth in these
facilities throighout 2020 and beyond as they continue to stabilize. The annualized yields that may be achieved on
these facilities upon stabilization will depend on many factors, including local and current market conditions in the
vicinity of each property such as camser demand and the level of new and existing supply. Accordingly, tF10.
yield achieved on the f ai0lli5tdi emsa yu nndoetr bfieD ei voedtitocpaetdi vien 02
achieved on these facilities.

We have 2 additional newly deveped facilities in process, which will have a total of 1.3 million net rentable
square feet of storage space and have an aggregate development cost totaling approxibBatetyiligth. We
expect these facilities to open ovbe next 18 months.

Exparsions of Existing Facilities

The expansion of an existing facility involves the construction of new space on an existing facility, either on
existing unused land or through the demolition of existing buildings in order to facilitate densification. The
construction costs for an expanded facility may include, in addition to adding space, adding amenities such as climate
control to existing space, improving the visual appeal of the facility, and to a much lesser extent, the replacement of
existing doors, rofs, and HVAC.

The return profile on the expansion of existing facilities differs from a new facility, due to a lack of land cost,
and there can be less cash flow risk because we have more direct knowledge of the local demand for space on the site
as compred to a new facility. However, expansions involve the demolition of existing regeneeating space with
the loss of the related revenwiging the construction and fillp period.

The facilities wunder i ctloosepfdcibids evilere ehe px@ansionsohawe deem e pr e s
completed at December 31, 2019. We incurred a total 81.$3nillion in direct cost to expand these facilities,
demolished a total df.0 million net rentable square feet of storage space, and built a teta rofllion net rentable
square feet of new storage space.

The faciliti esi nunpdreorc efsesxdp arnespiroenssent t hose facilitie
December 31, 2019We have a pipeline to addtatal of 3.1 million net rentable square feef storage spacby
expanding existing seltorage facilitiegor an aggregate direct development co$i4if0.5million. We have already
demolished 0.1 million net rentable square feet of space in connection with our expansion projects, and expect to
demolish an additional 0.4 million net rentable square feet.

Analysis of Depreciation and Amortization of Developed and Expanded Facilities

Depreciation and amortization with respect to the Developed and Expanded Faoibfied $54.1 million,
$45.9 nillion and $36.8million for 2019,2018, and 2017, respectiveliffhese amounts represent depreciation of the
developed buildings and, in the case of the expanded facilities, the legacy depreciation on the existing buildings. With
respect to the Developezhd Expaded Facilities completed at Dember 3, 2019, depreciation of buildings is
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expected to aggregas@proximately $2.1million in 2020. There will be additional depreciation of new buildings
that are developed or expanded ir2@0

Other nonsane store facilities

The #AOthaeme nothore facilitiesd represent facilities
expandedare not fully stabilized since January 1, 2017, due primarily to casualty events such as hurricanes, floods,
and fires,as well as facilities acquired from third parties prior to January 1, 2017 that were recently developed or
expanded by the previous owner.

The Other norsame store facilities have an aggregate of 6.1 million net rentable square feet, including
1.1million in Texas, 0.8 million in Oklahoma, 0.7 million in California, 0.6 million in each of Florida, Ohio and
SouthCarolina, 0.4 million ireach of New York an@lVashington, 0.3 milliorin Tennesseeand 06 million in other
states.

The net operating income for these facililiesreased from $3.0million in 2017to $6.0million in 2018
and decreased from $56million in 2018 to $55.4 million in 2019 During 2019,2018, and 2017the average
occupancy for these faities totaledd8.8%, 83.1%, and87.M%, respectivelyand the realized rent per occupied square
feet totaled $4.20, $14.3, and $4.2Q respectively

Over the longer term, we expect the growth in operations of these facilities to be similar to that of our Same
Store fcilities. However, in the short run, year over year comparisons will vary due to the impact of the underlying
events which resulted in these facilities being classified asanm store.

Depreciation and amortization with respect to the othersamnestore facilitiestotaled 84.1 million,
$31.1 million and £9.7million for 2019,2018, and 2017, respectivelyWe expect depreciation for these facilities to
in 2020to approximate the depreciation incurred in 2019

Ancillary Operations

Ancillary revenues and expenses include amounts associated with the reinsurance of policies against losses
to goods storethy tenants in our seltorage facilities in the U.S. and the sale of merchandise at otstaelfe
facilities. The following takd sets forth our ancillary operations:
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Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018 Change 2018 2017 Change
(Amounts in thousands)

Revenues:
Tenant reinsurance premiums$ 131,913 $ 125575 $ 6,338 $ 125575$% 122,852 $ 2,723
Merchandise 30,358 31,098 (740 31,098 33,243 (2,145
Total revenues 162,271 156,673 5,598 156,673 156,095 578
Cost of Operations:
Tenant reinsurance 26,202 25,646 556 25,646 30,554 (4,908
Merchandise 18,002 18,345 (343 18,345 19,791 (1,446
Total cost of operations 44,204 43,991 213 43,991 50,345 (6,354
Net operéing income
Tenant reinsurance 105,711 99,929 5,782 99,929 92,298 7,631
Merchandise 12,356 12,753 (397) 12,753 13,452 (699

Total net operating income$ 118,067 $ 112,682 $ 5385 $ 112,682% 105750 $ 6,932

Tenant reinsurance operationgurcustomers have the option of purchasing insurance from-affibated
insurance company to cover certain losses to their goods stored at our facilities. Aommaly, consolidated
subsidiary of Public Storagellureinsures such policies, and thereby assumes all risk of losses under these policies
from the insurance company. The subsidiary receives reinsurance premiums, substantially equal to the premiums
collected from our tenants, from the nafiiliated insuance company. Such reinsurance premiums are shown as
ATenant reinsurance premiumsodo in the above table.

The subsidiary pays a fee to Public Storage to assist with the administration of the program and to allow the
insurance to be marketed to our tenartsis fee represents a substantial amount of the reinsurance premiums received
by our subsidiary. The fee is eliminated in consolidation and is therefore not shown in the above table.

Tenant reinsurance revenue incread2d million or 2.2%rom $122.9 million in 2017 to $15.6 million in
2018, and$6.3 million or 5.0% front125.6million in 2018to $131.9 million in 2019. These increases are due
primarily to an increase in our tenant base with respect to acquired, newly developed, and expaitidsd Teailant
reinsurance revenue with respect to the Same Store Fadbtiesased .2 million or 0.2% from $.09.3million in
2017 to $109.Million in 2018, andncreased2.0 million or 1.8% from $109.Mnillion in 2018 to $111.1 million in
2019.

We expect future growth will come primarily from customers of newly acquired and developed facilities, as
well as additional tenants at our existing unstabilizedstelfage facilities.

Cost of operations primarily includes claims paid that are not edugy our outside thirgarty insurers, as
well as claims adjustment expenses. Claims expenses vary based upon the level of insured tenants, and the level of
events affecting claims at particular properties (such as burglary) as well as catastrophéc eweaits affecting
multiple properties such as hurricanes and floods. Cost of operations 2@eParfillion in 2019, $25.6 million in
2018, and $3@ million in 2017. Amounts for 2017 includes the impact of Hurricanes Harvey and Irma.

Merchandise sals: We sell locks, boxes, and packing supplies at ourstethige facilities and the level of

sales of these items is primarilypacted by the level of mosies and other customer traffic at our sstibrage
facilities. We do not expect any significaftamges in revenues or profitability from our merchandise sale<ih 20
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Equity in earnings of unconsolidated real estate entities

At December 31, 2019ve have equity investments in PSB and Shurgard which we account for on the equity
method and record opro-rata share of the net income of these entities for each pérfmfollowing table, and the
discussion below, sets forth the significant components of our equity in earnings of unconsolidated real estate entities:

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018 Change 2018 2017 Change
(Amounts in thousands)

Equity in earnings:

PSB $ 54090 $ 89,362 $ (35272 $ 89,362 $ 46,544 $ 42,818
Shurgard 15,457 14,133 1,324 14,133 25,948 (11,815
Legacy Institutional

Partnership (a) - - - - 3,163 (3,163

Total equity in earnings $ 69,547 $ 103,495 $ (33,948 $ 103,495 $ 75,655 $ 27,840

(a) This represents our equity earnings in a legacy institutional partnership. On December 31, 2017, we
acquired the 74.25% interest that we did not own in this partnership for $135.5 million. As a result, no
further equity earnings will beecorded.

Investment in PSB:Throughout all periods presented, we owned 7,158,354 shares of PS Business Parks,
I nc. (APSBO) common stock and 7,305,355 |imited partne
representing an aggregatpeproimately 42% common equity interest. The limited partnership units are convertible
at our option, subject to certain conditions, on afonene basis into PSB common stock.

At December 31, 2019 SB whollyownedapproximately27.6 million rentable sqare feet of commercial
spaceand had a 95% interest in a 395it apartment complexPSB also manages commercial space that we own
pursuant to property management agreements.

Equity in earnings from PSB totale®d4 1 million, $89.4 million, and $46.5nillion for 2019, 2018, and
2017, respectively. Included in these amounts are i) our equity share of gains on sale of real estate totaling
$4.4million, $37.7million and $3.1 million for 202, 2018,and 20%, respectively, and ii) our equity share of
prefered redemption charges totaling &4nillion and $t.5million for 2019 and 207, respectively.

Equity in earnings from PSB, excluding the aforementioned real estate gains and preferred redemption
charges, increased®$ million in 2019 as compared to 2@Land 8.7 million in 2018 as compared to 2@1due
primarily to improved property operatiansSee Notel to ourDecember3l, 2019 financial statements for further
di scussion regarding PSB. PSB6s filings and selected
and on PS Bwespshwanesspartkseconnformation on this website is not incorporated bgmrefice herein
and is not a part of this Annual Report on ForrKLO

Investment in Shurgard Throughout all periods presented, we effectively owned, directly and indirectly
31.3million Shurgard commorshares On October 15, 2018, Shurgard completed mitial global offering (the
AOoOf feringo), issuing 25.0 million of its comiiomin shares
gross proceeds), reducing our ownership intefesn 49% to approximately 35%. Following the Offering,
Shurgg d6s shares trade on Eur on e xWhieBuve did moeskllsanyshaceein thet he S
Offering, and have no current plans to do so, we recorded a gain on disposition in 2018 totaling $151.6 million as if
we had sold a proportionate shafeour investment in Shurgard.

At December 31, 2019, Shurgadned234self-storage facilities with approximately Hdillion net rentable

square feet. Shurgard paysousr dademask, faesdéocdr ubedol
to our December 31, 2019 financial statements.
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Shurgard paidi O . pg@r7sharen dividends to its shareholders during 2019, of which our share totaled
$23.1million. During 2018, Shurgard paid a caskidéend totaling $26.7 millionto its shareholderat the time, of
which our 49% equitghare wa$145.4 million

In 2019, 2018, and 2017, Shurgard acquired three facilities, eight facilities, and one facility, respéatively
an aggregate cost of $1héllion, $114.5 million, and $15.5 million, respectively. dach 02019, 2018, and 2017,
Shurgard openetivo newly developed facilities at an aggregate cost totaligg.2s milion, $19.6million, and
$28.8million, respectively

Our equity in earning/from Shurgard totaled $5 million, $14.1 million, and $25.9 million for 2019, 2018,
and 2017, respectively. The increase ofi$tillion from 2018 to 2019 is due to (i) a $10nillion decrease in our
equity share of depreciation expense, (ii) a $billon decrease in our equity share of costs due to a casualty loss
occurring in 2018 and the costs of the Offering, offset partially by (iii) a reduced average equity ownership interest
during 2019 due to the Offering as well approximately$220 million in uninveste offering proceeds at
DecembeBl, 2019, and (iv) a 5.2% reduction in average exchange rates of the U.S. Ddlar Euro. The
$11.8million decrease in 2018 as compared to 2017 is due primarily to a $6.9 million increase in ournegeitf s
depreciation expense as well as the aforementioned casualty loss in 2018 and costs of the Offering.

Our future earnings from Shurgard will also be affected by (i) the operating results of its existing facilities,
(ii) the level of development aratquisition activities, (iii) the income tax rates applicable in the various European
jurisdictions in which Shurgard operates, and (iv) the exchange rate between the U.S. Dollar and currencies in the
countries in which Shurgard conducts its business¢mally the Euro).Shurgard expects to distribute a substantial
portion of its earnings to its shareholders, which will result in reduced cash available to reinvest in real estate. The
level of equity income in the near term will also depend on théopoof the proceeds of the Offering which remain
uninvested.

Shurgar dos publ ic filings and publicly reported
https://corporate.shurgard.eand on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, http://www.bourse.lu.
Information on these websites is not incorporated by reference herein and is not a paArofuli®eport on Form
10K.

For purposes of recording our equity in earnings from Sirdrghe Euro was translated at exchange rates of
approximately 1122 U.S. Dollars per Euro abecember 31, 20191.144 at DecembeBl, 20B), and average
exchang rates of 1.120 for 2019, 1.183r 2018, and 1.29for 2017.

Analysis of items not allocatedo segments

General and administrative expens€&hefollowing table sets forth our general and administrative expense:

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018 Change 2018 2017 Change
(Amounts in thousands)

Sharebased compensation expenst $ 26,612 $ 71,031 $ (44,419 $% 71,031 $ 37,548 $ 33,483

Costs of senior executives 2,309 4,822 (2,513 4,822 5,872 (1,050
Development and acquisition costs 6,850 5,441 1,409 5,441 8,193 (2,752
Tax compliance costs and taxes pa 5,081 5,438 (357, 5,438 4,795 643
Legal costs 7,692 8,234 (542 8,234 6,995 1,239
Public company costs 5,007 4,712 295 4,712 4,145 567
Other costs 18,432 19,042 (610 19,042 15,334 3,708

Total $ 71,983 $ 118,720 $ (46,737 $ 118,720 $ 82,882 $ 35,838
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Sharebased compensation expense includes the amortization of restricted share units and stock options
granted to employees and trustees, as well as related employer taxeshaShdreompensation expense varies based
upontheleve of grants and their related vesting and amort.i
common share price on the date of grant.

In February 2018, we announced that our CEO and CFO at the time were retiring from their executive roles
at theend of 2018 and would serve only as Trustees of the Company. Accordingly, all remainingasieare
compensation expense for these two executives was amortized through the end oé<20tl8g inapproximately
$30.7 millionin incremental sharbased ompensation expense f8018. The remaining decreasgs2019are due
primarily to reductions in ongoing shabased compensation awardee®lotel0 to our Deember 31, 2019 financial
statements for further information on our shbased compensation.

In early 2020, our shaleased compensation plans were revised to
rather than forfeiture, of all unvested shlesed grants upon termination of service, for employees that meet certain
requirements, such as minimumea minimum years of service, notice, and who cooperate as needed in a transition
plan. This change is expected to increase dhased compensation expense in 2020, due primarily to accelerated
amortization of sharbased grants that are expected tollggbée for Retirement Vesting at an earlier date than the
original vesting date.

Costs of senior executives represent the cash compensation paid to our CEO and CFO.

Development and acquisition costs primarily represent internal and external expelases to our
development and acquisition of real estate facilities and varies primarily based upon the level of activities. The
amounts in the above table are €t$12.0 million, $12.2nillion, and $9.4 million for 2019, 2018, and 2017,
respectivelyin development costs that were capitalized to newly developed and redevelofstdragt facilities.
Development and acquisition costs are expected to remain st&fl2dn

Tax compliance costs and taxes paid include taxes paid to various stateshadtloarities, the internal and
external costs of filing tax returns, costs associated with complying with federal and state tax laws, and maintaining
our compliance with Internal Revenue Service REIT rules. Such costs vary primarily based uporeaties e
various states in which we do business.

Legal costs include internal personnel as well as fees paid to legal firms and other third parties with respect
to general corporate legal matters and risk management, and varies based upon thie¢mlelaivity. The future
level of legal costs is not determinable.

Public company costs represent the incremental costs of operating as a {iddiety company, such as
internal and external investor relations expenses, stock listing and traresfertag f ees, board of trust
costs, and costs associated with maintaining compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including-the Dodd
Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and Sarkateg Act of 2002.

Other costseapresent certain professional and consulting fees, payroll, and overhead that are not attributable
to our property operations. Such costslude nonrecurring and variable items, theel of which dependupon
corporate activities anditiatives and, as a result, such costs are not predictable

Our future general and administrative expenses are difficult to estimate, due to their dependence upon many
factors, including those noted above.

Interest and other incomelnterestand otherrncome is comprised primarily of the net income from our
commercial operations, our property management operation, interest earned on cash balances, and trademark license
fees received from Shurgard, as well as sundry other income items that are reagivéiddrto time in varying
amounts. Excludingraounts attributable tthe aggregate adur commercial operations and property management
operatons totaing $10.7 million, $11.8illion, and $109 million in 2019, 2018, and 20%, respectivelyinterest ad
other income increased in 2019 due primarily to increased levels of uninvested cash balances and increased in 2018
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due primarily to increased average interest rat&¥e do not expect any significant changesincome from
commercial and property managem operations in 2020. The level of other interest and income items in 2020 will
be dependent upon the level of cash balances we retain, interest rates, and the level of sundry other income items.

Interest expense:For 2019, 2018 and 20%, we incurred $9.6 million, $37.3 million, and &.7.1 million,
respectively, of interest on our outstanding debt. In determining interest expense, these amounts were offset by
capitalized interest of 39 million, $4.8 million and $.4million during 208, 2018, and 20X, respectively,
associated with our development activitidshe increase 2019, 2018, and 2017 is due to the issuance of debt. At
December 31, 2019, we had $biflion of debt outstanding, with an averageeirest rate of approximately 240 On
January 24, 2020, we issued, in a public offerin, 00 mi I I i on ($551.6 million) aggr
notes bearing interest at an annual rate of 0.87#&¥a@turing on January 24, 2032

Future interest expense will be dependertrufhe level of outstanding debt and the amount -gfratess
development costs.

Foreign Exchange Gain (Loss):For 200, we recorded a foreign mency translation gain of $718illion
representing the change in the UD®llar equivalent of our Eurdenominated unsecured notes due to fluctuations in
exchange rategéin of $18.1 million andoss of $50.0 million for 208 and 20%, respectively). The Euro was
translated at exchange rates of approximate22L1.S. Dollars per Euro at December 31, 201.144 at
DecembeBl, 20B and 1198at December 31, 201 Future gains and losses on foreign currency translation will be
dependent upon changes in the relative value of the Euro to the U.S. Dollar, and the leveldenBurmated debt
outstandingwhi ch i ncl udes our aforementioned January 24, 2020

Casualty Loss:During 2017, we incurred a $7.8 million casualty loss with respect to damage to several of
our facilities caused biurricanes Harvey and Iran

Gain on Real Estate Investment Salel 2019, 2018 and 20, we recorded gains on real estate investme
sales totaling $0.3 million, $37.9 million and $1.4 millioespectively. On October 18, 2018, we sold our property
in West London tdShurgardfor $42.1 million and recorded a related gain on sale dfestate of approximately
$31.5million. The remainder of the gains are primarily in connection with the partial sale of real estate facilities
pursuant to eminent domain proceedings.

Gain due toShurgard Public Offering: In connection with Shurgaédds Of f er i ng of i ts comm
public, our equity interest in Shurgard decreased from 49% to 35.2%. While we did not sell any of our shares in the
Offering, we recorded a gain on dispositior2018 of $151.6 million, as if we had sold a proportionate sharerof o
investment in Shurgard

Net Income Allocable to Preferred Shareholdersiet income allocable to preferred shareholders based
upon distributiongotaled $210.2 million$216.3million, and$236.5 million in2019, 2018, an@017, respectively.
These decreases are due primarily to lower average coupon rates due to redemptions of preferred shares with the
proceeds from the issuance of new series with lower market coupon kalso allocated $32.million and
$29.3million of income from our common shareholders to the holders of our preferred sh&@kimnd2017,
respectively, (none in 2018) in connection with the redemption of our preferred shares. Based upon ouwr preferre
shares outstanding at December 31,2@Lr quarterly distribution to our preferred shareholders ie@rgd to be
approximately $52.@nillion.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
While being a REIT allows us to minimize the payment of federal incomexjaense, we are required to
distribute 100% of our taxable income to our shareholders. This requirements limits cash flow from operations that

can be retained and reinvested in the business, increasing our reliance upon naitsihp dand growth.

Because raising capital is important to our growth, we endeavor to maintain a strong financial profile
characterized by strong credit metrics, including low leverage relative to our total capitalization and operating cash
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flows. We are one of the highestt ed REI Ts, as rated by major rating age
Our senior debt has an AAO0 credit rating by Standard &
our series of preferred sharSdsnadrag di &3 P oloyr 6Mo o d YOugs amdk
enable us to effectively access both the public and private capital markets to raise capital.

While we must distribute our taxable income, we are nonetheless able to retain operating cash flow to the
extent that our tax depreciation exceeds our maintenance capital expenditures. In recent years, we have retained
approximately $200 million to $300 million per year in cash flow.

Capital needs in excess of retained cash flow are met with: (i) preferra, €dumedium and londgerm
debt, and (iii) common equity. We select among these sources of capital based upon relative cost, availability, the
desire for leverage, and considering potential constraints caused by certain features of capital sduaeslestic
covenants. We view our line of credit, as well as stearh bank loans, as bridge financing.

We have a $500.0 million revolving |line of credit w
until we are able to raise longer term italp As of December 31, 2019 and February 25, 2020, there were no
borrowings outstanding on the revolving line of credit, however, we do have approximately $15.9 million of
outstanding letters of credit which limits our borrowing capacity to $484.1omilliOur line of credit matures on
April 19, 2024,

Liquidity and Capital Resource AnalysisiWe believe that our net cash provided by our operating activities
will continue to be sufficient to enable us to meet our ongoing requirements for principaémdayom debt,
maintenance capital expenditures and distributions to our shareholders for the foreseeable future.

As of December 31, 2019, we expect capital resources over the next year of approximatsllydsi which
exceeds our currently identifiechpital needs of approximately $722.6 million. Our expected capital resources
include: (i) $409.7 million of cash as of December 31, 2019$4i84.1million of available borrowing capacity on
our revolving line of credit, (iii) $545.2 million in net@ereeds from the public issuance of senior Edgnominated
notes, and (iv) approximately $200 million to $250 million of expected retained operating cash flow in the next year.
Retained operating cash flow represents our expected cash flow providedratngpactivities, less shareholder
distributions and capital expenditures to maintain our real estate facilities.

Our currently identified capital needs consist primarily of $24&lBon in property acquisitions currently
under contract and $477.3 fiwh of remaining spending on our current development pipeline, which will be incurred
primarily in the next 18 months. We have no substantial principal payments on debt until 2022. We expect our capital
needs to increase over the next year as we agecgdo our development pipeline and acquire additional properties.
Additional potential capital needs could result from various activities including the redemption of outstanding
preferred securities, repurchases of common stock, or mergers and megadivities such as a potential acquisition
of National Storage REIT described in Note 15, fASubseql
however, there can be no assurance of any such activities transpiring in the near or lamger ter

To the extent our retained operating cash flow, cash on hand, and line of credit are insufficient to fund our
activities, we believe we have a variety of possibilities to raise additional capital including issuing common or
preferred securities, issuimlgbt, or entering into joint venture arrangements to acquire or develop facilities.

Required Debt Repayment#As of December 31, 2@] the principaloutstandingon our debt totaled
approximately $1 billion, consisting of $23 million of secured debt, 383.6 million of Euro-denominated
unsecured debt and $billion of U.S. Dollar denominated unsecured debt. Approximate principal maturities are as
follows (amounts in thousands
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2020 $ 2,015

2021 1,871
2022 502,584
2023 19,219
2024 112,280
Thereafter 1,272,895
$ 1,910,864

On January 24, 2020, we completed a public offerin¢

amount of senior notes bearing interest at an annual rate of 0.875% and maturing on January 24, 2032.

The remaining maturities on our debt over atrtlext two years are nominal. Our debt is Madidered, with
material debt maturities at least 18 months apart, which moderates refinancing risk.

Capital Expenditure RequirementsCapital expenditures include general maintenance, major repairs or
replacenents to elements of our facilities to keep our facilities in good operating condition and maintain their visual
appeal. Capital expenditures do not include costs relating to the development of new facilities or redevelopment of
existing facilities to incease their available rentable square footage.

Capital expenditures totaled $2.5million in 2019, and are expected to approximat&dbaillion in 2020
Our capital expenditures for 2018nd estimated capital expenditures for 2020 are expedteaude certain projects
that are upgrades and not traditional {fke-like replacements of existing components, and in certain circumstances
replace existing components before the end of their functional lives. Such projects include installation of LED
lighting, replacing existing planting configurations with more drought tolerant and low maintenance configurations,
installation of solar panels, improvements to office and customer zone configurations to provide a more-customer
friendly experience, and improrents to outdoor facades and color schemes. Such incremental investments improve
customer satisfaction, the attractiveness and competitiveness of our facilities to new and existing customers, or reduce
operating costs. The %@ million in capital expendires expected for 20, as well as the $192.5 million incurred in
2019, represerd substantial increase from the amounts incurret189.4million, $124.8 million and $86.0 million
in 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively. We expect continued elevatéthcagpenditures beyond 20; however, the
level and persistence of this elevation is uncertain at this time.

Requirement to Pay Distributiong=or all periods presented herein, we have elected to be treated as a REIT,
as defined in the Code. As a REMe do not incur federal income tax on our REIT taxable income (generally, net
rents and gains from real property, dividends, and interest) that is fully distributed each year (for this purpose, certain
distributions paid in a subsequent year may be densdl), and if we meet certain organizational and operational
rules. We believe we have met these requirements in all periods presented herein, and we expect to continue to elect
and qualify as a REIT.

OnFebruary 21, 2020, our Board declared a regidaimon quarterly dividend of $2.00 per common share
totaling approximately $350 million, which will be paid at the end of March 2020. Our consistergiondividend
policy has been to distribute onbur taxable income. Future quarterly distributiavith respect to the common
shares will continue to be determined based upon our REIT distribution requirements after taking into consideration
distributions to the preferred shareholders and will be funded with cash flows from operating activities.

We estimate the annual distribution requirements with respect to ouerRréf Shares outstanding at
December 3, 2019 to be approximately $208million per year.

We estimate we will pagpproximately $.0 million per year in distributions to noncontrolfjrinterests
outstanding at December,32019.

Real Estate Investment ActivitieSubsequent tDecember 312019, we acquired or were under contract to
acquire (subject to customary closing conditiobé)self-storage facilities for 5.3 million. We will continue to
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seek to acquire properties; however, there is significant competition to acquire exisilitigs and there can be no
assurance as to the level of facilities we may acquire.

As of Decanber 3, 2019 we had development aeslpansion projects at a total cost of approximately
$619.2million. Costs incurred throughecember 312019 were $41.9million, with the remaining cost to complete
of $477.3 million expected to be incurred primarily in the next 18 months. Some of fivegects are subject to
significant contingencies such as entitlement approval. We expect to continue to seek additional projects; however,
the levelof future development and redevelopment may be limited due to various constraints such as difficulty in
finding projects that meet our rigldjusted yield expectations and challenges in obtaining building permits for self
storage activities in certain municipalities.

Redemption of Preferred Securitieslistorically, we have taken advantage of refinandirgher coupon
preferred securities with lower coupon preferred securities. In the futeimaay also elect to finance the redemption
of preferred securities with proceeds from the issuance of debt. As of FePBuafR0, we have the following series
of preferred securities that are eligible for redemptic
Preferred Shares ($495 million), our 5.200% Series W Preferred Shares ($500 million), and our 5.200% Series X
Preferred Shares ($225 milfip See Note 8 to our December 31, 2019 financial statements for the redemption dates
of our other series of preferred sharBedemption of such preferred shares will depend upon many factors, including
the rate at which we could issue replacement medesecurities. None of our preferred securities are redeemable at
the option of the holders.

Repurchases of Common Share3ur Board has authorized management to repurchase up to 35,000,000 of
our common shares on the open market or in privately isdgdttransactions. During 281we did not repurchase
any of our common shares. From the inception of the repurchase program through Fefyr2@302ve have
repurchased a total of 23,721,916 common shares at an aggregate cost of approximateiyil§6@9.Euture levels
of common share repurchases will be dependent upon our available capital, investment alternatives and the trading
price of our common shares.

Contractual Obligations

Our significant contractual obligations at December 3192Md their impact on our cash flows and liquidity
are summarized below for the years ending December 31 (amounts in thousands):

Total 202( 2021 2022 202: 202¢ Thereafte
Interest and principal payments
on debt (1) $ 2,26581¢$ 55,085 $ 54,839 $552,002 $ 59,724 $ 150,874 $ 1,393,29%
Leases and other commitments 77,210 4,290 4,336 3,737 3,515 3,527 57,805
Construction commitments (3) 77,168 69,648 7,520 - - - -
Total $ 2,420,197 $ 129,023 $ 66,695 $ 555,73¢ $ 63,239 $ 154,401 $ 1,451,10C

(1) Represents contractual principal and interest payments. Amounts with respect to certaieribonmated
debt are based upon exchange rates at December 21, 264 Note 6 to our December 31, 9@ihancial
statements for further information.

(2) Represents future contractual payments on land, equipment and office space undelegsésusnd other
commitments

(3) Represents future expected payments fostraotion under contract at December 31,201
We estimate the annual distribution requirements with respect to our Preferred Shares outstanding at

December 31, 2®@Lto be approximately $208r@illion per year. Dividends are paid when and if declareduy o
Board and accumulate if not paid.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement#t December 31, 2@ we had no material offialance sheet arrangements
as defined under RegulatiorkS303(a)(4) and the instructions thereto.
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ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

To limit our exposure to market risk, we are capitalized primarily with preferred and common equity. Our
preferred shares are redeemable at our option generally five years after issuance, but the holder has no redemption
option. Our debt is our only markesk sensitive portion of our capital structure, which totals approximately
$19 billion and represent&1.0% of the book value of our equity at December 31,9201

We have foreign currency exposure at December 319 gfated to (i) our investment in Shurgard, with a
book value of 8399 mi | | i on and (i 83pmilliod)bPEurédemimihated unsecufe® ribtes payable.

The fair value of our fixed rate debt at December 31928hpproximately 2.0 billion. The table below
summarizes the annual maturities of our fixed rate debt, which had a weighted average effective 98teadf 2.
December 31, 201 See Noté& to our December 31, 209financial statements for further informaticegarding our
fixed ratedebt (amounts in thousands).

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Thereafte Total

Fixed rate debt $ 2,015 $ 1,871 $ 502,584 $ 19,219 $ 112,280 $ 1,272,895 $ 1,910,864
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ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that infoegaitied to be
di sclosed in reports we file and submit under the Securl
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in accordance with SEC guidelines
and thatsuch information is communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure based on the definition of "disclosure
controls and procedures" in Rules 136 and 15d15(e) of the Exchange Act. In designing and evaluating the
disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of aclieviaesited control objectives and
management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating thermefi#t relationship of possible
controls and procedures in reaching that level of reasonable assurance. We also have investments in certain
unconsolidated real estate entities and because we do not control these entities, our disclosure controls and procedures
with respect to such entities are substantially more limited than those we maintain with respect to our consolidated
subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2@ we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design
and operation of our disclosure coérand procedures (as such term is defined in Rule43@g and 15d.5(e) of
the Exchange Act). Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective Beaémber 31, 2@l at a reasonable assurance level.

Management 8s Report on I nternal Control Over Financi al

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is definedRules 13&l5(f) and 15€l15(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the supervision and
with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our intermatad@ver financial reporting based on the framework
in Internal Controtintegrated Frameworkssued by the Committee on Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (2013 Framework). Based on our evaluation under the framewbrtelinal Controtintegrated
Framework our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
DecembeB1, 20B.

The effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 3 ,H2B1been audited by
Emst&Young LLP, an independent registered public account
control over financial reporting appears below.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There have not been any changes in our internataaswver financial reporting (as such term is defined in

Rules 13al5(f) and 15€15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fourth quarter o0B20Wwhich this report relates
that have materially affected, or are reasonable likely to materially affeéhtetral control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Trustees of Public Storage
Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audite® u b | i ¢ iStermarcangad dver financial reporting as@écember 31, 201dased on
criteria established in Internal Conidolntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commiss{@013 framework)the COSO criteria).In our opinion, Public Stora¢
(the Companyjmaintained, in all material aspects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2019, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with thedsteds of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (PCAOB), theonsolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2019 and 2
related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, equity and cash #awls &drthe three
years in the period ended December 31, 2019 and the relatecndtisancial statement schedule listed in the
Index at Item 15(a) and our report daksgbruary 252020expressedn unqualified opinion thereon

Basis for Opinion

The Companyds management is responsible for mai
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompa
Management 6 s ReoptmlrOver Kinancial Repertingdar responsibility is to express an opinion
the Companydés internal contr ol Wevamsnapublicaceoantingfrin r
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independémtaspect to the Company in accordance witt
U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Com
and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCR@RBe tandards require that we plan
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial re
was maintained in all material respec@ur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal coaten

financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design a
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedt
considered necessarytime circumstancesWe believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opir

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A companyds internal control over f i poaableassutance eporti ng
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting princifdes.c o mpany dés i nternal control

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions mreorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management andtatiseaf the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detectd.i
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Because of ittnherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatementsAlso, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 25, 2020
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ITEM 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART 1l

ITEM 10. Trustees, Executive Officers and Corpmte Governance

The following is a biographical summary of the current executive officers of the Company:

Joseph D. Russell, Jr.age60, has served as Chief Executive Officer since January 1, 2019, and as President
since July 2016.Prior to joining Pubic Storage, Mr. Russell was President and Chief Executive Officer of PS
Business Parks, Inc. from August 2002 to July 2016. Mr. Russell has also served as a trustee of Public Storage since
January 1, 2019, and as a director of PS Business Parks, becAsigust 2003.

H. Thomas Boyle age 3, has served as Chief Financial Officer since JanLaP¥19, and wagreviously
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Operatisinsejoining the Company in Noweber 2016. Prior to joining
Public StorageMr. Boyle served in roles of increasing responsibilities with Morgan Stanley since 2005, from analyst
to his last role as Executive Director, Equity and Debt Capital Markets.

Nathaniel A. Vitan, age 46, has served as Senior Vice President, Chief L&fficer and Corporate
Secretary sincépril 20, 2019, and was Vice President and Chief Coulh#&jation and Operations since joining
the Company in June 2016. Prior to joining Public Storage, Mr. Vitan was Assistant General Counsel for Altria Client
Services, Inc. and served as a Trial Practice and Appellate Litigation Attorney at L&tNsatkins LLP.

Natalia Johnson age £, has served as Senior Vice President, Chief Human Resources Officer since
April 25, 2018 and was previously Senior Vice President of Human Resources since joining the Company in July
2016. Prior to joining Public Storage, Ms. Johnson held a varietynmrseanagement positions at Bank of America,
including Chief Operating Officer for Mortgage Technology and Human Resources Executive for the Mortgage
Business and worked forCe€ao |l a Andina and San Cristhbal l nsurance.

Other information required by thieem is hereby incorporated by reference to the material appearing in the
Notice and Proxy Statement for the2POAnnual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A
under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

The informationrequired by this item is hereby incorporated by reference to the material appearing in the
Notice and Proxy Statement for the2BOAnnual Meeting of Shareholdensy be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A
under the Exchange Act.
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ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder
Matters

The following table sets forth information as of December 31920In t he Companyds ¢
compensation plans:

Number of
securities to be Weighted
issued upon average Number of
exercise of exercise price securities
outstanding of outstanding remaining available
options, options, for future issuance
warrants and warrants and under equity
rights rights compensation plan:
Equity compensation plans approved
by securiy holders (a)................. 2,958,877 (b) $204.53(d) 1,110,375
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders (c) - - -
a) The Companydéds stock option and stock incentive p
December 31,2®f i nanci al statement s. Al pl ans were app
b) Includes619,150 restricted share units that, if and when vested, will be settled in common shares of the
Company on a one fane basis.
c) There are no securities available fature issuance or currently outstanding under plans not approved

by the Companydés shareh%l|l ders as of December 31,
d) Represents the averageercise price of 339667 stock option®utstanding at December 31, 200MWe
also have519,150 restrictedshare units outstanding at December 31,2kt vest for no consideration.

Other information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference to the material appearing in the
Notice and Proxy Statement for the2POAnnual Meeting of Shareholder® be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A
under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Trustee Independence

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference to the material appearing in the
Notice and Proxy Statement for the2BOAnnual Meeting of Shareholder® be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A
under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by refetertte material appearing in the
Notice and Proxy Statement for the 202dnual Meeting of Shareholders be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A
under the Exchange Act of 1934.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

a. 1. Financial Statements

The financial statements listed in the accompanying Index to Financial Statements and Schedu
are filed as part of this report.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statements scheduisted in the accompanying Index to Financial Statements and
Schedules are filed as part of this report.

3. Exhibits

See Index to Exhibits contained herein.
b. Exhibits:
See Index to Exhibits contained herein.
c. Financial Statement Schedules

Not applicable.
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3.1

3.2

3.3

34

35

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

PUBLIC STORAGE
INDEX TO EXHIBITS (1)
(Items 15(a)(3) and 15(c))
Articles ofAmendment and Restatement of Declaration of Trust of Public Storage, a Maryland ree
investment trust, filed with the Maryland State Department of Assessments and Taxation on May

Filed with the Regi st rkdatedday 8, 2018 andenudrporRiedmyrefdrer
herein.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Public Storage, a Maryland real estate investmedsteddtjay 4,
2018. Filed with the RegKdatedMansd D8 ari@uncorperated
reference herein.

Articles Supplemetary for Public Storage 5.375% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series V. File
the Registrant 6s CKudatedeSepgtemibeeld, 2012 and incorpooatedrby &fer
herein.

Articles Supplementary for Public Storage 5.20% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series W. Filed
Regi strant és Cur-Kdared JaiRaywzdI3tand incorpérated hy reBerence hereir

Articles Supplementary for Public Storage 5.20% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series X. Filed
Regi strant s Cur r-i€dated Maehp4o 2013 amd incofporateth bydeference herei

Articles Supplementary for Public Storage 5.400% Clamne Preferred Shares, Series B. Filed w
the Registrantos CK dateed dahuanR¥E p2016 tand incorpdfabed by reder:
herein.

Articles Supplementary for Public Storage 5.125% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series C. Fi
the Registrant ds &uated@daytl0, ®6E gnd incbrpocated by ceferenceBhere

Articles Supplementary for Public Storage 4.950% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series D. Fil
theReg st rant 6s Cur r Krated Buéy 3 2016 amdrincofporatad by&eference hei

Articles Supplementary for Public Storage 4.9004mulative Preferred Shares, Series E. Filed \
the Registrant 6s «Kdated @ciober 60Ra016ard incomarateld byrefiere@ce he

Articles Supplementary for Public Storage 5.150% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series F. Fil
the Registrant 6s eKuataddMayt23, R4 faadrirncorporated®wreferend he

Articles Supplementary for Public Storage 5.050% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series G. Fi
the Registrant 6s eKuatadduiytdl, Foé7pandrincorporated Byorefemenc@irfe

Articles Supplementary for Public Storage 5.600% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series H. Fil
the Registrant ds &K datedRFebruarR 28p 2019tand annorpérated fmy refere
herein.

Articles Supplementary for Public Storage 4.875% Cumulative Preferred Shares, |. Filed with the
Regi strant 6s Cur-KdatedSefeenbeo5, 2019@md inEomgoraied 8y reference h

Articles Supplementary for Public Storage 4.700% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series J. Filed
Registrant s Cur-Kdated Nowmherby2019 and indorparated I8y reference he
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3.15

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6°

10.7

10.8¢

10.9¢

10.10

10.1

Articles Supplementary for Public Storage 4.750% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series K. Fil
the Registrant 6s CKidatedeDedembRrelp, @019 andimcorgomatednby r@fer
herein.

Master Deposit Agr eement , dated as of Ma vy
Form 8K dated June 6, 2007 and incorporated by referbpogin.

Description of Registrant 6s Securities Reqi
of 1934. Filed herewith.

Agr eement of Limited Partnership of PS Bus
Quarterly Report on Form 1Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1998 (SHECN6. 00110709)
and incorporated herein by reference.

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Storage Trust Propdtiéslarch 12,
1999) . Filed with PSI &dort@agaartérle petiog enéed puner30, 1¢
(SEC File No. 0090839) and incorporated herein by reference.

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated April 19, 2019, by and among Public
the lenders party thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent, Well
Securities LLC and MeiltiLynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporation, as joint lead arrangers a
joint bookrunners, Bank of America, N.A., as syndication agent, and Citibank, N.A., as docume
agent . Filed as Exhibit 10. 1 t-K dated April $99 2010 amc
incorporated herein by reference.

Form of 2007 Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement. Filed as Exhibit 10t1hte Co mp an
Report on Form 1K for the year ended December 31, 2015 and incorporated herein by referenc

Form of 2007 Plan Rsricted Stock Unit Agreemerit deferral of receipt of shares. Filed
Exhibitl1 0. 12 to the Company 6 sKfohtheyea éndeR Bgrembdr 3102€
and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of 2007 Pl an Stock Option Agreement.
on Form 16K for the year ended December 31, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of 2007 Plan Trustee Stock Option Aqgr .
Report on Form 1K for the year endeBecember 31, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of 2016 Plan Restricted Stock Unit Agreement. Filed as Exhibit 10.15 twthepCa ny 6 s
Report on Form 1K for the year ended December 31, 2016 and incorporated herein by referenc

Form of 2016 Plan Restrictegtock Unit Agreemenit deferral of receipt of shares. Filed as Exhi
10.16 to the Company b s-Kfamntheweat ended Peoember 31,n2016 |
incorporated herein by reference.

Formof 2016 PlanNe®Qu al i fi ed St ock Option Agreement
Annual Report on Form 1R for the year ended December 31, 2016 and incorporated here
referene.

Form of 2016 Plan Trustee Ndpualified Stock Option Agreement. Filed as Exhibit 10.18 to
Company6s Annual-Kikrdhe gearendediiDecEnaber 81, 2006 and incorporated h

by reference.
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10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

Form of Trustee and Officer Indemnification Agreemehitled asE x hi bi t 10.19
Annual Report on Form 1R for the year ended December 31, 2016 and incorporated here
reference.

Term LoanAgreement, by and among Public Storage, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC as Lead At
and Wells Fargo National Bank N.A. as Administrative Agent, dated as of December 2, 2013. Fil
Registrant és Cur-Kdated Decemhen2r 2013 andandoratedrherdin by referenc

Public Storage 2007 Equity and PerformaBesed Incentive Compensation Plan, as Amended. |
withRegi strant 6s Cur {Keated Md& d,20@l4 dnd incarpofaied hereiBby refere

Public Storage 2016 Equity and PerformaBesedincentive Compensation Plan. Filed as Appen
A to the Companyds 2016 Proxy Statement dat

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 3, 2015, by and among Public Storage
signatories thereto. Fartlore Fbrm8K dated NRvembers3t 2015 mr
incorporated herein by reference.

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 12, 2016, by andogaRublic Storage and the signator
thhereto. Filed with RegqgiKsdatedaAprit 12,2016 and in@nmpdrate
herein by reference.

Indenture, dated as of September 18, 2017, between Public Storage and Wells Fargo Bank,
Association, as trustee. Filed as E x RKi datedt
September 18, 2017 and incorporated herein byeeéer.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 18, 2017, between Public Storage and Wk
Bank, National Association, as trustag;luding the form of Global Note representing the 2022 N
and the form of Gl obal Note representing th
Report on Form & dated September 18, 2017 and incorporated herein by reference.

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 12, 2019, between Public Storage and Wel
Bank, National Association, as trustee, including thenfof Global Note representing the 2029 Not
Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to t h-Kda@dApp 52n2901® and iGaonparags
herein by reference.

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 24, 2020, between Public Storage and We
Bank, National Association, as trustee. Filed as ExhiBit4t o t he Companyoés
8-K dated January 24, 2020 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment to Amended Agreement lomited Partnership of PS Business Parks, L.P. to Authc
Speci al Al |l ocations, dated as of January 1
Report on Form 1@ for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2018 (SEC File No.38619) and
incorporated herein by reference.

Form of 2016 Pl an Restricted Stock Uni't Ag
Annual Report on Form 1K for the year ended December 31, 2018 and incorporated here
reference.

Form of 2016 Plan Restricted Stock UAigreementi deferral of receipt of shares (2018). Filed
Exhibit 10. 26 to the Compkforyhé gear AnmiedDacemb& 81 20
and incorporated herein by reference.
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Form of 2016 Plan No@ualified Stock Option Agreement (2018). Filed as Exhibit 10.27 to
Companydés Annual-KfRraghe gearendeddecEnaber 8il, 2008 and incorporated h

by reference.

Form of 2016 Plan Trustee Nd@pualified Stock Option Agreement (2018). Filed as Exhibit 10.2
t he Company 6 son/Aarnmio for thR gepr@ndéd December 31, 2018 and incorpor
herein by reference.

Form of 2016 Plan Trustee Deferred Stock Unit Agnent (2018). Filed as Exhibit 10.29 to t
Companyés Annual-Kferghe gearendediibecEnaber 8il, 2008 and incorporated h

by reference.

Form of 2016 Plan Executive Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (2018). Filed as Exhibit 10.30
Company6s Annual-KfRrahe geartededDeceflmer 3in 2Q1&and incorporated he

by reference.

Listing of Subsidiaries. Filed herewith.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Filed herewith.

Rule 13a 14(a) Certification. Filed herewith.

Rule 13a 14(a) Certification. Filed herewith.

Section 135Certifications. Filed herewith.

Inline XBRL Instance Document. Filed herewith.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema. Filed herewith.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase. Filed herewith.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase. Filed herewith.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase. Filed herewith.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Link. Filed herewith.

Cover Page Interactive Data F{fermatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)
SEC File No. 00433519 unless otherwise indicated.

Denotes management compensatory plan agreement or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(theoSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PUBLIC STORAGE
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and the Board of Trustees of Public Storage
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balances sti¢tiblic Storage (the Company) as of

DecembeBl, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, equity and

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2019, and the relatedfimatesiaind
statement schedule |isted in the Index at Item 15(a) (
statementso) . I n our opinion, the consolidated financi
respects, the capolidated financial position of the Company at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the consolidated

results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2019, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted acating principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB), the Companybds internal control over f|
criteria establiséd in Internal Contrelntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework), and our refadetd February 25, 2020 expresaadunqualified

opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These financiastatements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Companyés financi al statements based on
the PCAOB and are required to be indeget with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal

securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the

PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAG#: Jtandards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assessfthe risks

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the finandiatatements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonablis tbasour opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial
statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee andethss(th
accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging,
subjective or complex judgments. The communication of the critical audit matter does not alter in any way our
opinion on the coridated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical
audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to
which it relates.
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Description of
the Matter

How We
Addressed the
Matter in Our
Audit

Purchase Price Allocabn

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company completed the acquigiioeadf
estate facilities for a total purchase pric&4£9.8 million As further discussed in Not@s
and 3of the consolidated financial statements, the transactions were accounted for as a
acquisitions, and the purchase price was allocated based on a relative fair value of asse
acquired and liabilities assumed.

Auditing the acc o u20i9iacygsitibne of redl dstate f@ciitrepveas y
subjective because the Company must exercise a high level of management judgment
determining the fair value of acquired land and the replacement cost of acquired facilitie
Determining the fair value afcquired land was difficult due to the lack of available directl
comparable land market information. The replacement costs of the acquired facilities w
calculated by estimating the cost of building similar facilities in comparable markets and
adjustirg those costs for the age, quality, and configuration associated with the acquirec
facilities. Determining the replacement cost was difficult due to the judgment utilized by
management in determining the adjustments that should be applied to each facility

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design, and tested the operating effective
controls over managementdéds accounting f
over the review ofissumptions underlying the purchase price allocation and accuracy of
underlying data used. For example, we tested controls over the determination of the fai
of the land and building assets, including the controls over the review of the valonatitels
and the underlying assumptions used to develop such estimates.

For the 2019 acquisitions of real estate facilities described above, our procedures incluc
were not limited to, evaluating the sensitivity of changes in significant assumptiaghe
purchase price allocation. For example, we compared the allocated land and building v
the historical results of settorage properties acquired in the prior years. We also perfor
a sensitivity analysis to evaluate the impactontheCcammy 6 s f i nanci al
from changes in allocated land and building values. For certain of these asset acquisitic
also read the purchase agreements, evaluated whether the Company had appropriately
determined whether the transaction \adsusiness combination or asset acquisition, evalu:
the methods and significant assumptions used by the Company, and tested the comple
and accuracy of the underlying data supporting the significant assumptions and estimat
certain of thesasset acquisitions, we involved our valuation specialists to assist in the
assessment of the methodology utilized by the Company, in addition to performing
corroborative analyses to assess whether the conclusions in the valuation were support
observake market data. For example, our valuation specialists used independently iden
data sources to evaluate managementds s
assumptions.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

We have served as the Company's auditaresir980.

Los Angeles, California

February 252020
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PUBLIC STORAGE
BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
ASSETS

Cash and equivalents $ 409,743 $ 361,21¢

Real estate facilities, at cost:
Land 4,186,877 4,047,982
Buildings 12,102,27: 11,248,86:
16,289,14¢ 15,296,84¢
Accumulated depreciation (6,623,475 (6,140,072
9,665,671 9,156,772
Construction in process 141,934 285,33¢
9,807,60% 9,442,111
Investments in unconsolidated real estate entities 767,816 783,988
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net 205,936 209,85€
Other assets 174,344 131,097
Total assets $ 11,365,44¢ % 10,928,27(

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Notes payable $ 1,902,49: $ 1,412,28<
Accrued and other liabilities 383,284 371,25¢
Total liabilities 2,285,777 1,783,542

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)

Equity:
Public Storage shareholdersd equi
Preferred Shares, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized,
162,600 shares issued (in series) and outstanding, (161,000 at
December 31, 2018), at liquidation preference 4,065,00( 4,025,00(
Common Shares, $0.10 par value, 650,000,000 shares authorized,
174,418,615 shares issued and outstanding (174,130,881 shares at

December 31, 2018) 17,442 17,413
Paidin capital 5,710,934 5,718,48¢
Accumulated deficit (665,575 (577,360
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (64,890 (64,060

Tot al Public Storage sharehol de 9,062,911 9,119,47¢
Noncontrolling interests 16,756 25,250
Total equity 9,079,667 9,144,72¢
Total liabilities and equity $ 11,365,44¢  $ 10,928,27(

See accompanying notes.
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PUBLIC STORAGE
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2019 2018 2017
Revenues:
Selfstorage facilities $ 2,684,552 $ 2,597,607 $ 2,512,43¢
Ancillary operations 162,271 156,673 156,09&
2,846,82¢ 2,754,28( 2,668,52¢
Expenses:
Selfstorage cost of operations 752,579 695,731 657,633
Ancillary cost of operations 44,204 43,991 50,345
Depreciation and amortization 512,918 483,646 454,52€
General and administrative 71,983 118,72C 82,882
Interest expense 45,641 32,542 12,690
1,427,32¢ 1,374,63C 1,258,07¢
Other increase (decrease) to net income:
Interest and other income 28,436 26,442 18,771
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated real estate entities 69,547 103,495 75,655
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) 7,829 18,117 (50,045
Casualty loss - - (7,789
Gain on sale of real estate 341 37,903 1,421
Gain due to Shurgard public offering - 151,616 -
Net income 1,525,651 1,717,22¢ 1,448,46¢
Allocation to noncontrolling interests (5,117 (6,192 (6,248
Net income allocable to Public Storage shareholders 1,520,534 1,711,031 1,442,217
Allocation of net income to:
Preferred shareholderslistributions (210,179 (216,316 (236,535
Preferred shareholdersedemptiongNote 8) (32,693 - (29,330
Restricted share units (4,895 (5,815 (4,743
Net income allocable to common shareholders $ 1,272,767 $ 1,488,90C $ 1,171,60¢
Net income per common share:
Basic $ 730 $ 856 $ 6.75
Diluted $ 729 $ 854 $ 6.73
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 174,287 173,969 173,613
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 174,53C 174,297 174,151

See accompanying notes.
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PUBLIC STORAGE

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Amounts in thousands)

Net incone
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Aggregate foreign currency exchange gain (loss)

Adjust for foreign currency exchange loss reflected
in gain on sale of real estate and gain on Shurgard
public offering

Adjust for aggregate foreign currency exchange
(gain) loss included in net income
Other conprehensive (loss) income
Total comprehensive income
Allocation to noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive income allocable to
Public Sbrage shareholders

For the Years Ended December 31,

2019 2018 2017
$ 1,525,651 $ 1,717,225 $ 1,448 46E
6,999 1,914 (30,003

- 27,207 -

(7,829 (18,117 50,045

(830 11,004 20,042

1,524,821 1,728,227 1,468,507

(5,117 (6,192 (6,248

$ 1,519,704 $ 1,722,03 $ 1,462,25¢

See accompanying notes.
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Balances at December 31, 2016
Issuance 023,200preferred shares (Note 8)
Redemption 086,900preferred shares (Note 8)
Issuance of common shares in connection with
sharebased compensatiof§4,583shares) (Note 10)
Sharebased compensation expense, net of cash
paid in lieu of common shares (Note 10)
Acquisition of noncontrolling interests
Contributions by noncontrolling interests
Net income
Net income allocated to noncontrolling interests
Distributions to equity holders:
Preferred shares (Note 8)
Noncontrolling interests
Common shareholders and restricted share
unitholders ($8.00 per share)
Other comprehensive income (Note 2)
Balances at December 31, 2017

Issuance of common shares in connection with
sharebased compensatio@{7,511shares) (Note 10)
Sharebased compensation expense, net of cash
paid in lieu of common shares (Note 10)
Contributions by noncontrolling interests
Net income
Net income allocated to noncontrolling interests
Distributions to equity holders:
Preferred shares (Note 8)
Noncontrolling interests
Common shareholders and restricted share
unitholders ($8.00 per share)

Cumulative
Preferred
Shares
$ 4,367,50C
580,00C
(922,500

$ 4,025,000

PUBLIC STORAGE
STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Common
Shares
$ 17,329

56

$ 17,385

28

Paidin
Capital

$ 5,609,76¢
(18,823

42,444

22,711
(7,701

$ 5,648,39¢

12,497

57,589

Accumulated

Accumulated Comprehensiv

Deficit
$ (487,581

1,448,46%
(6,248

(236,535

(1,393,812

$ (675711

1,717,225
(6,192

(216,316

(1,396,364

See accompanying notes.

F-6

Other
Loss
$ (95,106
20,042
$ (75,064

Total
Public Storage
Shar ehi

Equity
$ 9,411,91C

561,177
(922,500

42,500

22,711
(7,701

1,448,465
(6,248

(236,535

(1,393,812
20,042
$  8,940,00¢

12,525

57,589

1,717,225
(6,192

(216,316

(1,396,364

Noncontrolling
Interests
$ 29,744

(6,724
2,484

6,248

(7,392

$ 24,360

1,720

6,192

(7,022

$

$

Total
Equity
9,441,654
561,177
(922,500

42,500

22,711
(14,425
2,484
1,448 46

(236,535
(7,392

(1,393,812
20,042
8,964,36¢

12,525

57,589
1,720
1,717,22¢

(216,316
(7,022

(1,396,364



Other comprehensive income (Note 2)
Balances at December 31, 2018

Issuance o#3,600preferred shares (Note 8)
Redemption ofi2,000preferred shares (Note 8)
Issuance of common shares in connection with
sharebased compensatio@87,734shares) (Note 10)
Sharebased compensation expense, net of cash
paid in lieu of common shares (Note 10)
Acquisition of noncontrolling interests
Contributions by noncontrolling interests
Net income
Net income allocated to noncontrolling interests
Distributions to:
Preferred shareholders (Note 8)
Noncontrolling interests
Common shareholders and restricted share
unitholders ($8.00 per share)
Other comprehensive loss (Note 2)
Balances at December 31, 2019

PUBLIC STORAGE
STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Accumulated Total
Cumulative Other Public Storage
Preferred Common Paidin Accumulated Comprehensiv. S h ar e h « Noncontrolling Total
Shares Shares Capital Deficit Loss Equity Interests Equity
- - - - 11,004 11,004 - 11,004
$ 4,02500C $ 17,413 $ 5,718,48t $ (577,360 $ (64,060 $ 9,11947¢ $ 25250 $  9,144,72¢
1,090,00C - (30,844 - - 1,059,15¢ - 1,059,15¢
(1,050,000 - - - - (1,050,00C - (1,050,00C
- 29 33,535 - - 33,564 - 33,564
- - 13,671 - - 13,671 - 13,671
- - (23,913 - - (23,913 (11,087 (35,000
- - - - - - 4,148 4,148
- - - 1,525,651 - 1,525,651 - 1,525,651
- - - (5,117 - (5,117 5,117 -
- - - (210,179 - (210,179 - (210,179
- - - - - - (6,672 (6,672
- - - (1,398,570 - (1,398,57C - (1,398,57C
- - - - (830; (830 - (830
$ 4,065000 $ 17,442 $ 5,710,93¢ $ (665,575 $ (64,890 $ 9,062,911 $ 16,756 $ 9,079,667

See accompanying notes.
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PUBLIC STORAGE
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2019 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 1525651 $ 1,717,22¢ $ 1,448,46%
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows
from operating activities:

Gain due to Shurgard public offering - (151,616 -
Gain on real estate investmesales (341 (37,903 (1,421
Assets damaged due to hurricanes - - 3,286
Depreciation and amortization 512,918 483,64¢€ 454,52€
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated real estate entities (69,547 (103,495 (75,655
Distributions from retained earnings of unconsolidated

real estate entities 73,259 109,754 53,749
Foreign currency exchange (gain) loss (7,829 (18,117 50,045
Sharebased compensation expense 25,833 69,936 37,548
Other 7,699 (5,791 2,346

Total adjustments 541,992 346,414 524,424

Net cash flows from operating activities 2,067,643 2,063,637 1,972,88¢

Cas flows from investing activities:
Payments for capital expenditures to maintain real estate facilitie

Costs incurred during the period (175,981 (127,966 (111,631
Costs incurred in previous periods (11,331 (13,005 (8,964
Payments for development and expansion of real estate facilitie:
Costs incurred during the period (203,331 (281,240 (289,238
Costs incurred in previous periods (81,351 (58,792 (48,055
Acquisitionof real estate facilities and intangible assets (437,758 (181,020 (285,279
Distributions in excess of retained earnings from
unconsolidated real estate entities 11,630 91,927 -
Proceeds from sale of real estate investments 762 54,184 6,103
Net cash flows used in investing activities (897,360 (515,912 (737,064
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments on notes payable (1,920 (1,784 (1,701
Issuance of notes payable, net of issuance costs 496,900 - 992,077
Issuance of preferred shares 1,059,15¢€ - 561,177
Issuance of common shares 33,564 12,525 42,500
Redemption of preferred shares (1,050,000 - (922,500
Cash paid upon vesting of restricted share units (12,162 (12,347 (14,092
Acquisition of noncontrolling interests (35,000 - (14,425
Contributions bynoncontrolling interests 4,148 1,720 2,484
Distributions paid to preferred shareholders,
common shareholders and restricted share unitholders (1,608,749 (1,612,68C (1,630,347
Distributions paid to noncontrollinipterests (6,672 (7,022 (7,392
Net cash flows used in financing activities (1,120,735 (1,619,588 (992,219
Net cash flows from operating, investing, and financing activities 49,548 (71,863 243,60€
Net effect of foreign exchange translation (13) a71 (126
Increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents, including restricted cas $ 49535 $ (72,034 % 243,48C

See accompanying notes.
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PUBLIC STORAGE
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2019 2018 2017
Cash and equivalents, including restricted cash at beginning of the p
Cash and equivalents $ 361,218 $ 433,37¢  $ 183,688
Restricted cash included in other assets 22,801 22,677 28,885

$ 384,019 $ 456,053 $ 212,573

Cash and equivalents, including restricted cash at end of the period:
Cash and equivalents $ 409,743 $ 361,218  $ 433,37€
Restricted cash included in other assets 23,811 22,801 22,677
$ 433,554 $ 384,01¢ $ 456,053

Supplemental schedule of nowtash investing and
financing activities:

Costs incurred during the period remaining unpaid at period end for:

Capital expenditures to maintain real estate facilities $ (16,558 $ (11,431 $ (13,149
Construction or expansion of real estate facilities (32,356 (81,157 (60,474
Accrued and other liabilities 48,914 92,588 73,623
Real estate acquired in exchange for assumption of notes payable (1,817 - -
Notes payable assumed in connection with acquisition of real estate 1,817 - -

Reclassification of existing investment to real estate in connection

with property acquisition (Note 3):
Real estatéacilities - - (6,310
Investments in unconsolidated real estate entities - - 6,310

Other disclosures:

Foreign currency translation adjustment:

Real estate facilities, net of accumulated depreciation $ - 8 203 $ (659
Investments in unconsolidated real estate entities 830 15,997 (29,370
Notes payable (7,842 (18,285 49,906
Accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss) 6,999 1,914 (30,003

See accompanying notes.
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PUBLIC STORAGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

Description of the Business

Public Storage (referred to herein as fthe Compa
invest ment trust (AREITO), was organized in 1980. (0]
operation of selstorage facilities which offr storage spaces for lease, generally on a rtoattonth basis, for
personal and business use, ancillary activities such as merchandise sales and tenant reinsurance to the tenants at
our selfstorage facilities, as well as the acquisition and developaiextditional selstorage space.

At December 31, 2019, we have diraad indirect equity interests h483self-storage facilities (with
approximatelyl69 million net rentable square feet) located3®is t at es i n t he United State
under the @APubl i0O®mildn oet rangablédquanedestef conanerdial and retail space.

We own 31.3 million common shares (an approxim&88% interest) of Shurgard Self Storage SA
( A S h uY)agpabticccampany traded on Euronext Brusselunder t he ASHUR®@34seiffmbol , w
storage facilities (with approximatell8 million net rentable square feet) locatedsevenWestern European
countries, all/l operating under the @A SHKA22caonmemeqaity na me .
interest in PS Business Par ks, l nc. (APSBO) , a REIT
symbol, which own27.6 million aggregate net rentable square feet of commercial properties, primarily multi
tenant industrial, flex, and office space, locatedixstates

Disclosures of the number and square footage of facilities, as well as the number and coverage of tenant
reinsurance policies (Note 13) are unaudited and outside the scope of our independent registered public
accounting firmds review of our financi al statements
Accounting Oversight Board (U.S.).

Summay of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements are presented on an accrual basis in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (AGAAPO) as defi nedStandardshe Fi n:
Codification (the fACodificationo).

Certain amounts previously reported in @@&cember 312018and 2017 inancial statements have been
reclassified to conform to tHeecember 312019 presentation, including separate presentation dbtatements
of Cash Flows of our cash payments for real estate investments between cash paid for amounts incurred during
the current period and amountsuned during previous periods.

Consolidation and Equity Method of Accounting

We consider entitestbe Vari abl e I nterest Entities (AVI Esod)
finance their activities without additional subordinated financial support provided by other parties, or the equity
holders as a group do not have a controlling financial intek&st consolidate VIEs when we have (i) the power
to direct the activities most significantly impacting economic performance, and (ii) either the obligation to absorb
losses or the right to receive benefits from the VIE. We have no involvement with aayaimelEs. We
consolidate all other entities when we control them through voting shares or contractual rights. The entities we
consolidate, for the period in which the reference a
we elimirate intercompany transactions and balances.
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PUBLIC STORAGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

We account for our investments in entities that we do not consolidate but have significant influence over
using the equity method of accounting. These entities, for the periods in which the referenceaappéésrred
to collectively as the AUnconsol tedtitytprefils alRidosdes aRds t at e
amortizing any differences between the cost of our investment and the underlying equity in net assets against
equity in earnings a$ the Unconsolidated Real Estate Entity were a consolidated subsidiary. Equity in earnings
of unconsolidated real estate entities represents ourafacshare of the earnings of the Unconsolidated Real
Estate Entities.

When we begin consolidating antiy we reflect our preexisting equity interest at book value. All
changes irtonsolidation status are reflected prospectively.

Collectively, at December 31, 291the Company and ttgubsidiaries owi2 483 self-storage facilities
andfour commercial facilities in the U.S. At Decemi&dr, 20D, the Unconsolidated Real Estate Entities are
comprised of PSBind Shurgard.

Use of Estimates

The financial statements and accompanying notes reflect our estimates and assumptions. Actual results
coud differ from those estimates and assumptions.

Income Taxes

We have elected to be treated as a REIT, as defined in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the ACoded) . As a REI T, we do 100%0of our RECTtexabld ircaher a | i nc
each year, and if we meet certain organizational and operational rules. We believe we have met these REIT
requirements for all periods presented herein. Accordingly, we have recorded no federal income tax expense
related to our REIT taxddincome.

Our merchandise and tenant reinsurance operations are subject to corporate income tax and such taxes
are included in ancillary cost of operations. We also incur income and other taxes in certain states, which are
included in general and admstriative expense.

We recognize tax benefits of uncertain income tax positions that are subject to audit only if we believe
it is more likely than not that the position would ultimately be sustained assuming the relevant taxing authorities
had full knowlelge of the relevant facts and circumstances of our positions. As of December @v@bhd
notax benefits that were not recognized.

Real Estate Facilities

Real estate facilities are recorded at cost. We capitalize all costs incurred to acquiop, dewnstruct,
renovate and improve facilities, including interest and property taxes inclumied the construction period. We
allocate the net acquisition cost of acquired real estate facilities to the underlying land, buildings, and identified
intangble assets based upon their respective individual estimated fair values.

Costs associated with dispositions of real estate, as well as repairs and maintenance costs, are expensed
as incurred. We depreciate buildings and improvements on a stiiagliasis over estimated useful lives
ranging generally betwedito 25 years

When we sell a full or partial interest in a real estate facility without retaining a controlling interest
following sale, we recognize a gain or loss on sale #30¢60f the prorty was sold at fair value. If we retain
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PUBLIC STORAGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

a controlling interest following the saleie record a noncontrolling interest for the book value of the partial
interest sold, and recognize additional paictapital for the difference between the consideratemeived and
the partial interest at book value.

Other Assets

Other assets primarily consist of rents receivable from our tenants, prepaid exgestseted cashnd
right-to-use assets (Note 12)

Accrued and Other Liabilities

Accrued and otheliabilities consist primarily of rents prepaid by our tenants, trade payables, property
tax accruals, accrued payroll, accrued tenansteance losses, lease liabilitigéote 12) and contingent loss
accruals when probable and estimable. We believiaithealue of our accrued and other liabilities approximates
book value, dug@rimarily to the short period until repayment. We disclose the nature of significant unaccrued
losses that are reasonably possible of occurring and, if estimable, a rangesoirexp

Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash, Marketable Securities and Other Financial Instruments

Cash equivalents represent highly liquid financial instruments such as money market funds with daily
liquidity or shortterm commercial paper or treasury sé@es maturing within three months of acquisition. Cash
and equivalents which are restricted from general corporate use are included in other assets. We believe that the
book value of all such financial instruments for all periods presented approxiiaatealue, due to the short
period to maturity.

Fair Value

As used herein, the term fAfair valueo is the pric
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. Our estimdadswaiue involve considerable
judgment and are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized in current market exchanges.

We estimate the fair value of our cash and equivalents, marketable securities, other assets, debt, and
otherliabilities by discounting the related future cash flows at a rate based upon quoted interest rates for securities
that have similar characteristics such as credit quality and time to maturity. Such quoted interest rates are referred
to gener all I2y0 aisn pfiuLtesv.e

We use significant judgment to estimate fair values of investments in real estate, goodwill, and other
intangible assets. In estimating their values, we consider significant unobservable inputs such as market prices
of land, market capitalizion rates, expected returns, earnings multiples, projected levels of earnings, costs of
construction, and functional depreciation. These ing

Currency and Credit Risk

Financial instruments that are expdge credit risk consist primarily of cash and equivalents, certain
portions of other assets including rents receivable from our tenants and restricted cash. Cash equivalents we
invest in are either money market funds with a rating of at least AAAbylStand & Poor 6s, commer
that is rated A1 by Standard & Poorés or deposits wit
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At December 31, 2, due primarily to our investment in Shurgard (Note 4) and our notes payable
denominated in Euros (Note 6), our opgmgtesults and financial position are affected by fluctuations in currency
exchange rates between the Euro, and to a lesser extent, other European currencies, agairisotlae.U.S.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are comprise#dyjoodvi | | , t he AShurgardo trade name al

Goodwill totaled$174.6million at December 31, 2@land 208. The AShurgardo trade
used by Shurgard pursuant to a-fesed licensing agreement, has a book val@&®8million at December 31,
2019 and 208. Goodwill and the AShurgardo trade name have

Our finite-lived assetare comprised primarily of acquired customers in ptawbare amortized relative
to the benefit oftte customers in place toaeperiod. At Decembedl, 2019 these intangibles had a net book
valueof $12.5 million ($16.5 million at DecembeB1, 2018. Accumulatecamortization totaled 27 .5million at
December 31, 2®1($296 million at December 31, 2@}, and amortization expense $16.8 million, $16.6
million and$15.0 million was recorded in 2@ 2018 and 20%, respectively. The estimated future amortization
expense for our finitdived intangible assets at December 2119 is approximately$10.8 million in 202Q $1.3
million in 2021and$0.4 million thereafter. During 204, 2018 and 20%, intangibles increase$il8.5 million,
$11.6 million and $17.2 million, respectively in connection with the acquisition eélfstorage facilitiegNote
3).

Evaluation of Asset Impairment

We evaluate our real estate and fiditeed intangible assets for impairment each quarter. If there are
indicators of impairment and we determine that the asset is not recoverable framuhdiscounted cash flows
to be received through the assetb6s remaining |ife (
i mpairment charge to the extent the carrying amount e
expeced disposal.

We evaluate our investments in unconsolidated real estate entities for impairment on a quarterly basis.
We record an impairment charge to the extent the carrying amount exceeds estimated fair value, when we believe
any such shortfall is o#r than temporary.

We evaluate goodwill for impairment annually and whenever relevant events, circumstances and other
related factors indicate that fair value of the related reporting unit may be less than the carrying amount. If we
determine that the fair value of the rejireg unit exceeds the aggregate carrying amount, no impairment charge
is recorded. Otherwise, we record an impairment charge to the extent the carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds
the amount that would be allocated to goodwill if the reporting uniéwequired for estimated fair value.

We evaluate other indefindlei ved i ntangible assets, such as the
at least annually and whenever relevant events, circumstances and other related factors indicate thaluee fair v
is less than the carrying amount. When we conclude that it is likely that the asset is not impaired, we do not
record an impairment charge and no further analysis is performed. Otherwise, we record an impairment charge
to the extent the carryingamint exceeds the assetods estimated fair ve

No impairments were recorded in any of our evaluations for any period presented herein.
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Casualty Loss

We record casualty losses for a) the book value of assets destroyed and b) incremental repai;, clean
and other costs associated with the casualty. Insurance proceeds are recorded as a reduction in casualty loss when
all uncertainties of collection are satisfied. During 2017, we incurred casualty losses tbfa8nmgillion,
comprised ofs3.3million in book value of assets damaged &ddb million in repairs and maintenance incurred
in connection with Hurricanes Harvey and Irma.

Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenues from seBtorage facilities, which are primarily composed of rental income eaursdant
to monthto-month leases, as well as associated late charges and administrative fees, are recognized as earned.
Promotional discounts reduce rental income over the promotional period, which is generally one month. Ancillary
revenues and intereshd other income are recognized when earned.

We accrue for property tax expense based upon actual amounts billed and, in some circumstances,
estimates when bills or assessments have not been received from the taxing authorities. If these estimates are
incorrect, the timing and amount of expense recognition could be incorrect. Cost of operations (including
advertising expenditures), general and administrative expense, and interest expense are expensed as incurred.

Foreign Currency Exchange Translation

The local currency (primarily the Euro) is the functional currency for our interests in foreign operations.
The related balance sheet amounts are translated into U.S. Dollars at the exchange rates at the respective financial
statement date, while amosmn our statements of income are translated at the average exchange rates during
the respective period. When financial instruments denominated in a currency other than the U.S. Dollar are
expected to be settled in cash in the foreseeable future, thetiofpzhanges in the U.®ollar equivalent are
reflected in current earnings. The Euro was translated at exchangef igdesoximatelyl.122 U.S. Dollars per
Euro at December 31, 291{1.144 at DecembeB1, 20B), and average exchange rate4.4P0, 1.181and1.129
for the years ended December 31,2@018 and 20%, respectively. Cumulative translation adjustments, to the
extent not included in cumulative net income, are included in equity as a compdrestumulated other
comprehensive incomeods).

Comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive income represents net income, adjusted for changes in other comprehensive income
(loss) for the applicable period. The aggregate foreign currency exchange gains and losses reflected on our
statements of coprehensive income are comprised primarily of foreign currency exchange gains and losses on
our investment in Shurgard and our unsecured notes denominated in Euros.

Net Income per Common Share

Net income is allocated to (i) noncontrolling interests basenh tipeir share of the net income of the
Subsidiaries, (ii) preferred shareholders, to the extent redemption cost exceeds the related original net issuance
proceeds (4a2n aflHIlolcFatD ono) , and (iii) the r eqiyi ning
securities based upon the dividends declared or accumulated during the period, combined with participation rights
in undistributed earnings.

Basic and diluted net income per common share are each calculated based upon net income allocable to

comma shareholders presented on the face of our income statement, divided by (i) in the case of basic netincome
per common share, weighted average common shares, and (ii) in the case of diluted incomenopeshare,
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weighted average common shares adjufstethe impact, if dilutive, of stock options outstanding (Note 10). The
following table reconciles from basic to diluted common shares outstanding (amounts in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,
2019 2018 2017

Weighted average common shares and equivalent
outstanding:
Basic weighted average common
shares outstanding 174,287 173,969 173,613
Net effect of dilutive stock options
based on treasury stock method 243 328 538
Diluted weighted average common
shares outstanding 174,530 174,297 174,151

3. Real Estate Facilities

Activity in real estate facilities during 2012018 and 207 is as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2019 2018 2017
(Amounts in thousands)
Operating facilities, atost:

Beginning balance $ 15,296,844 $ 14,665,98S $ 13,963,22¢
Costs incurred for capital expenditures to maintain
real estate facilities 192,539 139,397 124,780
Acquisitions 421,097 169,436 274,115
Dispositions (426 (25,633 (1,092
Hurricane damage - - (8,226
Developed or expanded facilities opened for operatior 379,092 348,270 311,559
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes - (615 1,624
Ending balance 16,289,14¢ 15,296,844 14,665,98¢
Accumulated depreciation:
Beginning balance (6,140,072 (5,700,331 (5,270,963
Depreciation expense (483,408 (457,029 (433,466
Dispositions 5 16,876 123
Hurricane damage - - 4,940
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes - 412 (965,
Ending balance (6,623,475 (6,140,072 (5,700,331
Construction in process:
Beginning balance 285,339 264,441 230,310
Costs incurred for development and expansion
of real estate facilities 235,687 362,397 349,712
Developed or expanded facilities opened for operatior (379,092 (348,270 (311,559
Dispositions - (2,698 (4,022
Transfer from other assets - 9,469 -
Ending balance 141,934 285,339 264,441
Total real estate facilities at December 31, $ 9,807,605 $ 9,442,111 $ 9,230,09¢

F-15



PUBLIC STORAGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

During 2019, weacquiredd4 self-storage facilities andnecommercial facility 8,133000net rentable
square feet of storage space af6j000net rentable square feet of commercial space), for a total cost of
$439.6 million, conssting of $437.8 million in cash and the assumption $1.8million in mortgage notes.
Approximately$18.5 million of the total cost was allocated to intangible assets. We completed development and
redevelopment activities costig$79.1 million during 2019 adding3.7 million net rentable square feet of self
storage space. Construction in process at December 31, 2019 consists of projects to develogsimeagself
facilities and expand existing sedforagefacilities.

During 2019, we paid a totalf$284.7 million with respect to the development and expansion of real
estate facilities, includin§81.4 million to repay amouts accrued at December 31, 2018f the $235.7 million
in costs incurred during 201932.4 million remains unpaid at Decemb#t, 2019.

During 2019 we paid a total 0$187.3 million with respect to capital expenditures to maintain real estate
facilities, including$11.3million to repay amounts accrued at December 31, 20f8he$1925 million in costs
incurred during 2019516.6million remains unpaid at December 31, 2019

During 2018, we acquire®b self-storage facilities.6 million net rentable square feet), for a total cost
of $181.0million in cash, of whict$11.6million was allocated to intangible assets. We completed development
and redevelopment activities costifigd8.3million during 2018, addin®.0 million net rentable square feet of
self-storage space. Construction in process at December 31, 2018xohgisjects to develop new sslorage
facilities and redevelop existing salforage facilities. On October 18, 2018, we sold our property in West London
to Shurgardfor $42.1million and recorded a related gain on sale of real estate of approxirgateBmillion.

This gain was net of the recognition of a cumulative other comprehensive loss tbta8ngjllion with respect

to foreign currency translation. On October 25, 2018, we sold a commercial faci$8fanillion and recorded

a related gin on sale of real estate of approximat®y6émillion. During 2018, we also sold portions of real
estate facilities in connection with eminent domain proceedindgg3fdmillion in cash proceeds and recorded a
related gain osale of real estate of ppximately$18 million. During 2018, we also transferr&8.5million

of accumulated construction costs from other assets to construction in process.

During 2018, we paid a total 40,0 million with respect to the development and expansion of real
edate facilities, including58.8 million to repay amounts accrued at December 31, 2017. G364 million
in costs incurred during 201881.2 million remained unpaid at December 31, 2018.

During 2018, we paid a total §1410 million with respect to capital expenditures to maintain real estate
facilities, including$13.0 million to repay amounts accrued at December 31, 2017. @L8&4 million in costs
incurred during 2018511.4 million remainedunpaid at December 31, 281

During 2017, we acquired? self-storage facilities from third partied,865,00het rentable square
feet), for a total cost 0$149.8million, in cash. Approximatel$8.2 million of the total cost was allocated to
intangible assetsOn DecembeB1,2017, we acquired the remainiiig.25%of the interests which we did not
own in one of the unconsolidated entities that owh2delfstorage facilities{49,000net rentable square feet)
for a total cost of6135.5million in cash. Approximately$9.0 million of the$141.8million acquisition cost
(which includes thé6.3 million book value of our existing investment) was allocated to intangible assets and
$0.3million was allocated to other assets.

We completed development and redevelopment activitigagl@017, addin@.7 million net rentable
square feet of seltorage space, at an aggregate co$Btf..6million. During 2017, we sold real estate for a
total of approximately64 million in cash proceeds, of whi&0.3million was collected in 2016, and recorded
a related gain on real estate investment sales of approxirdtélgillion in 2017.
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During 2017, wepaid a total of$337.3 million with respect to the development and expansion of real
estate facilities, inclding $48.1 million to repay amounts accrued at December 31, 2016. G¥3d&@7 million
in costs incurred during 2@1$60.5 million remained unpaid at December 31, 2017.

During 2017, we pd a total 0f$120.6 million with respect to capital expenditutesmaintain real estate
facilities, including$9.0 million to repay amounts accrued at December 31, 2016. GHl2#8 million in costs
incurred during 207, $13.1 million remainedunpaid at December 31, 2017.

At December 31, 2® the adjusted basis ofal estate facilities for U.S. federal tax purposes was
approximately$106 billion (unaudited.

Investments in Unconsolidated Real Estate Entities

The following table sets forth our investments in, and equity in earnings of, the Unconsolidated Real
Estate Entities (amounts in thousands):

Investments in Unconsolidated R Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Real Este

Entities at December 31, Entities for the Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018 2019 2018 2017
PSB $ 427875 $ 434533 $ 54,090 $ 89,362 $ 46,544
Shurgard 339,941 349,455 15,457 14,133 25,948
Other Investments - - - - 3,163
Total $ 767,816 $ 783,988 $ 69,547 $ 103,495 % 75,655

Investment in PSB

Throughout all periods presented, we owdethb8,354s har es of PSBO® s7,305038dBmon st o
limited partnership units in an operating partnership controlled by PSB, representing an aggregate approximately
42% common equity interest. The limited partnership units are convertible at our cpilgect to certain
conditions, on @nefor-one basis into PSB commatock.

Based upon the closing price at December 31, 26168487 per share of PSB common stock), the
shares and units we owned had a market value of approxingatélgillion.

Ourequity in earnings of PSB is comprised of our e
of the PSB Basis Differential (defined below).

During 2019, 2018, and027, we received cash distributions from PSB total®ég.7 million,
$550 million, and $492 million, respectively

At December 31, 2019, our proat a i nvestment in PSBdéds real est at
unconsolidatedeal estate entities exceeds our-prat a share of the wunderl ying amo
by approxmately $4.2 million (374 mi | I i on at December 31, 2018) . Thi
Differential 0) is being amortized as a reduction to ¢

Such amortization totaled approximaté.2 million, $18 million, and $1.3 million during 2019, 2018, and
2017, respectively.

PSBis a publicly held entityraded on the New York Stock Exchange undersghabolfi P S.B 0
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Investment in Shurgard

Throughout all periods presented, we effectively owniiaictly and indirectly31,268,459Shurgard

common sharesOn October 15, 2018, Shurgard compl eted an in
25.0million of its common shares to third parties at a pricé @ #er share, reducing our ownershigerest to
approximately35% Foll owing the Offering, Shurgardds shares

symbol. Werecorded @& Gadue t o Shur ga ofél5pounblibnj as if we had sofd a prapartionate
share of our investment in Shurgard. The gain resulte@1740 million increase in our investment in Shurgard
and a$224 million reduction in other comprehensive loss with respect to cumulative foreigamcuyrranslation
losses for Shurgard.

Based upon the closing price¢cember 31, 2@1(134.00 per share of SHUR common stock lat22
exchange rate of US Dollars to the Euro), the shares we owned had a market value of appr&diatbign.

Our equity in earnings of Shurgard is comprisgfdour equity share of Shurgdrds n et i ncome,
$1.0million, $1.3 million, and$1.3 million for 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, represerdinmgequity share
of the trademark license fees that Shurgagady s t o us for the use of the fAShurt
license fees we receive from Shurgard are classified as interest and other income on our income statement.

The dividends we receive from Shurgard, combined with our equity share ofmtrddécense fees

collected from Shurgard, are reflected on our stat eme
unconsolidated real estate entitiesodo to the extent
Adi striibuexoemss of retained earnings fromu®nm@dnsol i de

sharein dividends to its shareholders during 2019, of which our studeded $23.1 million. During 2018,
Shurgard paid a cashvitiend to its shareholdegat the time, of which our equity share \§4g5.4million.

Changes in foreign currency exchange rates decreased our investrSénirgardby approximately
$0.8 million and$16.0 million in 2019 and2018, respectivelyandincreased it byapproximately$19.4million
in 2017.
Shurgard is a publicly held entity trading on Eur

Other Investments

On DecembeBl, 2017, we acquired the remainirg.25%equity interest we did not own i legacy
institutional partnershigthe AOther Investments or $135.5million, in cash, and began to consolidate the
12 selfstorage facilities owned by the Other Investments.

Credit Facility

We have a revolving credit &50miliemberrowinglimitwkichii Cr edi t

was amended on April 19, 2019 to (i) extend thaturity date fromMarch 31, 2020to April 19, 2024

(i) decrease the current effective borrowing spread over LIBOR &&%0%to 0.70% and (iii) decrease the

current effective facility fee &m 0.080%to 0.070% All other terms remained substantially the sammounts

drawn on the Credit Facility bear annual interest asnataging from LIBOR plu8.70%to LIBOR plus1.350%

depending uporthe ratio of our Total Indebtedness to Gross AS&dtie (as defined in the Credit Facility)

(LIBOR plus0.70% at December 31, 2@ We are also required to paygaarterlyfacility fee ranging from

0.07% per annum td®.250%per annum depending upon the ratio of our Total Indebtedness to our Gross Asset

Value 0.070% per annumat DecembeBl, 2019. At December 31, 2®@land Februar 25, 2019 we hadno

outstanding borrowings under this Credit Facility. We had undrawn stdetiérs of credit, which reduce our
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borrowing capacitytotaling $15.9 million at DecembeB1, 20B ($16.2 million at December 31, 2@&). The
Credit Facility has various customary restrictive covenants, all of which we iwetempliance with at
Decembe31, 20B.

6. Notes Payable
Our notes payable at December 31,28fd 208 are set forth in the table below:

Amounts at December 31, 2019

Coupon Effective Unamortize: Book Fair
Rate Rate Principal Costs Value Value
($ amounts in thousands)

U.S. Dollar Denominated Unsecured Debt

Notes dueseptember 15, 2022 2.370% 2.483% $ 500,00C $ (1,419 $ 498,581 $ 505,63¢
Notes dueseptember 15, 2027 3.094% 3.218% 500,00C (4,076 495,924 520,694
Notes dueMay 1, 2029 3.385% 3.459% 500,00C (2,876 497,124 531,911

1,500,00(¢ (8,371 1,491,62¢ 1,558,24¢

Euro Denominated Unsecured Debt

Notes duApril 12, 2024 1.540% 1.540% 112,15€ - 112,15€ 115,932
Notes dueéNovember 3, 2025 2.175% 2.175% 271,432 - 271,433 298,39¢
383,58¢ - 383,58¢ 414,33C

MortgageDebt secured b7
real estate facilities with a net
book value of$105.7million 4.025% 3.995% 27,275 - 27,275 28,506

$ 1910864 $ (8371 $ 1,902,491 $  2,001,08C

Amounts at
December 31, 2018
Book Fair
Value Value
($ amounts in thousands)

U.S. Dollar Denominated Unsecured Debt

Notes dueSeptember 15, 2022 $ 498,053 $ 482,017
Notes dueSeptember 15, 2027 495,39€ 469,05E
Notes dueMay 1, 2029 - -
993,44¢ 951,072
Euro Denominated Unsecured Debt
Notes duedpril 12, 2024 114,44¢ 115,964
Notes dueNovember 3, 2025 276,982 286,078
391,431 402,042
Mortgage Debt 27,403 27,613

$ 1,412,28: $ 1,380,727
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U.S.Dollar Denominated Unsecured Notes

On September 18, 201We issued, in a public offeringyvo tranches each totalir§00.0million of
U.S. Dollar denominated unsecured notes. In connection with the offering, we incurred ag@tahaflion in
costswhich is reflected as a reduction in the principal amount and amortized, using the effective interest method,
over the term of each respective note. Interest on such notes is payablnseally on March 15 and
Septembel5 of each year, commencing Mharl5, 2018.

On April 12, 2019 we completed a public offering 800 million in aggregate principal amount of
senior notes bearing interest at an annual rate385%maturing onMay 1, 2029 In connection with the
offering, we incurred a total &3.1 million in costs. The notes issued on April 12, 2019 and on September 18,
2017 are referred to hereinafter as the AU. S. Dol | ar

The U.S. Dollar Notes have various financial covenants, all of which we were in compliance with at
December 31, 2019ncluded in these covenants are (a) a maximum Debt to Total As§&&¢hpproximately
5% at December 31, 2019) and (b) a minimum ratio of Adjusted EBITDA to Interest Expenké&xof
(approximatelyd7x for the twelve months ended December 31, 2019adlsas covenants limiting the amount
we can encumber our propertigh mortgage debt.

Euro Denominated Unsecured Notes

Our euro denominated unsecured notes (the AEuro |
Euro Notes consist dfvo trarches, (i))u 2 4 gillidh issued onNovember 3, 201%or $264.3million in net
proceeds upon converting the Euros to U.S. Dollars andi(fi) 0 fillidh issued onApril 12, 2016 for
$113.6million in net proceeds upon converting the Euros to U.S. Dollatsrest is payable serannually. The
Euro Notes have various customary financial covenants, all of which we were in compliance with at D8&ember
20109.

We reflect changes in the U.S. Dollar equivalent of the amount payable, as a result of chiamgigmin

exchange rates as fiforeign currency ex &m8milligneandgai n (|
$181 million for 2019 and 2018, respectively, as compared to a I085@0million for 2017).

Mortgage Notes

Our nonrecourse mortgagdebt was assumed in connection with property acquisitions, and recorded at
fair value with any premium or discount to the stated note balance amortized using the effective interest method.

During 2019 we assumed a mortgage note with a contractual wdilig.8 million and an interest rate
of 3.9% which approximated market rate, in connection with the acquisition of a real estate facility.

At December 31, 2019, the related contractual interest rates are fixed, reatyiegr3.2%and7.1%
and mature betweelanuary 1, 2B2 andJuly 1, 2@0.

At December 31, 2019, approximate principal maturities of our Notes Payable are as follows (amounts
in thousands):
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Unsecured Mortgage
Debt Debt Total

2020 $ -8 2,015 2,015
2021 - 1,871 1,871
2022 500,000 2,584 502,584
2023 - 19,219 19,219
2024 112,156 124 112,280
Thereafter 1,271,433 1,462 1,272,89%

$ 1,883,589 $ 27,275 $ 1,910,864
Weighted average effective rate 2.8% 4.0% 2.9%

Cash paidor interesttotaled$48.3 million, $36.3 million and $16.8 million for 2019, 2018 and 207,
respectively. Interest capitalized as real estate togd&dnmillion, $4.8 million and$4.4 million for 2019, 2018
and2017, respectively.

Noncontrolling Interests

At December 31, 2@ the noncontrolling interests represent (i) thpatty equity interests in
subsidiarie®wning18 operating selstorage facilities anseven self-storage facilities that are under construction
and (i) 231,978partnership units held by thiphlrties in a subsidiary that are convertible on afon®ne basis
(subject to certain limitationgnto common shares of the Company at the optionefitiitholder (collectively,

the ANoncontrolling | n9 theNerxdanisoling Intereststcaniberegeirmibsdorredeem ,

their interests, other than pursuant to a liquidation of the subsidiary.

During 201, 2018 and 20%, we allocateda total of $5.1 million, $62 million and $6.2 million,
respectively, of income to these interests; and we $&idimillion, $7.0 million and$7.4 million, respectively,
in distributions to these interests.

During 2019, we acquired noncontrolling irgsts for an aggregate $85.0million (nonefor 2018)in
cash, of whict11.1million was allocated to Noncontrolling Interests, with the remainder allocated teérPaid
Capital. During 2017, we acquired Noncontrolling Interests¥b4.4million in cash, of whiclt$7.7million was
allocated to Paidh capital andb6.7 million as a reduction to Noncontrolling Interests. During 2018 and
2017, Noncontrolling Interest contributed$4.1million, $1.7million and $2.5 million, respectively to our
subsidiaries

Shareholdersé Equity

Preferred Shares

At December 31,2@and 20B, we had the following series of
Shareso) outstanding:
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At December 31, 2019 At Decembef31, 2018
Earliest
Redemption  Dividend Shares Liquidation Shares Liquidation
Series Date Rate Outstanding Preference  Outstanding Preference
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Series U 6/15/2017 5.625% - % - 11,500 $ 287,500
Series V 9/20/2017 5.375% 19,800 495,000 19,800 495,000
Series W 1/16/2018 5.200% 20,000 500,000 20,000 500,000
Series X 3/13/2018 5.200% 9,000 225,000 9,000 225,000
Series Y 3/17/2019 6.375% - - 11,400 285,000
Series Z 6/4/2019 6.000% - - 11,500 287,500
Series A 12/2/2019 5.875% - - 7,600 190,000
Series B 1/20/2021 5.400% 12,000 300,000 12,000 300,000
Series C 5/17/2021 5.125% 8,000 200,000 8,000 200,000
Series D 7/20/2021 4.950% 13,000 325,000 13,000 325,000
Series E 10/14/2021 4.900% 14,000 350,000 14,000 350,000
Series F 6/2/2022 5.150% 11,200 280,000 11,200 280,000
Series G 8/9/2022 5.050% 12,000 300,000 12,000 300,000
Series H 3/11/2024 5.600% 11,400 285,000 - -
Series | 9/12/2024 4.875% 12,650 316,250 - -
Series J 11/15/2024 4.700% 10,350 258,750 - -
Series K 12/20/2024 4.750% 9,200 230,000 - -

Total Preferred Shares 162,600 $ 4,065,000 161,000 $ 4,025,00C

The holders of our Preferred Shares have general preference rights with respect to liquidation, quarterly
distributions and anycaumulated unpaid distributions. Except as noted below, holders of the Preferred Shares
do not have voting rights. In the event of a cumulative arrearage eiabpaarterly dividends, holders of all
outstanding series of preferred shares (votingsiisghe class without regard to series) will have the right to elect
twoadditi onal members to serve on our board of trust e:
Decamber 3, 2019, there wemeo dividends in arrears. The affirmative vatieat leas66.67%of the outstanding
shares of a series of Preferred Shares is required for any material and adverse amendment to the terms of such
series. The affirmative vote of at le&&.67%0f the outstanding shares of all of our Preferred Shaotisg as
a single class, is required to issue shares ranking senior to our Preferred Shares.

Except under certain conditions relating to the C
are not redeemable prior to the dates indicated on the table above. On or after the respective dates, each of the
series of Preferred Shares is redelgimat our option, in whole or in part, $25.00per depositary share, plus
accrued and unpaid dividends. Holders of the Preferred Shares cannot require us to redeem such shares.

Upon issuance of our Preferred Shares, we classify the liquidation vaprefaged equity on our
balance sheet with any issuance costs recorded as a reductionito ¢gaidal.
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In 2019, we redeemed our Series U, Series Y, Series Z and Series A Preferred Shares, at par, for a total
of $1.05billion in cash, before payment atcrued dividends.

In 2019 we issued an aggregatd.6 million depositary shares, each represen@r@lof a share of
our Seried, Series |, Seriesahd SerieX Preferred Shares, at an issuance prick26{00per depositary share,
for a total of$1.09billion in gross proceeds, and we incuri®&80.8 million in issuance costs.

In 2017, we redeemed our Series S and Series T Preferred Shares, at par, for §8@2abwofillion in
cash, before payment of accrued dividends.

In 2017, we issuedn aggregat@3.2 million depostary shares, each representih§01 of a share of
our Series F and Series G Preferred Shares, at an issuance [#&&0@fper depositary share, for a total of
$580.0million in gross proceeds, and we incurf&B8 milli on in issuance costs.

In 2019 and 20%, we recorde&327 million and$29.3 million, respectively, in EITF B42 allocations
of income from our common shareholders to the holders of our Preferred Shares in connection with redemptions
of Preferred Shares

Common Shares

During 2010, 2018 and 20%, activity with respect to the issuance of our common shares was as follows
(dollar amounts in thousands):

2019 2018 2017
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
Employee stoclbased compensation &
exercise of stock optits (Note 10) 287,734 $ 33,564 277,511 $ 12,525 564,583 $ 42,500

Our Board previously ahorized the repurchase from time to time of ug%c million of our common
shares on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. Through Decembe®,34e 28fiurchased
approximately23.7million shares pursuant to this authorizatinane of which were repurchased during the three
years ended December 31, 201

At December 31, 2@.and 208, we had2,958,87 and 3,138,618, respectively, of common shares
reserved in connection with our shdrased incentive plans (see Note 10), 28,98 shares reserved for the
conversion of partnership units owned by Noncontrolling Interests

The unaudited characterization of dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes is made based upon
earnings and profits of the Company, as defined by the Codexm@n share dividends including amounts paid
to our restricted share unitholders totakdd39® billion ($8.00per share)$1.3% billion ($8.00per share) and
$1.394 billion ($8.00 per share) for the years ended December 319,218 and 20%, respectively. Preferred
sharadividends totale®210.2 million, $216.3 million and$236.5 million for the years ended December 31,201
2018 and 20%, respectively
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For the tax year ended December 31,2@istributions for the common shares andtalvarious series
of preferred shares weotassified as follows:

2019 (unaudited)

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Ordinary Income 100.0(% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Long-Term Capital Gain 0.0(% 0.0(% 0.0(% 0.0(%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0(% 100.0(%

The ordinary income dividends distributed for the tax year ended December 9r20iot qualified
dividends under the Internal Revenue Code, however, they are subject to the 20% deduction under IRS
Section199A

9. Related Party Transactions

B. Wayne Hughes, our former Chairman and his family, including his daughter Tamara Hughes
Gustavson and his son Blayne Hughes, Jr., who are both members of our Board, collectively own
approximatelyl4.1% of our common shares outstanding at December 38,201

At December 31, 24, Tamara Hughes Gustavson owned and contr@8self-storage facilities in
CanadaThese facilities operate under the APublic Storag
facilities for use in Canada on a royaftge, norexclusive basis. We hawe ownership interest in these
facilities and we do not own or operate any facilities in Canalflave chose to acquire or develop our own
facilities in Canada, we would have to share the wuse
first refusal, subject to limitations, to adrpithe stock or assets of the corporation engaged in the operation of
these facilities if their owners agree to sell them. Our subsidiaries reinsure risks relating to loss sfogedds
by customers in these facilities, and have receamatoximately$15 million, $1.3 million and$1.1 million for
the years ended December 31,2®018 and 2017respectively. Our right to continue receiving these premiums
maybe qualified.

10. ShareBased Compensation

Under various sharbased compensation plans and under terms established by our Board or a committee
thereof, we grantnegual i fi ed options to purchase the Companyos
units (ARSUsoO0), toemployesst ees, officers, and key

Stock options and RSUs are considered figrantedo a
(i) the Company and the recipient reach a mutual understanding of the key terms of the award, (ii) the award has
been authorized, (iii) theecipient is affected by changes in the market price of our stock, and (iv) it is probable
that any performance conditions will be met.

We amortize the grartate fair value of awards as compensation expense over the service period, which
begins on thgrant date and ends generally on the vesting date. For awards that are earned solely upon the passage
of time and continued service, the entire cost of the award is amortized on a-itmaigfatsis over the service
period. For awards with performanaenditions, the individual cost of each vesting is amortized separately over
each individual service period (the fAaccelerated attr
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The Caodification previously stipulated that grants to nonemployee service providers (other than to
trusteeswhere equity method treatment was permitted) were accounted for on the liability method, with expenses
adjusted each period based upon changes in fair value. Recent changes in the Codification allows such grants to
be accounted for on the equity awardinoel, with compensation expense based upon grant date fair value. While
we have no such grants to any such individuals for any periods presented, we will account for any future grants
to nonemployee service providers based upon the equity award method.

In amortizing shardased compensation expense, we do not estimate future forfeitures in advance.
Instead, we reverse previously amortized slimaged compensation expense with respect to grants that are
forfeited in the period the employee terminates leympent.

In February 2018, we announced that our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer at the
time were retiring from their executive roles at the end of 2018 and would then serve only as Trustees of the
Company. Pursuant to our shdnase&l compensation plans, their unvested grants will continue to vest over the
original vesting periods during their service as Trustees. For financial reporting, the end of the service periods
for previous stock option and RSU grants for these executivegetidrom (i) the various vesting dates to (ii)
December 31, 2018 when they retired. Accordingly, all remaining $fze®d compensation expense for these
two executives was amortized in the year ended Decedih@018.

See al so finet & haoae 2ijordurti¢iodisassionregarding the impact of RSUs
and stock options on our net income per common share and income allocated to common shareholders.

Stock Options

Stock options vest ovérto 5 years expireten yearafter the grant datend the exercise price is equal
to the closing trading price of our common shares on the grant date. Employees cannot require the Company to
settle their award in cash. We use the Bl&ckoles option valuation model to estimate the fair value of our
stock options.

Outstanding stock option grants are included on aforene basis in our diluted weighted average
shares, to the extent dilutive, after applying the treasury stock method (based upon the average common share
price during tle period) to aaumed exercise proceeds and measured but unrecognized compensation.

The stock options outstanding at December 3192@ke an aggregate intrinsic value (the excess, if
any, of each optioné6s mar ket v afi386enillionamrdremairtingaverager ci s e
contractual lives of approximatelgix years The aggregate intrinsic value of exercisable stock options at
December 31, 2@ amounted to approximately35.6 million. Approximately1,36Q000 of the stock options
outstandingat December 31, 2@] have an exercise price of more tH20Q Included in our stock options
exercisable at December 31, 2019,28667 stock options which expire throudine 30, 2P1, with an average
exercise price per share $f06.91

Additional information with respect to stock options during 202018 and 207 is as follows:
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2019 2018 2017

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number Exercise Number Exercise Number Exercise

of Price of Price of Price
Options per Share Options per Share Options per Share
Options outstanding January 1, 2,420,922 $ 201.31 2,408,917 $ 192.12 1,995,44C $ 150.83
Granted 120,00C 221.12 200,00C 194.29 1,096,00C 223.58
Exercised (191,255 174.55 (179,995 69.53 (482,523 88.07
Cancelled (10,000 197.90 (8,000 223.50 (200,000 203.64

Options outstanding December 3: 2,339,667 $ 204.53 2,420,922 $ 201.31 2,408,917 $ 192.12

Options exercisable at December 1,501,667 $ 196.37 1,147,122 $ 178.31 848,25C $ 143.55

2019 2018 2017

Stock option expense for the year (in 000's) (a) $ 4950 $ 17,162 $ 8,707
Aggregate exercise date intrinsic value of options exercised during the year (ir$ 11,848 $ 25,117 $ 61,334

Averageassumptions used in valuing options with the BlaciScholes method:

Expected life of options in years, based upon historical experience 5 5 5
Risk-free interest rate 2.3% 2.7% 1.9%
Expected volatility, based upon historiwvalatility 8.9% 12.5% 17.9%
Expected dividend yield 3.6% 4.1% 3.6%
Average estimated value of options granted during the year $ 961 $ 13.09 $ 23.49

€)) Amounts for 2018 includ&8.1 million, in connection with the acceleration of amortization on
grants discussed above. Amounts for 2017 reflect a reduction in compensation ex@@r&midfon related to
stock options forfeited during the period.

Restricted Share Units

RSUs generdy vest ratably oveb to 8 yearsfrom the grant date. The grantee receives dividends for
each outstanding RSU equal to the-gpleare dividends received by our common shareholders. We expense any
dividends previously paid upon forfeiture of the relat&UR Upon vesting, the grantee receives common shares
equal to the number of vested RSUs, less common shares withheld in exchange for tax deposits made by the
Company to satisfy the granteef6s statutory tax |iabil

The fair \alue of our RSUs is determined based upon the applicable closing trading price of our common
shares.

The fair value of our RSUs outstanding at December 319 2&is approximately$1319 million.
Remaining compensation expense related to RSUs outstaatiidgcember 312019 totals approximately
$85.1 million and is expected to be recognized as compensation expense over thé yexts on average. The
following tables set forth relevant information with respect to restricted shares (dollar amahotssands):
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2019 2018 2017
Number ol  GrantDate Numberol GrantDate Number ol Grant Date
Restricted  Aggregate Restricted  Aggregate Restricted  Aggregate
Share Unit  Fair Value Share Unit  Fair Value Share Unit  Fair Value
Restricted share units outstanding

January 1, 717,69€ $ 151,212 799,12¢ $ 166,144 696,641 $ 136,90%
Granted 97,140 21,113 138,567 27,733 340,957 73,953
Vested (160,329 (32,714 (164,104 (30,717 (144,473 (25,305
Forfeited (35,357 (7,553 (55,896 (11,948 (93,996 (19,409

Restricted share units outstanding

December 31, 619,15C $ 132,05€ 717,69€ $ 151,212 799,12¢ $ 166,144

2019 2018 2017

Amounts for the year (in 000's, except number of shares):

Fair value of vested shares on vesting date $ 33769 $ 32317 $ 31,962

Cash paid for taxes upon vesting in lieu of issuing common shares $ 12,162 $ 12,347 $ 14,092

Common shares issued upon vesting 96,479 97,516 82,060

Restricted share unit expense (a) $ 21662 $ 53,869 $ 28,841

€) Amounts for 209, 2018 and 207Y include approximately$1.2 million, $1.1 million and
$0.7 million, respectively, in employer taxes incurred upon vestiigounts for 2018nclude$22.6million, in
connection with the acceleration of amortization on grants to our CEO and CFO as discussed above. Amounts
for 2017 reflect a reduction in compensation expen$§& dmillion relatedto RSUs forfeited during thegeriod.

11. Segment Information

Our reportable segments reflect the significant components of our operations where discrete financial
information is evaluated separately by our chief oper
based primaly upon the nature of the underlying products and services, as well as the drivers of profitability
growth. The net income for each reporeabégment included in the talidelow are in conformity with GAAP
and our significant accounting policies asatex in Note 2. The amounts not attributable to reportable segments
are aggregated under fAother items not allocated to se

Following is a description of and basis for presentation for each of our reportable segments.

Self-Storage Operations

The SelfStorage Operations segment reflects the rental operations from atmelje facilities we
own. Our CODM reviews the net operating income (AN
revenues less cost of operations (prior to depreciatipense), in assessing performance and making resource
allocation decisions. The presentation in the tables below sets forth the NOI of this segment, as well as the
depreciation expense for this segment, which while reviewed by our CODM and includstdriname, is not
considered by the CODM in assessing performance and decision making. For all periods presented, substantially
all of our real estate facilities, goodwill and other intangible assets, other assets, and accrued and other liabilities
are asociated with the Selbtorage Operations segment.
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Ancillary Operations

The Ancillary Operations segment reflects the sale of merchandise and reinsurance of policies against
losses to goods stored by our sslfrage tenants, activities which are incidétd our primary selftorage rental
activities. Our CODM reviews the NOI of these operations in assessing performance and making resource
allocation decisions.

Investment in PSB

This segment represents al?% equity interest in PSB, a publiefsadedREIT that owns, operates,
acquires and develops commercial properties, primarily ffentint flex, office, and industrial space. PSB has
a separate management team and board of directors that makes its financing, capital allocation, and other
significart decisions. In making resource allocation decisions with respect to our investment in PSB, the CODM
reviews PSB6s net income, which is detailed in PSBoés
in the tables below includes our equity eéags from PSB.

Investment in Shurgard

This segment represents our equity interest in Shurgard, a publicly held company which owns and
operates selftorage facilities located gevercountries in Western Europe. Shurgard has a separate management
teamand board of trustees that makes its financing, capital allocation, and other significant decisions. In making
resource allocation decisions with respect to our i
income. The segment presentation telocludes our equity earnings from Shurgard.

Presentation of Segment Information

The following tables reconcile NOI (as applicable) and net income of each segment to our consolidated
net income (amounts in thousands):
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For the Year&nded December 31,

2019 2018 2017
Self-Storage Segment
Revenue $ 2,684,552 $ 2,597,607 $ 2,512,43¢
Cost of operations (752,579 (695,731 (657,633
Net operating income 1,931,97:< 1,901,87¢ 1,854,80(
Depreciation and amortization (512,918 (483,646 (454,526
Net income 1,419,05¢ 1,418,23C 1,400,274
Ancillary Segment
Revenue 162,271 156,673 156,09&
Cost of operations (44,204 (43,991 (50,345
Net operating income 118,067 112,682 105,75C
Investment in PSB Segment
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
real estate entities (a) 54,090 89,362 46,544
Investment in Shurgard Segment
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
real estate entities (a) 15,457 14,133 25,948
Gain due to Shurgard public offering - 151,61€ -
Net income from Investment in Shurgard Segmer 15,457 165,74¢ 25,948
Total net income allocated to segments 1,606,66¢ 1,786,02< 1,578,51¢
Other items not allocated to segments:
General and administrative (71,983 (118,720 (82,882
Interestand other income 28,436 26,442 18,771
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated real
estate entitiesOther Investments (a) - - 3,163
Interest expense (45,641 (32,542 (12,690
Foreign currency exchanggin (loss) 7,829 18,117 (50,045
Casualty loss - - (7,789
Gain on sale of real estate 341 37,903 1,421
Net income $ 1,525,651 $ 1,717,22: $ 1,448,46¢

(a) See Note 4 for a reconciliation of these amounts to our total Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Real Estate
Entities on our income statements.

12. Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Guidance

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 24 Leaseswhich amends the existing accounting
standards for lease accounting, including requiring lessees to recognize most leases on their balance sheets and
making targeted changes to lessor accountifiige new standard requires a modifietrospective approach to
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adoption and became effective for interim and annual periods beginning on January 1,n201l9.2018, the

FASB further amended this standardbow for a new transition method that offers the option to use the effective

date as the date of initial application and not adjust the compayetiad financial information.We adopted

the new standard effective January 1, 2019, using the newtimansiethod, recordipa total of$38.7million in

right of use assets, reflected in other assets, and substantially the same amount in lease liabilities, reflected in
accrued and other liabilities, for leases where we are the lessee (principally gemesddad office leasesiVe

also reclassified related intangible assets totaling $5.6 million to other aBkettease liabilities are recognized

based on the present value of the remaining lease payments for each operating lease using each respective
remaining lease term and a corresponding estimated incremental borrowing rate. We estimated the incremental
borrowing rate primarily by reference to average yield spread on debt issuances by companies of a similar credit
rating as us, and the treasurylggas of January 1, 2019. We had no material amount of leases covered by the
standard where we are the lessor (principally our storage leases) because substantially all of such leases are month
to month. For leases where we are the lessee or the hssapplied (i) the package of practical expedients to

not reassess prior conclusions related to contracts that are or that contain leases, lease classification and initial
direct costs, (ii) the hindsight practical expedient to determine the lease ®@limassessing impairment of the

right of use assets, and (iii) the easement practical expedient to not assess whether existing or expired land
easements that were not previously accounted for as leases under ASC 840 are or contain a lease under this new
standard. In addition, for leases where we are the lessee, we also elected to (a) not apply the new standard to our
leases with an original term of 12 months or less, and (b) not separate lease and assodi&ded nomponents.

Commitments an€ontingencies

Contingent Losses

We are a party to various legal proceedings and subject to various claims and complaints; however, we
believe that the likelihood of these contingencies resulting in a material loss to the Company, either individually
or inthe aggregate, is remote.

Insurance and Loss Exposure

We carry property, earthquake, general liability, employee medical insurance and workers compensation
coverage through internationally recognized insurance carriers, subject to deductibles. Oinielénlugeneral
liability is $2.0million per occurrence. Our annual deductible for property 10$25s0million per occurrence.
This deductible decreases$6.0million once we reacl$35.0million in aggregate losses for occurrences that
exceedd5.0million. | nsurance carriers6 agg$76@milibrefor propery bosseson t he
and$102.0million for general liability losses are higher than estimates of maximum probable losses that could
occur from individual catastrophic evedistermined in recent engineering and actuarial studies; however, in case
of multiple catastrophic events, these limits could be exceeded.

We reinsure a program that provides insurance to our customers from an independpattirgurer.
This prograntovers customer claims for losses to goods stored at our facilities as a result of specific named perils
(earthquakes are not covered by this program), up to a maximum li#t@Oper storage unit. We reinsure
all risks in this program, but purchaissurance to cover this exposure for a limitgab.0million for losses in
excess 0$5.0million per occurrence. We are subject to licensing requirements and regulations in several states.
Customers participate in the program at their option. At Dbeerdl, 209, there were approximate835000
certificates held by our se#torage customers, representing aggregate coverage of approxiddddilion.
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Construction Commitments

We have construction commitments representing future expected payments for construction under
contract totalings77.2 million at December 31, 2@1 We expect to pay approximate$$9.7 million in 2020
and$7.5 million in 2021 for these constructiocommitments.

14. Supplementary Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31
2019 2019 2019 2019
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Self-storage and ancillary revenues $ 689,038 $ 710,950 $ 729,336 $ 717,499
Selfstorage and ancillary cost of operati  $ 204,201 $ 207,736 $ 212,262 $ 172,584
Depreciation and amortization $ 121,941 $ 126,859 $ 129,233 $ 134,885
Net Income $ 367,678 $ 371,456 $ 399,420 $ 387,097
Per Common Share
Net income- Basic $ 173 $ 176 $ 194 $ 1.88
Net income- Diluted $ 173 $ 176 $ 193 $ 1.87
Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31
2018 2018 2018 2018
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Self-storage and ancillary revenues $ 669,924 $ 685,528 $ 706,368 $ 692,460
Self-storage and ancillary cost of operati  $ 192,827 $ 190,977 $ 195544 $ 160,374
Depreciation and amortization $ 117,979 $ 119,777 $ 124516 $ 121,374
Net Income $ 344,436 $ 405,292 $ 379,589 $ 587,906
Per Common Share
Net income- Basic $ 166 $ 200 $ 1.85 $ 3.05
Net income- Diluted $ 165 $ 200 $ 1.85 $ 3.04

15. Subsequent Events

Subsequent to December 31, 90We acquired or were under contract to acquieself-storage
facilities four in Ohio, threein California, two each in New York and Tennessee am each inIndiang
Massachusetts, and Nebraskdth 1.1 million net rentable square feet, f&245.3 million.

On January24, 2020,we completed gublic offering of 4 5 Onfllion ($551.6 million) aggregée
principal amount ofenior notesbeaing interest at an annual rate @B75%and maturingon January 24, 2032
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Interest on theenior notess payable anmally, commencing January 24, 202lh connection with the offering,
we incurred a total db6.4million in costs.

As we reported in an SEC formk8on February 14, 2020, we submitted a #dmding proposal to
acquire100%of the issued stapled seities of National Storage REIT A NS R0 ) , dasedidubkicly r al i a
traded REIT (ASX:NSR) that owns and oper&ltég self-storage facilities in Australia and New Zealand, for a
cash purchasprice of A$2.40 per share. Ourgposal was subject to a number of conditions, including due
diligence. Any transaction would be subject to processes for acquisition of widely held entities under Australian
law, including securityholder approval. There is no assurance that Public Storage will reach a definitive
agreement or consummate a transactvith NSR or that if such an agreement is reached, it will be on terms
consistent with our nehinding proposal.
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Net 2019 Initial Cost Costs Gross Carrying Amount
No. of Rentable Encum Buildings &  Subsequent At December 31, 2019 Accumulated
Description Facilities Sq. Feet brances Land Improvements to Acquisition Land Buildings Total Depreciation
Self-storage facilities by market:

Los Angeles 224 16,168 498 510,248 924,34¢ 336,65: 507,863 1,263,38¢ 1,771,24¢ 737,208
Houston 127 10,426 - 186,32C 467,084 216,91! 185,781 684,53¢ 870,31¢ 287,542
San Francisco 138 8,982 - 241,791 527,127 211,25: 254,541 725,628 980,16¢ 456,544
Dallas/Ft. Worth 124 8,991 - 176,962 437,884 129,90( 178,562 566,184 744,74€ 281,717
Chicago 130 8,172 - 137,165 352,59E 128,16! 140,002 477,923 617,92E 361,662
New York 94 6,939 - 250,90C 548,541 190,53¢ 257,237 732,74C 989,977 418,57C
Atlanta 104 6,982 1,771 132,631 345,587 86,37¢ 132,993 431,604 564,597 261,138
Seattle/Tacoma 97 6,794 - 198,063 531,742 104,11¢ 198,71C 635,211 833,921 324,181
Miami 94 6,726 - 239,291 497,38C 105,51( 241,184 600,997 842,181 307,964
Washington DC 91 5,648 - 233,90& 406,769 116,97: 239,058 518,58¢ 757,648 306,497
Orlando/Daytona 72 4,550 11,886 140,411 253,37& 57,73: 145,892 305,62E 451,517 154,128
Denver 61 4,531 9,299 95,009 226,49¢ 92,83t 95,730 318,613 414,343 143,582
Charlotte 56 4,354 - 80,253 205,37C 76,52¢ 88,116 274,03t 362,151 118,762
Minneapolis/St. Paul 57 4,237 2,905 111,507 233,258 66,017 111,672 299,111 410,783 117,375
Tampa 54 3,682 - 88,919 181,402 47,99« 91,681 226,634 318,31t 122,703
Philadelphia 56 3,546 - 51,682 152,40¢€ 56,99: 50,703 210,37¢€ 261,07¢ 160,00C
West Palm Beach 46 3,721 - 156,788 221,479 60,557 157,49¢ 281,328 438,824 120,954
Detroit 42 2,950 - 63,804 168,897 37,77( 64,654 205,817 270,471 111,495
Phoenix 40 2,664 - 65,718 185,117 27,22¢ 65,709 212,35C 278,05¢ 103,14¢€
Austin 32 2,447 - 56,918 127,011 43,76¢ 58,940 168,755 227,69t 83,512
Portland 43 2,256 - 51,182 126,464 27,53¢ 51,840 153,342 205,182 101,422
Sacramento 34 1,959 - 25,141 69,409 28,18¢ 25,646 97,088 122,734 76,661
Raleigh 28 1,975 - 50,348 99,583 38,19t 51,479 136,647 188,12€ 60,484
San Diego 20 1,816 - 47,884 108,911 40,72« 50,394 147,125 197,51¢ 86,884
San Antonio 28 1,791 - 27,566 76,028 27,03( 27,524 103,10C 130,624 66,131
Norfolk 36 2,215 - 47,728 128,98¢€ 22,39¢ 46,843 152,269 199,112 63,430
Boston 27 1,864 - 70,261 194,588 24,28 70,827 218,30¢ 289,13€ 91,348
Columbus 22 1,629 - 25,341 64,746 27,25¢ 25,448 91,895 117,343 44,934
Oklahoma City 22 1,531 - 35,704 68,360 13,47( 35,704 81,830 117,534 23,568
Baltimore 23 1,472 - 25,176 79,734 19,07¢ 25,300 98,688 123,988 70,717
Indianapolis 25 1,580 - 25,752 69,619 13,51: 26,752 82,130 108,882 45,217
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Net 2019 Initial Cost Costs Gross Carrying Amount

No. of Rentable Encum Buildings &  Subsequent At December 31, 2019 Accumulated

Description Facilities Sq. Feet brances Land Improvements to Acquisition Land Buildings Total Depreciation

St. Louis 26 1,443 - 20,037 56,237 21,85¢ 20,680 77,448 98,128 63,361
Kansas City 24 1,461 - 14,225 43,732 28,12¢ 14,425 71,658 86,083 59,666
Columbia 23 1,331 - 20,169 57,131 19,88: 20,928 76,254 97,182 35,292
Las Vegas 20 1,259 - 23,168 52,723 10,29¢ 22,417 63,770 86,187 48,404
Milwaukee 15 964 916 13,189 32,071 10,10¢ 13,158 42,206 55,364 33,057
Cincinnati 17 947 - 15,023 32,351 22,87« 14,941 55,307 70,248 30,007
Louisville 15 916 - 23,563 46,108 7,528 23,562 53,632 77,194 13,630
Jacksonville 14 841 - 11,252 27,714 11,82( 11,301 39,485 50,786 32,215
Nashville/Bowling Green 17 1,108 - 18,787 35,425 30,35¢ 18,785 65,783 84,568 28,543
Honolulu 11 807 - 54,184 106,29¢ 12,70: 55,101 118,08& 173,18€ 63,344
Greensboro 14 845 - 13,413 35,326 13,64« 15,502 46,881 62,383 25,853
Colorado Springs 14 992 - 10,588 38,237 22,06¢ 10,584 60,310 70,894 28,108
Chattanooga 10 695 - 6,569 26,045 7,50( 6,371 33,743 40,114 14,691
Hartford/New Haven 11 693 - 6,778 19,959 21,85( 8,443 40,144 48,587 31,810
Savannah 12 686 - 33,094 42,465 2,57¢ 31,766 46,369 78,135 15,910
Charleston 14 950 - 16,947 56,793 17,25¢ 17,923 73,073 90,996 23,801
Fort Myers/Naples 10 770 - 21,522 46,395 5,352 21,757 51,512 73,269 17,493
New Orleans 9 627 - 9,205 30,832 6,254 9,373 36,918 46,291 24,916
Greensville/Spartanburg/Ashev 11 623 - 9,036 20,767 10,05: 9,965 29,889 39,854 20,324
Reno 7 559 - 5,487 18,704 4,05¢ 5,487 22,762 28,249 12,110
Birmingham 14 538 - 5,229 17,835 13,32¢ 5,117 31,273 36,390 27,335
Salt Lake City 8 517 - 7,846 15,947 4,86( 7,495 21,158 28,653 14,506
Memphis 9 510 - 7,962 21,981 9,04¢ 9,315 29,677 38,992 20,278
Buffalo/Rochester 9 462 - 6,785 17,954 3,83¢ 6,783 21,792 28,575 13,589
Richmond 13 652 - 18,092 40,160 5,17 17,897 45,527 63,424 18,118
Tucson 7 439 - 9,403 25,491 5,73¢ 9,884 30,744 40,628 19,101
Cleveland/Akron 7 433 - 4,070 16,139 5,48: 4,463 21,229 25,692 11,954
Wichita 7 433 - 2,017 6,691 7,26 2,130 13,843 15,973 11,755
Mobile 10 452 - 4,688 21,170 4,90¢ 4,515 26,249 30,764 12,900
Omaha 4 377 - 7,491 20,930 3,01¢ 7,491 23,949 31,440 3,189
Monterey/Salinas 7 329 - 8,465 24,151 4,17( 8,455 28,331 36,786 21,033
PalmSprings 3 242 - 8,309 18,065 1,28¢ 8,309 19,351 27,660 10,356
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PUBLIC STORAGE

SCHEDULE Ill- REAL ESTATE
AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Net Initial Cost Costs Gross Carrying Amount
No. of Rentable Encum Buildings &  Subsequent At December 31, 2019 Accumulated
Description Facilities Sq. Feet brances Land Improvements to Acquisition Land Buildings Total Depreciation
Evansville 5 326 2,340 14,316 1,192 2,312 15,536 17,848 3,577
Dayton 5 230 1,074 8,975 4,817 1,073 13,793 14,866 7,066
Augusta 6 345 4,984 13,120 3,63: 4,984 16,753 21,737 5,939
Fort Wayne 3 168 349 3,594 3,12¢ 349 6,720 7,069 5,802
Providence 3 155 995 11,206 2,957 995 14,163 15,158 6,295
Huntsville/Decatur 3 153 1,024 3,321 3,02¢ 971 6,403 7,374 5,963
Shreveport 2 150 817 3,030 2,25¢ 741 5,360 6,101 4,678
Springfield/Holyoke 2 144 1,428 3,380 1,81¢ 1,427 5,196 6,623 4,671
Rochester 2 99 1,047 2,246 2,09C 980 4,403 5,383 3,931
Santa Barbara 2 98 5,733 9,106 452 5,733 9,558 15,291 5,417
Topeka 2 94 225 1,419 2,067 225 3,486 3,711 2,966
Lansing 2 88 556 2,882 891 556 3,773 4,329 2,239
Roanoke 3 159 2,147 13,801 84z 2,147 14,643 16,790 2,523
Flint 1 56 543 3,068 242 542 3,311 3,853 1,826
Joplin 1 56 264 904 1,01% 264 1,916 2,180 1,579
Syracuse 1 55 545 1,279 82C 545 2,099 2,644 1,976
Modesto/Fresno/Stockton 1 33 44 206 96¢ 193 1,025 1,218 795

Commercial and neoperating

real estate 13,194 26,143 28,81 14,231 53,917 68,148 40,107
2,483 168,908 $27,27! $4,124,27 $9,274,12  $2,890,75 $4,186,87 $12,102,27  $16,289,14  $6,623,47

Note: Buildings and improvements are depreciated on a stlaighiasis over estimated useful lives ranging generally
between 5 to 25 years. In addition, disclosures of the number and square footage of our facilities are unauditec
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Exhibit 4.2

DESCRIPTION OF COMMON SHARES

Unl ess the context otherwise requires, the terms fAwe, 0
Maryland real estate investment trust.

We are authorized to issue up to 650,000,000 common shares of benafcest| par value $0.10 per share.
Common Shares

The following description of our common shares sets forth certain general terms and provisions of our common
shares. The statements below describing our common shares are in all respects subjgoatdiaddn their
entirety by reference to the applicable provisions of our declaration of trust and bylaws.

Holders of our common shares will be entitled to receive distributions when, as and if declared by our board of
trustees, out of funds legally dlable for distribution. If we fail to pay distributions on our outstanding preferred

shares of beneficial interest, generally we may not pay distributions on or repurchase our common shares. If we
were to liquidate, dissolve or wind up our affairs, haddefrcommon shares will be entitled to share equally and

ratably in any assets available for distribution to them, after payment or provision for payment of our debts and other
liabilities and the preferential amounts owing with respect to any of ouaadtsg preferred shares. Holders of

common shares have no preemptive rights, which means they have no right to acquire any additional common
shares that we may issue at a later date. The common shares will be, when issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

Theholders of our common shares are entitled to cast one vote for each share on all matters presented to our holders
for a vote. Our declaration of trust permits cumulative voting for the election of trustees, subject to compliance with
the advance notice gairements for the exercise of cumulative voting rights that are set forth in our bylaws.

Cumulative voting means that each holder of our common shares is entitled to cast as many votes as there are
trustees to be elected multiplied by the number of comshanes registered in his or her name. A holder of our

common shares that provides us with notice of its intention to cumulate votes (due at the same time each year as a
shareholder proposal made pursuant to Rdke8 under the Exchange Act) may cumultite votes for trustees by

casting all of the votes for one candidate or by distributing the votes among as many candidates as he or she
chooses.

The rights, preferences and privileges of holders of our common shares are subject to, and may be adhateskly aff
by, the rights of the holders of shares of any series of our preferred shares or equity shares of beneficial interest
which are outstanding or which we may designate and i s

In addition to the wnership limitations in our declaration of trust, described below, the following could prevent,
deter, or delay a change of control transaction:

91 provisions of Maryland law may impose limitations that may make it more difficult for a third party to
negotate or effect a business combination transaction or control share acquisition with us. Currently, our
board has opted not to subject the Company to these provisions of Maryland law, but it could choose to do
so in the future without shareholder approval.

1 Similarly, current provisions of our declaration of trust and powers of our board could have the same effect,
including (1) limitations on removal of trustees, (2) restrictions on the acquisition of our shares of
beneficial interest, (3) the power tai® additional common shares, preferred shares or equity shares on
terms approved by our board without obtaining shareholder approval, (4) the advance notice provisions of
our byl aws and (5) our boardoés abi lldetapprovahtber Mar yl a
implement takeover defenses that we may not yet have and to take, or refrain from taking, other actions that
could have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a transaction or a change in control.

Ownership Limitations

Toqualfy as a REIT under the I nternal Revenue Code of 1
beneficially owned by 100 or more persons during at least 335 days of a taxable year of 12 months or during a



proportionate part of a shorter taxable yearoAfst more than 50% of the value of our outstanding shares (after
taking into account options to acquire shares) may be owned, directly, indirectly or through attribution, by five or
fewer individuals (as defined in the Code to include certain entitigg)glthe last half of a taxable year.

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, our declaration of trust provides that:

A no person, other than an excepted holder or a designated investment entity (each as defined in ot
declaration of trust and agsktribed below), may own directly or indirectly, or be deemed to own by
of the attribution provisions of the Code, more than 3%, in value or number, whichever is more res
of the outstanding shares of any class or series of common shares;

A no person, other than a designated investment entity or an excepted holder (each as defined in ot
declaration of trust and as described below), may own directly or indirectly, or be deemed to own i
attribution, more than 9.9% in value or numbghichever is more restrictive, of the outstanding share
any class or series of preferred shares, or equity shares;

A no excepted holder, which means certain members of the Hughes family, certain trusts establishe
benefit of membersfdahe Hughes family, certain related entities, as well as persons whose ownerst
shares would cause members of the Hughes family to be deemed to own shares pursuant to appl
attribution rules under the Code, may own directly or indirectly comshanes if, under the applicable
attribution rules of the Code, any single excepted holder who is treated as an individual would owr
than 35.66%, in value or number, whichever is more restrictive, of any class or series of the outste
common shres, any two excepted holders treated as individuals would own more than 38.66%, in
number, whichever is more restrictive, of any class or series of the outstanding common shares, a
excepted holders treated as individuals would own niae 41.66%, in value or number, whichever is
more restrictive, of any class or series of the outstanding common shares, any four excepted hold
as individuals would own more than 44.66%, in value or number, whichever is more restrictive, of
class or series of the outstanding common shares, or any five excepted holders treated as individt
own more than 47.66%, in value or number, whichever is more restrictive, of any class or series o
outstanding common shares;

A noexcepted holder, as described above, may own directly or indirectly, or be deemed to own throt
attribution, more than 15% in value or number, whichever is more restrictive, of the outstanding st
any class or series of equity shares; there is acialdimit specifically applicable to preferred shares
except the general ownership limit;

A no designated investment entity may acquire or hold, directly or indirectly (or through attribution), ¢
in excess of the designated investment efititit of 9.9%, in value or number, whichever is more
restrictive, of the outstanding shares of any class or series of common shares;

A a designated investment entity may acquire or hold, directly or indirectly (or through attribution), 1(
the autstanding shares of any class or series of preferred shares or equity shares;

A no person shall actually or beneficially own our shares to the extent that such ownership would re:
being fAcl osel y 8%6)ofitie Code ar berwisSaause us t feail to qualify as a REIT
any time; and

A no person shall transfer our shares if such transfer would result in our shares being owned by few
100 persons at any time.

The excepted holder limit has been established in light of the fact that the Hughes family and certain related trusts
and entities own approximately 14.1% of our common shares outstanding at December 31, 2019, and have the right
to acquire additional commashares. The excepted holder limit allows excepted holders, defined in our declaration

of trust to include certain members of the Hughes family, certain trusts established for the benefit of members of the
Hughes family and certain related entities, tondwthe aggregate up to 47.66% of the outstanding shares of any

class or series of common shares, so long as no one individual excepted holder would own or be treated as owning
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in excess of 35.66% of the outstanding shares of any such class or serEdieethat the excepted holder limit

will not jeopardize our status as a REIT because no five excepted holders can own more than 47.66% of any class or
series of our outstanding common shares and, thus, we will be in compliance with the REIT qualificatio

requirement prohibiting five or fewer individuals from owning more than 50% of the value of our outstanding

shares.

Our declaration of trust defines a fAidesignated invest m

1. an entity that is a pension trust that qualifies for {tmlough teatment under Secti@b6(h)(3) of the
Code;

2. an entity that qualifies as a regulated investment company under S&sliaf the Code; or

3. an entity (referred to in our declaraforon of trust
compensation engas in the business of advising others as to the value of securities or as to the
advisability of investing in, purchasing or selling securitiespfiilchases securities in the ordinary course
of its business and not with the purpose or effect of chgrmiinfluencing control of the Company, nor in
connection with or as a participant in any transaction having such purpose or effect, including any
transaction subject to Ruld-3(b) of the Exchange Act; and (iifas or shares voting power and
investmemh power under the Exchange Act; so long as each beneficial owner of such entity, or in the case of
a qualified investment manager holding shares solely for the benefit of its customer account holders, the
individual account holders of the accounts mandgesiuch entity, would satisfy the 3% common share or
9.9% preferred share or equity share ownership limit, as applicable, if such beneficial owner or account
holder owned directly its proportionate share of the shares held by the entity.

Under our declaran of trust, the board of trustees may, in its sole and absolute discretion, exempt a shareholder

that is not an individual from the 3% ownership limit for common shares, the 9.9% ownership limit for preferred and

equity shares, or the ownership limit fmmon shares applicable to designated investment entities, if such

shareholder provides information and makes representations to the board of trustees that are satisfactory to the board

of trustees, in its sole and absolute discretion, to establisethat h per sonés ownership in ex:
ownership limit would not jeopardize our qualification as a REIT. The board of trustees has from time to time

granted waivers to such persons.

Any person who acquires or attempts or intends to acquinelémt beneficial or constructive ownership of our

shares that will or may violate any of the foregoing restrictions on transferability and ownership will be required to
give notice immediately to us and provide us with such other information as thedbdarstees may request in

order to determine the effect of such transfer on our status as a REIT. If any transfer of shares or any other event
would otherwise result in any person violating the ownership limits described above, then our declaratson of tru
provides that (ajhe transfer will be void and of no force or effect with respect to the prohibited transferee with
respect to that number of shares that exceeds the ownership limits #mal §lhibited transferee would not

acquire any right or intest in the shares. The foregoing restrictions on transferability and ownership will not apply
if our board of trustees determines that it is no longer in our best interests to attempt to qualify, or to continue to
qualify, as a REIT.

All certificates repesenting our shares will bear a legend referring to the restrictions described above.

Every owner of more than 5% (or such lower percentage as required by the Code or the regulations promulgated
thereunder) of all classes or series of our shares, incledimgnon shares, will be required to give written notice to

us within 30 days after the end of each taxable year stating the name and address of such owner, the number of
shares of each class and series of shares that the owner beneficially owns arigtmdegdhe manner in which

such shares are held. Each such owner shall provide to us such additional information as the board of trustees may
request in order to determine the effect, if any, of such beneficial ownership on our status as a REIhsamd to e
compliance with the various ownership limitations. In addition, each shareholder shall upon demand be required to
provide to the board of trustees such information as the board of trustees may request, in good faith, in order to
determine our statuss a REIT and to comply with the requirements of any taxing authority or governmental

authority or to determine such compliance.



DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED SHARES

We are authorized to issue 100,000,000 sharpseférred shares of beneficial interest, paug $0.01 per share, in
one or more series, with such voting powers, full or limited, and with such designations, preferences and relative,
participating, optional or other special rights, and qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, he skall

forth in resolutions providing for the issue of preferred shares adopted by our board of.trustees

Description of 5.375% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Serieg
General

The following is a brief description of the terms of our 5.375% Cumulative Pedf&hares, Serids (t he fiSeri es
Preferred Shareso), which does not purport to be compl «
to the Articles Supplementary classifying the Series V Preferred Shares, which is included aitio ¢kéi

Annual Report on Form 1R of which this Exhibit 4.2 is a part.

Ownership Restrictions

For a discussion of ownership |Iimitations that apply t
Share Owner ship Limitations. 0

Ranking

With respect to the payment of distributions and amounts upon liquidation, the Series V Preferred Shares will rank
paripassu with our existing preferred shafes ol | ecti vely, the AEXxisting Senior |
preferred shares issued by whether now or hereafter issued, ranking pagsu with the Existing Senior Preferred

Shares (collectively, together with the Existing Senior Preferred Shares and the Series V Preferred Shares, the

ASeni or Pr e fardwil ek seBibrdaro@msnmgn shares and any other shares of beneficial interest of

the Company ranking junior to the Series V Preferred Shares.

Distributions

Holders of Series V Preferred Shares, in preference to the holders of our commons shares, and of any other shares of
bereficial interest issued by us ranking junior to the Series V Preferred Shares as to payment of distributions, will be
entitled to receive, when and as declared by our board of trustees out of assets of the Company legally available for
payment, cash distrutions payable quarterly at the rate of 5.375% of the liquidation preference per year ($1,343.75
per year per share, equivalent to $1.34375 per year per Series V Depositary Share (as defined below)). Distributions
on the Series V Preferred Shares willdoenulative from the date of issue and will be payable quarterly on or before
March31, June 30, September 30 and December 31, commencing December 31, 2012, to holders of record as they
appear on the shares register of the Company on such record daless tiean 15 or more than 45 days preceding

the payment dates thereof, as shall be fixed by the board of trustees. If the last day of a quarter falls on a non
business day, we may pay distributions for that quarter on the first business day following tfi¢he quarter.

After full distributions on the Series V Preferred Shares have been paid or declared and funds set aside for payment
for all past distribution periods and for the then current quarter, the holders of Series V Preferred Shares will not be
entitled to any further distributions with respect to that quarter.

When distributions are not paid in full upon the Series V Preferred Shares and any other preferred shares of the
Company ranking on a parity as to distributions with the Series V Preéf8hares (including the other series of

Senior Preferred Shares), all distributions declared upon the Series V Preferred Shares and any other preferred
shares of the Company ranking on a parity as to distributions with the Series V Preferred Sharesisbizlidx

pro rata so that the amount of distributions declared per share on such Series V Preferred Shares and such other
shares shall in all cases bear to each other the same ratio that the accrued distributions per share on the Series V
Preferred Shaseand such other preferred shares bear to each other. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence,
unless full distributions on the Series V Preferred Shares have been paid for all past distribution periods, no
distributions (other than in common shaoe®ther shares of beneficial interest issued by us ranking junior to the



Series V Preferred Shares as to distributions and upon liquidation) shall be declared or paid or set aside for payment,
nor shall any other distribution be made on common shareas amyother shares of beneficial interest issued by us
ranking junior to or on a parity with the Series V Preferred Shares as to distributions or upon liquidation.

Unless full distributions on the Series V Preferred Shares have been paid for all pastidistperiods, we and our
subsidiaries may not redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire for any consideration (nor may we or they pay or
make available any moneys for a sinking fund for the redemption of) any common shares or any other shares of
beneficid interest issued by us ranking junior to or on a parity with the Series V Preferred Shares as to distributions
or upon liquidation except by conversion into or exchange for shares of beneficial interest issued by us ranking
junior to the Series V PrefedeShares as to distributions and upon liquidation.

I f for any taxable year, we elect to designate as fAcapi
distributions paid or made available for the year to the holders of all classesiaadEeur shares of beneficial

interest (to the extent treated as a dividend for U.S. federal income tax purposes), then the portion of such

distributions designated as capital gain dividends that will be allocable to the holders of Series V Predegsed Sh

will be an amount equal to the total capital gain dividends multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which will be

the total dividends paid or made available to the holders of Series V Preferred Shares for the year (determined for

U.S. federal incom tax purposes), and the denominator of which will be the total dividends paid or made available

to holders of all classes and series of our outstanding shares of beneficial interest for that year (determined for U.S.
federal income tax purposes).

Distributions that are treated as dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes paid by regular C corporations to
persons or entities that are taxed as individuals now are generally taxed at the rate applicabterto lceggjtal

gains, which is a maximum of 28 subject to certain limitations. Because we are a REIT, however, our dividends,
including dividends paid on the Series V Preferred Shares, generally will continue to be taxed at regular ordinary
income tax rates, except to the extent that the specéd relating to qualified dividend income or capital gains
dividends paid by a REIT apply.

Conversion Rights

The Series V Preferred Shares will not be convertible into shares of any other class or series of beneficial interest of
the Company.

Liquidation Rights

In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders of
the Series V Preferred Shares will be entitled to receive out of our assets available for distribution to shareholders,
before any distbution of assets is made to holders of common shares or of any other shares of beneficial interest
issued by us ranking as to such distribution junior to the Series V Preferred Shares, liquidating distributions in the
amount of $25,000 per share (equérglito $25.00 per Series V Depositary Share), plus all accrued and unpaid
distributions (whether or not earned or declared) for the then current, and all prior, distribution periods. If upon any
voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding of the Company, the amounts payable with respect to
the Series V Preferred Shares and any other shares issued by us ranking as to any such distribution on a parity with
the Series V Preferred Shares (including other series of Senior Preferred Sleanes)aid in full, the holders of

the Series V Preferred Shares and of such other shares will share ratably in any such distribution of assets of the
Company in proportion to the full respective preferential amounts to which they are entitled. Aftenpafythe

full amount of the liquidating distribution to which they are entitled, the holders of the Series V Preferred Shares
will not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of assets by us.

For purposes of liquidation rights, a cotidation or merger of the Company with or into any other corporation or
corporations or a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company is not a liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Company.



Redemption

Except in certairtircumstances relating to our qualification as a REIT, we may not redeem the Series V Preferred
Shares prior to September 20, 2017. On and after September 20, 2017, at any time or from time to time, we may
redeem the Series V Preferred Shares in whole pait at our option at a cash redemption price of $25)@00

Series V Preferred Share (equivalent to $25.00 per Series V Depositary Share), plus all accrued and unpaid
distributions to the date of redemption.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any distutions, including any accumulation, on the Series V Preferred Shares

are in arrears, we may not redeem any Series V Preferred Shares unless we redeem simultaneously all outstanding
Series V Preferred Shares, and we may not purchase or otherwise acrpgtly, ali indirectly, any Series V

Preferred Shares; provided, however, that this shall not prevent the purchase or acquisition of the Series V Preferred
Shares pursuant to a purchase or exchange offer if such offer is made on the same terms to afl thelzses

V Preferred Shares.

A notice of redemption of the Series V Preferred Shares (which may be contingent on the occurrence of a future

event) will be mailed, postage prepaid, not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the redemption date,

addressed to the holders of record of Series V Preferred Shares at their addresses as they appear on our stock transfer
records. The failure to give such notice or any defect in the notice or in its mailing will not affect the validity of the
proceedingsdr the redemption of any Series V Preferred Shares except as to the holder to whom notice was

defective or not given. Each notice will state: (1) the redemption date; (2) the number of Series V Preferred Shares

to be redeemed; (3) the redemption priceSenies V Preferred Share; (4) the place or places where certificates for

the Series V Preferred Shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price; and (5) that distributions on
the Series V Preferred Shares to be redeemed will cease te aocsuch redemption date.

If fewer than all the Series V Preferred Shares held by any holder are to be redeemed, the notice mailed to such
holder shall also specify the number of Series V Preferred Shares to be redeemed from such holder. If fewer than all
of the outstanding Series V Preferred Shares are to be redeemed, the shares to be redeemed shall be selected by lot
or pro rata or by any other equitable method we may choose. In order to facilitate the redemption of Series V
Preferred Shares, the boarfdristees may fix a record date for the determination of Series V Preferred Shares to be
redeemed, such record date to be not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixerdemspitbn.

Notice having been given as provided above, feomt after the date specified therein as the date of redemption,

unless we default in providing funds for the payment of the redemption price on such date, all distributions on the
Series V Preferred Shares called for redemption will cease. From andhaftedemption date, unless we so

default, all rights of the holders of the Series V Preferred Shares as shareholders of the Company, except the right to
receive the redemption price (but without interest), will cease. Upon surrender in accordance wititiseaf the
certificates representing any such shares (properly endorsed or assigned for transfer, if the board of trustees of the
Company shall so require and the notice shall so state), the redemption price set forth above shall be paid out of the
funds provided by the Company. If fewer than all the shares represented by any such certificate are redeemed, a new
certificate shall be issued representing the unredeemed shares without cost to the holder thereof.

Subject to applicable law and the limitation purchases when distributions on the Series V Preferred Shares are in
arrears, we may, at any time and from time to time, purchase any Series V Preferred Shares in the open market, by
tender or by private agreement.

Voting Rights

Except as indicated bml, or except as expressly required by applicable law, holders of the Series V Preferred
Shares will not be entitled to vote.

If six quarterly distributions payable on the Series V Preferred Shares or any other series of preferred shares are in
default (wrether or not declared or consecutive), the holders of the Series V Preferred Shares (voting as a class with
all other series of Senior Preferred Shares) will be entitled to elect two additional trustees until all distributions in
default have been paid declared and set apart for payment.



Such right to vote separately to elect trustees shall, when vested, be subject, always, to the same provisions for
vesting of such right to elect trustees separately in the case of future distribution defaults. ieamlyen such

right to elect trustees separately shall have so vested, we may, and upon the written request of the holders of record
of not less than 10% of the total number of preferred shares of the Company then outstanding shall, call a special
meeting @ shareholders for the election of trustees. In the case of such a written request, such special meeting shall
be held within 90 days after the delivery of such request and, in either case, at the place and upon the notice
provided by law and in our bylawprovided that we shall not be required to call such a special meeting if such

request is received less than 120 days before the date fixed for the next ensuing annual meeting of shareholders, and
the holders of all classes of outstanding preferred shagesffered the opportunity to elect such trustees (or fill any
vacancy) at such annual meeting of shareholders. Trustees so elected shall seheenetilannual meeting of our
shareholders or until their respective successors are elected anc:duHlifirior to the end of the term of any

trustee so elected, a vacancy in the office of such trustee shall occur, during the continuance of a default in
distributions on preferred shares of the Company, by reason of death, resignation, or disalilitgcancy shall

be filled for the unexpired term of such former trustee by the appointment of a new trustee by the remaining trustee
or trustees so elected.

The affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at leadk®60f the outstanding Series V Reged Shares and

any other series of preferred shares ranking on a parity with the Series V Preferred Shares as to distributions or upon
liquidation (which includes the other series of Senior Preferred Shares), voting as a single class, will besequired t
authorize another class of shares senior to the Series V Preferred Shares with respect to the payment of distributions
or the distribution of assets on liquidation. The affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at &86i066he

outstanding Sées V Preferred Shares will be required to amend or repeal any provision of, or add any provision to,
the declaration of trust, including articles supplementary if such action would materially and adversely alter or
change the rights, preferences or pegis of the Series V Preferred Shares.

No consent or approval of the holders of the Series V Preferred Shares will be required for the issuance from the
Companyb6s authorized but unissued preferr enkingsnaar es or
parity with or junior to the Series V Preferred Shares as to payment of distributions and distribution of assets,

including other Series V Preferred Shares.

Description of 5.20% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series W

The following is a brief desiption of the terms of ous.20% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Seriec WSer i es W

Pr ef er r e dhicekdoesma putpdrt,to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference

to theArticles Supplementary classifying tBeries WPreferred Shares, which is included as an exhibit to the

Annual Report on Form 1R of which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms and provisions of our Series W Preferred

Shares are substantially the same as those of our Series V Preferred Shares iashdedit Descriptidnof

5.375% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Sevies above, except that cash distributi
rate of 5.20% of the liquidation preference per year ($1,300.00 per year per share, equivalent to $1.30 per year per

Series W Depositary Share (as defined below)), distributions on the Series W Preferred Shares commenced on

March 31, 2013 andixcept in certain circumstances, we may not redeem the Series W Preferred Shares prior to

January 16, 2018.

Description of 5.20% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series X

The following is a brief description of the terms of &820% Cumulative Preferred Shares, SerigsiXSer i es X

Pr ef er r e dhickdoesmat putpdrt,to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its eoyiretierence

to theArticles Supplementary classifying tiseries X Preferred Shares, which is included as an exhibit to the

Annual Report on Form 1B of which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms and provisions of our Series X Preferred
Sharesaresubsanti ally the same as those of dDescripBomafi es V Pref
5.375% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Sevies above, except that cash distributi
rate of 5.20% of the liquidation preference peary($1,300.00 per year per share, equivalent to $1.30 per year per

Series X Depositary Share (as defined below)), distributions on the Series X Preferred Shares commenced on June

30, 2013 andexcept in certain circumstances, we may not redeem the SePieeferred Shares prior to May 13,

2018.



Description of 5.40% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series B

The following is a brief description of the terms of 8u40% Cumulative Preferred Shares, SeridgsBBSer i es B

Pr ef er r e dhicBdoesma putpdrt,to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference

to theArticles Supplementary classifying tiseries B Preferred Shares, which is included as an exhibit to the

Annual Report on Form 1R of which this Exhbit 4.2is a part The terms and provisions of our Series B Preferred
Shares are substantially the same as & Descigionaff our Ser i ¢
5.375% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Sevies a b ov e, e x c e ytions drenpaylbleqaagehly atithes t r i b

rate of 5.40% of the liquidation preference per year ($1,350.00 per year per share, equivalent to $1.35 per year per

Series B Depositary Share (as defined below)), distributions on the Series B Preferred Shares conmhéguadd

31, 2016 andexcept in certain circumstances, we may not redeem the Series B Preferred Shares prior to January 20,
2021.

Description of 5.125% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series C

The following is a brief description of the terms of 8ut25%Cumulative Preferred Shares, Serie6@ Ser i es C

Pr ef er r e dhicBdoesma putpdrt,to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference

to theArticles Supplementary classifying tBeries C Preferred Shares, which is ideldi as an exhibit to the

Annual Report on Form K of which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms and provisions of our Series C Preferred
Shares are substantially the same as & Descigionaff our Ser i
5.375%Cumulative Preferred Shares, SeNes a b o v e, except that cash distributi
rate of 5.125% of the liquidation preference per year ($1,281.25 per year per share, equivalent to $1.28125 per year

per Series C Depositary Share @afined below)), distributions on the Series C Preferred Shares commenced on

June 30, 2016 andxcept in certain circumstances, we may not redeem the Series C Preferred Shares prior to May

17, 2021.

Description of 4.95% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Seeis D

The following is a brief description of the terms of du®5% Cumulative Preferred Shares, SeridgsdSer i es D

Pr ef er r e dhicBdoesma putpdrt,to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference

to theArticles Suppementary classifying th8eries D Preferred Shares, which is included as an exhibit to the

Annual Report on Form KR of which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms and provisions of our Series D Preferred

Shares are substantially the same asthose @eur i es V Pr ef err ed D&shriptiorefs as descri
5.375% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Sevies a b o v e, except that cash distributi
rate of 4.95% of the liquidation preference per year ($1,237.50 per year peiesfuavalent to $1.2375 per year per

Series D Depositary Share (as defined below)), distributions on the Series D Preferred Shares commenced on

September 30, 2016 arekcept in certain circumstances, we may not redeem the Series D Preferred Shares prior to

July 20, 2021.

Description of 4.90% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series E

The following is a brief description of the terms of du®0% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Seri¢gsiESer i es E

Pr ef er r e dhicBdoesma putpdrt,to be complete and igestio and qualified in its entirety by reference

to theArticles Supplementary classifying t&eries E Preferred Shares, which is included as an exhibit to the

Annual Report on Form 1R of which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms and provisions ofioSeries E Preferred

Shares are substantially the same as & Desciggioneff our Ser i ¢
5.375% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Sevies above, except that cash distributi
rate of 4.906 of the liquidation preference per year ($1,225.00 per year per share, equivalent to $1.225 per year per

Series E Depositary Share (as defined below)), distributions on the Series E Preferred Shares commenced on

December 31, 2016 anexcept in certain ccumstances, we may not redeem the Series E Preferred Shares prior to

October 14, 2021.

Description of 5.15% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series F

The following is a brief description of the terms of 8ut5% Cumulative Preferred Shares, SeriésiFSeR i e

Pr ef er r e dhicBdoesma putpdrt,to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference
to theArticles Supplementary classifying t&eries F Preferred Shares, which is included as an exhibit to the
Annual Report on Formi0-K of which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms and provisions of our Series F Preferred



Shares are substantially the same as O Descigionffif our Ser i ¢
5.375% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Sevies a bexcep that cash distributions are payable quarterly at the

rate of 5.15% of the liquidation preference per year ($1,287.50 per year per share, equivalent to $1.2875 per year per
Series F Depositary Share (as defined below)), distributions on the SéviefefFed Shares commenced on June

30, 2017 andexcept in certain circumstances, we may not redeem the Series F Preferred Shares prior to June 2,

2022,

Description of 5.05% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series G

The following is a brief description of the terms of 8U05% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Serigs@®Ser i es G

Pr ef er r e dhickdoesma putpdrt,to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference

to theArticles Supplemetary classifying th&eries G Preferred Shares, which is included as an exhibit to the

Annual Report on Form R of which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms and provisions of our Series G Preferred

Shares are substantially the same as those of oer SeriV.- Pr ef er r ed Sthlescepionchs descri be
5.375% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Sevies above, except that cash distributi
rate of 5.05% of the liquidation preference per year ($1,262.50 per year per sha@eatto $1.2625 per year per

Series G Depositary Share (as defined below)), distributions on the Series G Preferred Shares commenced on
September 30, 2017 arekcept in certain circumstances, we may not redeem the Series G Preferred Shares prior to
August 9, 2022.

Description of 5.60% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series H

The following is a brief description of the terms of &u80% Cumulative Preferred Shares, SeridsiiSer i es H

Pr ef er r e dhicBdoesma putpdrt,to be complete and is sulijeahd qualified in its entirety by reference

to theArticles Supplementary classifying t&eries H Preferred Shares, which is included as an exhibit to the

Annual Report on Form 1R of which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms and provisions of ouergs H Preferred

Shares are substantially the same as & Descigonfff our Ser i ¢
5.375% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Sevies above, except that cash distributi
rate of 5.60% ofthe liquidation preference per year ($1,400.00 per year per share, equivalent to $1.40 per year per

Series H Depositary Share (as defined below)), distributions on the Series H Preferred Shares commenced on March

31, 2019 andexcept in certain circumstaes, we may not redeem the Series H Preferred Shares prior to March 11,

2024.

Description of 4.875% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series |

The following is a brief description of the terms of du875% Cumulative Preferred Shares, SeriedilSer i es |

Preer r ed Svhich deesnot)pyrport to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference

to theArticles Supplementary classifying t&eries | Preferred Shares, which is included as an exhibit to the Annual

Report on Form 1K of which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms and provisions of our Series | Preferred Shares

are substantially the same as t hos é&Deasdriptionof6.37%% r i es V Pr «
Cumulative Preferred Shares, Sel&s a b o v ehat cask distriputionstare payable quarterly at the rate of

4.879% of the liquidation preference per year ($1,218.75 per year per share, equivalent to $1.21875 per year per

Series | Depositary Share (as defined below)), distributions on the Series tdr&bares commenced on

December 31, 2019 anexcept in certain circumstances, we may not redeem the Series | Preferred Shares prior to
September 12, 2024.

Description of 4.70% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series J

The following is a brief description dfie terms of oud.70% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Serigsi’JSer i es J

Pr ef er r e dhickdoesmat putpdrt,to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference

to theArticles Supplementary classifying tseries J Preferreghares, which is included as an exhibit to the Annual

Report on Form 1K of which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms and provisions of our Series J Preferred Shares

are substantially the same as t hos éDeasdriptionof6.37%% r i es V Pr
Cumulative Preferred Shares, Selds above, except that cash distributions
4.70% of the liquidation preference per year ($1,175.00 per year per share, equivalent to $1.175 per year per Series J
Depositary Share (as defined below)), distributions on the Series J Preferred Shares will commence on March 31,

2020 andgexcept in certain circumstances, we may not redeem the Series J Preferred Shares prior to November 15,

2024.



Description of 4.75% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Series K

The following is a brief description of the terms of dur5% Cumulative Preferred Shares, SerigsKSer i es K

Pr ef er r e dhickdoesmat putpdrt,to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its eljiretigrence

to theArticles Supplementary classifying tiseries K Preferred Shares, which is included as an exhibit to the

Annual Report on Form 1R of which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms and provisions of our Series K Preferred
Sharesaresulssnt i al |y the same as those of oduescriptonof es V Pref e
5.375% Cumulative Preferred Shares, Sevies above, except that cash distributi
rate of4.7%% of the liquidation preference perarg$1,187.50 per year per share, equivalent to $1.1875 per year per

Series K Depositary Share (as defined below)), distributions on the Series K Preferred Shares will commence on

March 31, 2020 angixcept in certain circumstances, we may not redeemetiesX Preferred Shares prior to

December 20, 2024.
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DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES
Description of Depositary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series V Preferred Share
General

The following is a brief description of the terms of our def@wy shares, each representing 1/1,000 of Series V
Preferred Share (fiSeries V Depositary Sharesodo) which d
qualified in its entirety by reference to the provisions of the Deposit Agreement relatimgSertas V Preferred

Shares (the fADeposit Agreement o), which iKofwhrlkthisuded as
Exhibit4.2isapartOur Series V Depositary Shares are |isted on t
the symboih PSAPr V. o

The Series V Preferred Shares are deposited with Computershare Trust Company, N. A., as Depositary (the
APreferred Shares Depositaryodo), under a Deposit Agreem
and the holders fromtimetoten of t he depositary receipts (the ADeposif
Shares Depositary under the Deposit Agreement. The Depositary Receipts evidence the Series V Depositary Shares.
Each holder of a Depositary Receipt evidencing a Series V RapoShare is entitled, proportionately, to all the

rights and preferences of, and subject to all of the limitations of, the interest in the Series V Preferred Shares

represented by the Series V Depositary Share (including dividend, voting, redemptimuiaadion rights and

preferences).

Ownership Restrictions

For a discussion of ownership |Iimitations that apply t
Share8 Owner ship Limitations. 0

Distributions

The Preferred Shares Depositaml distribute all cash distributions or other cash distributions received in respect

of the Series V Preferred Shares to the record holders of Depositary Receipts in proportion to the number of
Depositary Shares owned by such holders on the relevamtir@ate, which will be the same date as the record date

fixed by us for the Series V Preferred Shares. In the event that the calculation of such amount to be paid results in an
amount which is a fraction of one cent, the amount the Preferred Shares &gdsitl distribute to such record

holder shall be rounded to the next highest whole cent.

In the event of a distribution other than in cash, the Preferred Shares Depositary will distribute property received by
it to the record holders of Depositary Rgusientitled thereto, in proportion, as nearly as may be practicable, to the
number of Series V Depositary Shares owned by such holders on the relevant record date, unless the Preferred
Shares Depositary determines (after consultation with us) thatat feasible to make such distribution, in which

case the Preferred Shares Depositary may (with our approval) adopt any other method for such distribution as it
deems equitable and appropriate, including the sale of such property (at such place or golages anch terms as

it may deem equitable and appropriate) and distribution of the net proceeds from such sale to such holders.

Liguidation Preference

In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Company, whetheawplomt

involuntary, the holders of each Series V Depositary Share will be entitled to 1/1000th of the liquidation preference
accorded each Series V Preferred Share.

Redemption

Whenever we redeem any Series V Preferred Shares held by the Preferred Shasiaripethe Preferred Shares

Depositary will redeem as of the same redemption date the number of Series V Depositary Shares representing the
Series V Preferred Shares so redeemed. The Preferred Shares Depositary will publish a notice of redemption of the
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Series V Depositary Shares containing the same type of information and in the same manner as our notice of
redemption and will mail the notice of redemption promptly upon receipt of such notice from us and not less than 30
nor more than 60 days prior tioet date fixed for redemption of the Series V Preferred Shares and the Series V
Depositary Shares to the record holders of the Depositary Receipts. In case less than all the outstanding Series V
Depositary Shares are to be redeemed, the Series V Dep&itags to be so redeemed shall be determined pro

rata or by lot in a manner determined by the board of trustees.

Voting

Promptly upon receipt of notice of any meeting at which the holders of the Series V Preferred Shares are entitled to

vote, the Preferre8hares Depositary will mail the information contained in such notice of meeting to the record

holders of the Depositary Receipts as of the record date for such meeting. Each such record holder of Depositary
Receipts will be entitled to instruct the Preger Shares Depositary as to the exercise of the voting rights pertaining

to the number of Series V Preferred Shares represented
Preferred Shares Depositary will endeavor, insofar as practicablagtesuah Series V Preferred Shares represented

by such Series V Depositary Shares in accordance with such instructions, and we will agree to take all action which

may be deemed necessary by the Preferred Shares Depositary in order to enable the PaafesrBeé@isitary to

do so. The Preferred Shares Depositary will abstain from voting any of the Series V Preferred Shares to the extent

that it does not receive specific instructions from the holders of Depositary Receipts.

Withdrawal of Series V Preferredttres

Upon surrender of Depositary Receipts at the principal office of the Preferred Shares Depositary, upon payment of
any unpaid amount due the Preferred Shares Depositary, and subject to the terms of the Deposit Agreement, the
owner of the Series V Depitary Shares evidenced thereby is entitled to delivery of the number of whole Series V
Preferred Shares and all money and other property, if any, represented by such Series V Depositary Shares. Partial
Series V Preferred Shares will not be issued. IDBpositary Receipts delivered by the holder evidence a number

of Series V Depositary Shares in excess of the number of Series V Depositary Shares representing the number of
whole Series V Preferred Shares to be withdrawn, the Preferred Shares Depolsithtjvet to such holder at the

same time a new Depositary Receipt evidencing such excess number of Series V Depositary Shares. Holders of
Series V Preferred Shares thus withdrawn will not thereafter be entitled to deposit such shares under the Deposit
Agreement or to receive Depositary Receipts evidencing Series V Depositary Shares therefor.

Amendment and Termination of Deposit Agreement

The form of Depositary Receipt evidencing the Series V Depositary Shares and any provision of the Deposit
Agreement mayt any time and from time to time be amended by agreement between us and the Preferred Shares
Depositary. However, any amendment which materially and adversely alters the rights of the holders (other than any
change in fees) of Series V Depositary Shardaot be effective unless such amendment has been approved by the
holders of at least a majority of the Series V Depositary Shares then outstanding. No such amendment may impair
the right, subject to the terms of the Deposit Agreement, of any owney &aaies V Depositary Shares to

surrender the Depositary Receipt evidencing such Series V Depositary Shares with instructions to the Preferred
Shares Depositary to deliver to the holder the Series V Preferred Shares and all money and other property, if an
represented thereby, except in order to comply with mandatory provisions of applicable law. The Deposit
Agreement may be terminated by us or the Preferred Shares Depositary only if (i) all outstanding Series V
Depositary Shares have been redeemed)ahéie has been a final distribution in respect of the Series V Preferred
Shares in connection with any dissolution of the Company and such distribution has been made to all the holders of
Series V Depositary Shares.

Charges of Preferred Shares Depositary

We will pay all transfer and other taxes and governmental charges arising solely from the existence of the depositary
arrangements. We will pay charges of the Preferred Shares Depositary in connection with the initial deposit of the
Series V Preferred Stes and the initial issuance of the Series V Depositary Shares, and redemption of the Series V
Preferred Shares and all withdrawals of Series V Preferred Shares by owners of Series V Depositary Shares. Holders
of Depositary Receipts will pay transfer, imee and other taxes and governmental charges and certain other charges
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as are provided in the Deposit Agreement to be for their accounts. In certain circumstances, the Preferred Shares
Depositary may refuse to transfer Series V Depositary Shares, may laithistoibutions and distributions and sell
the Series V Depositary Shares evidenced by such Depositary Receipt if such charges are not paid.

Miscellaneous

The Preferred Shares Depositary will forward to the holders of Depositary Receipts all repoasanahications

from us which are delivered to the Preferred Shares Depositary and which we are required to furnish to the holders
of the Series V Preferred Shares. In addition, the Preferred Shares Depositary will make available for inspection by
holders ofDepositary Receipts at the principal office of the Preferred Shares Depositary, and at such other places as
it may from time to time deem advisable, any reports and communications received from the Company which are
received by the Preferred Shares Dejaogias the holder of Series V Preferred Shares.

Neither the Preferred Shares Depositary nor any Deposi:
Registrar (as defined in the Deposit Agreement) nor the Company assumes any obligatiopeoswhiject to any

liability under the Deposit Agreement to holders of Depositary Receipts other than for its gross negligence, willful

mi sconduct or bad faith. Neither the Preferred Shares |
Companywill be liable if it is prevented or delayed by law or any circumstance beyond its control in performing its
obligations under the Deposit Agreement. The Company and the Preferred Shares Depositary are not obligated to
prosecute or defend any legal prodieg in respect of any Series V Depositary Shares, Depositary Receipts or

Series V Preferred Shares unless reasonably satisfactory indemnity is furnished. The Company and the Preferred

Shares Depositary may rely on written advice of counsel or accourdanitgprmation provided by holders of

Depositary Receipts or other persons believed in good faith to be competent to give such information and on

documents believed to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties.

Resigndion and Removal of Preferred Shares Depositary

The Preferred Shares Depositary may resign at any time by delivering to us notice of its election to do so, and we
may at any time remove the Preferred Shares Depositary, any such resignation or rerakgaftedt upon the
appointment of a successor Preferred Shares Depositary and its acceptance of such appointment. Such successor
Preferred Shares Depositary must be appointed within 60 days after delivery of the notice for resignation or removal
and musbe a bank or trust company having its principal office in the United States of America and having a
combined capital and surplus of at least $150,000,000.

Description of Depositary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series W Preferred Share

The following is a brief description of the terms of our depositary shares, each representing 1/1,000 of a Series W
Preferred Share (fiSeries W Depositary Shareso), which
qualified in its entirety by reference tioe Deposit Agreement relating to the Series W Preferred Shares, which is

included as an exhibit to the Annual Report on ForaKidf which this Exhibit4.2is a part. The terms and

provisions of our Series W Depositary Shares are substantially the sdhwsa of our Series V Depositary Shares

as descodDesdr iipmt ifon of Depositary Shares, each Represen
Our Series W Depositary Shares are | isted on the NYSE |

Description of Depcsitary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series X Preferred Share

The following is a brief description of the terms of our depositary shares, each representing 1/1,000 of a Series X
Preferred Share (fASeries X Detpobedompete gnd S bubjecetcsadd , whi ch
qualified in its entirety by reference to the Deposit Agreement relating to the Series X Preferred Shares, which is

included as an exhibit to the Annual Report on ForaKdf which this Exhibit4.2is a part. Thegrms and

provisions of our Series X Depositary Shares are substantially the same as those of our Series V Depositary Shares

as descadDeésdr iipmt ifon of Depositary Shares, each Represen
Our Series X Depést ary Shares are |isted on the NYSE under the
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Description of Depositary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series B Preferred Share

The following is a brief description of the terms of our depositary shares, each representing 1/1,000 of a Series B
Preferred Share (fiSeries B Depositary Sharesodo), which
qualified in its entirety by refrence to the Deposit Agreement relating to the Series B Preferred Shares, which is

included as an exhibit to the Annual Report on ForaK1df which this Exhibit4.2is a part. The terms and

provisions of our Series B Depositary Shares are substarttialsame as those of our Series V Depositary Shares

as descadDeésdr iipmt ifon of Depositary Shares, each Represen
Our Series B Depositary Shares are |isted on the NYSE

Description of Depositary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series C Preferred Share

The following is a brief description of the terms of our depositary shares, each representing 1/1,000 of a Series C
Preferred Share (fASer i es ndpuperpimbe comalateyandSshsubjectteandl , whi ch
qualified in its entirety by reference to the Deposit Agreement relating to the Series C Preferred Shares, which is

included as an exhibit to the Annual Report on ForaK1df which this Exhibit4.2is a pat. The terms and

provisions of our Series C Depositary Shares are substantially the same as those of our Series V Depositary Shares

as descadDeésdr iipmt inon of Depositary Shares, each Represen
OurSeres C Depositary Shares are | isted on the NYSE wunder

Description of Depositary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series D Preferred Share

The following is a brief description of the terms of our depositary shares, each repge$En600 of a Series D
Preferred Share (fiSeries D Depositary Shareso), which
qualified in its entirety by reference to the Deposit Agreement relating to the Series D Preferred Shares, which is
includedas an exhibit to the Annual Report on FormKLOf which this Exhibit4.2is a part. The terms and

provisions of our Series D Depositary Shares are substantially the same as those of our Series V Depositary Shares

as des cdDescaptionofDepdsitr y Shares, each Representing 1/1,000
Our Series D Depositary Shares are |isted on the NYSE

Description of Depositary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series E Preferred Share

The following is a brief description of the terms of our depositary shares, each representing 1/1,000 of a Series E
Preferred Share (fiSeries E Depositary Shareso), which
qualified in its entirety by reference tioe Deposit Agreement relating to the Series E Preferred Shares, which is

included as an exhibit to the Annual Report on ForaKldf which this Exhibit4.2is a part. The terms and

provisions of our Series E Depositary Shares are substantially the same as those of our Series V Depositary Shares

as descaDeésdr iipmt inon of Depositary Shares, each Represen
Our Series E Depositary Shares are | isted on the NYSE |

Description of Depositary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series F Preferred Share

The following is a brief description of the terms of our depositary shares, eaebaefing 1/1,000 of a Series F
Preferred Share (ASeries F Depositary Shareso), which
qualified in its entirety by reference to the Deposit Agreement relating to the Series F Preferred Shares, which is

included as an exhibit to the Annual Report on ForaKidf which this Exhibit4.2is a part. The terms and

provisions of our Series F Depositary Shares are substantially the same as those of our Series V Depositary Shares

as descdbhesceptonofine fiosi tary Shares, each Representing 1/ 1,
Our Series F Depositary Shares are |isted on the NYSE

Description of Depositary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series G Preferred Share
The following is a brief description of the terms of our depositary shares, each representing 1/1,000 of a Series G

Preferred Share (ASeries G Depositary Sharesodo), which
qualified in its entirety by refence to the Deposit Agreement relating to the Series G Preferred Shares, which is
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included as an exhibit to the Annual Report on ForaK1df which this Exhibit4.2is a part. The terms and

provisions of our Series G Depositary Shares are substantalbathe as those of our Series V Depositary Shares

as descadDeésdr iipmt inon of Depositary Shares, each Represen
Our Series G Depositary Shares are |isted on the NYSE

Description of Depositary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series H Preferred Share

The following is a brief description of the terms of our depositary shares, each representing 1/1,000 of a Series H
Preferred Share (fiSeri es otpuperpobe comaleteyandSsisubjectte@ndl , whi ch
qualified in its entirety by reference to the Deposit Agreement relating to the Series H Preferred Shares, which is

included as an exhibit to the Annual Report on ForaK1df which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms and

provisions of our Series H Depositary Shares are substantially the same as those of our Series V Depositary Shares

as descoDesdr iipnt ifion of Depositary Shares, each Represen
Our Seried Depositary Shares are |isted on the NYSE under t

Description of Depositary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series | Preferred Share

The following is a brief description of the terms of our depositary shares, each represdn@ig of a Series |
Preferred Share (fASeries | Depositary Shareso), which
in its entirety by reference to the Deposit Agreement relating to the Series | Preferred Shares, which is sicluded a

an exhibit to the Annual Report on FormK®f which this Exhibit4.2is a part. The terms and provisions of our

Series | Depositary Shares are substantially tdhe same
Description of Deposityr S har es, each Representing 1/QurSer@dl of Seri e:
Depositary Shares are |isted on the NYSE under the syml

Description of Depositary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series J Preferred Share

The following is a brief description of the terms of our depositary shares, each representing 1/1,000 of a Series J
Preferred Share (ASeries J Depositary Shareso), which
in its entirety by reference todtDeposit Agreement relating to the Series J Preferred Shares, which is included as

an exhibit to the Annual Report on FormK®f which this Exhibit4.2is a part. The terms and provisions of our

Series J Depositary Shares are substantially the ssambass e of our Series V Dé&positary
Description of Depositary Shares, each PRanSereslJenting 1/ .
Depositary Shares are |isted on the NYSE under the syml

Description of Deposiary Shares, each Representing 1/1,000 of a Series K Preferred Share

The following is a brief description of the terms of our depositary shares, each representing 1/1,000 of a Series K
Preferred Share (fiSeries K De podecomptete sndiS subjectedcsaad , whi ch
qualified in its entirety by reference to the Deposit Agreement relating to the Series K Preferred Shares, which is

included as an exhibit to the Annual Report on ForaK1df which this Exhibit4.2is a part. The tens and

provisions of our Series K Depositary Shares are substantially the same as those of our Series V Depositary Shares

as descadDeésdr iipmt ifon of Depositary Shares, each Represen
Our SeriesKDepositr y Shares are |isted on the NYSE under the sy
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DESCRIPTION OF NOTES

The following is a brief description of the terms of our 0.875% Senior Notesdue Ja&ndary 2032 (t he fnot
The notes are a series of debt securities issued unded#érure, dated as of Septemt8y 2017, between us and

Well s Fargo Bank, Nati ofirasteée Assandat hent hasdt suppbkeménh
Januar2 4, 2020 ( as dndemtprd 2 me w hirclddied af dxlebitsito the Annual Report on Form

10-K of which this Exhibit4.2is a part The terms of the notes include those provisions contained in the Indenture

and those made part of the Indenture by reference to the Trust Indenture Act of X03®ecas d e drust t he #

Indenture Add) . We have summarized selected terms and provi si
below. The following summary of specified provisions of the Indenture and the notes does not purport to be

complete and is fiject to, and qualified in its entirety by reference to, the actual provisions of the Indenture,

including the definitions contained in the Indenture of some of the terms used below, and the notes. If you would

like more information on any of these prowiss, you should read the relevant sections of the Indenture. Copies of

the Indenture are available from us upon request. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein have the
meanings specified in the Indenture.

The notes were initially limitetl 0 an aggregate princi p@HFuratmoamt!l ofuadbdds d
below.

The notes are our direct, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations and will rank equally in right of payment with all

of our existing and future unsecured and unsubordinatiEbtedness. The notes will be effectively subordinated in

right of payment to all of our existing and future secured indebtedness (to the extent of the value of the collateral

securing such indebtedness). The notes will also be structurally subordmaggd of payment to all existing and

future liabilities and other indebtedness, whether secured or unsecured, of our subsidiaries. As of February 25, 2020,

we had outstanding 0500, 000,000 aggregat euntpfthemotes pal a ma

will mature and become payable, together with accrued and unpaid interest, on 2afiuary 2 0 Bl&urity t h e 0

Dated) , unless, in each case, the not@&GptairenaledRedemdp teiag
notes will notbe subject to, or entitled to the benefit of, any sinking fund provisions and will not be convertible into

or exchangeable for any of our equity interests. The n
and integral mux ct & spsl etsh eorfe oifl., OTOh0e imotees are | isted on t

Except as descéCbeedndbelt aswounher| identure does not cont :
ability or the ability of our subsidiaries to incur indebtednessatrwould give holders of the notes protection in the
event of:

A ahighly leveraged or similar transaction involving us or any of our affiliates;
A achange of control; or

A areorganization, restructuring, merger or similar transaatiosiving us or any of our affiliates that m
adversely affect the holders of the notes.

Restrictions on the ownership and transfer of our common shares of beneficial interest designed to preserve our
gualification as a REIT, however, may prevenhimder a change of control.

Principal and Interest

The notes will bear interest at 0.875% per year from Jarfi4gr2020 or from the immediately preceding interest

payment date to which interest has been paid. Interest is payable annually in arreansugr?danommencing

Januany2 4, 202 1 InfereshtRaymentBate) i | nt erest on an I nterest Paymen
persohdder®ori A whose names the notes are registered on
regula record date. The regular record date will be the fifteenth calendar day, whether or not a Business Day,

immediately preceding the related Interest Payment Date. Interest on the notes will be computed on the basis of the

actual number of days in the patifor which interest is being calculated and the actual number of days from and

including the last date on which interest was paid on the notes (or J2du&§20 if no interest has been paid on

the notes), to but excluding the next scheduled intergshgrat date. This payment convention is referred to as
ACTUAL/ACTUAL (ICMA) as defined in the rulebook of the International Capital Market Association.
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The principal and interest, if any, of each note payable at maturity or the principal, Make Whole fasaiefined

below), if any, and interest, if any, payable upon earlier redemption will be paid against surrender of the note at the
corporate trust office of the paying agent, initially |
Agent 0) initially atd-iftht Féodr, 125 Old Broad Street, London EC2N 1AR, in euro.

If any Interest Payment Date, the Maturity Date or any earlier date of redemption falls on a day that is not a Business

Day, the required payment will be made on the next BusinagaBif it were made on the date the payment was

due and no interest will accrue on the amount so payable for the period from and after such Interest Payment Date,
Maturity Date or date of redempt i omBysinesDa@t hmee acrass ea mma yd ay
other than a Saturday or Sunday, {hich is not a day on which banking institutions in The City of New York or

London are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close andy@ch the Trans

European Atomated Realime Gross Settlement Express Transfer System (the Target2 System) or any successor

thereto, is open.

Issuance in Euro

Initial holders were required to pay for the notes in euro, and principal and interest payments in respect of the notes,
including payments made upon any redemption of the notes, and additional amounts, if any, will be payable in euro.

If the euro is unavailable to us due to the imposition of exchange controls or other circumstances beyond our control
or if the euro is no longebeing used by the then member states of the European Monetary Union that have adopted
the euro as their currency or for the settlement of transactions by public institutions of or within the international
banking community, then all payments in respéd¢he notes will be made in U.S. dollars until the euro is again

available to us or so used. The amount payable on any date in euro will be converted into U.S. dollars on the basis of
the Market Exchange Rate (as defined below). Any payment in respietmdtes so made in U.S. dollars will not
constitute an event of default under the Indenture. Neither the Trustee nor the Payirghallietresponsible for

obtaining exchange rates, effecting conversions or otherwise handling redenominations.

AfMar kethabge Ratedo means the rate mandated by the U.S.
the second Business Day prior to the relevant payment date or, in the event the U.S. Federal Reserve Board has not
mandated a rate of conversion, onlasis of the most recent euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate available on or prior to

the second Business Day prior to the relevant payment date, as reported by Bloomberg, or if Bloomberg has not
reported such exchange rate, the rate will be determined ileuliscretion on the basis of the most recently

available market exchange rate for euros.

Investors will be subject to foreign exchange risks as to payments of principal and interest in respect of the notes,
including payments made upon any redemptiothefnotes, and additional amounts, if any, that may have
important economic and tax consequences to them.

Paying Agent and Registrar

Elavon Financial Services DAC, UK Branch, will initially act as paying agent for the notes. U.S. Bank National
Associationwill initially act as security registrar for the notes. Upon notice to the trustee, we may change any
paying agent or security registrar.

Further Issuances

We may, from time to time, without the consent of or notice to existing note holders, creatuarfdrither notes

having the same terms and conditions as the notes in all respects, except for the issue date and, to the extent

applicable, the issue price, the payment of interest accruing prior to the issue date and the first payment of interest.
Additional notes issued in this manner will be consolidated with, and will form a single series of debt securities

with, the previously outstanding notgspvided, howeverthat the issuance of such additional notes will not be so
consolidated for United State f eder al i ncome tax purposes unless such i
within the meaning of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury regulations promulgated
thereunder.
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Optional Redemption

We have the option to redmethe notes at any time in whole, or from time to time in part, at a redemption price (the
fiRedemption Price) equal to the greater of:

A 100% of the aggregate principal amount of the notes being redeemed; and
A the MakeWhole Amount (as definedelow), if any,
plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest on such notes to, but not including, the redemption date.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the notes are redeemed on or after O2thiH31 (three months prior to the
Maturity Date) (théiPar CallDaté ) , t he Redemption Price wild./ equal 100%
the notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest on such notes to, but not including, the redemption date.

Notice of redemption will be mailed or sent gteaically at least 15 but not more than 60 days before the

redemption date to each holder of record of notes to be redeemed at its registered address, provided that while the

notes are represented by one or more global notes, notice of redemption ooaygion, instead be given to the

holders of notes (and beneficial interest therein) in accordance with the applicable rules and regulations of
Clearstream Banking, soci ® ® anonyme (AClIlearstreamo) al
System (AEurocl ear o), and we wil|l instruct the Trustee
such notes will state, among other things, the redemption date, the Redemption Price and the place or places that
payment will be made upaurrender of notes to be redeemed. Unless we default in the payment of the Redemption

Price, interest will cease to accrue on the notes at the redemption date.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, installments of interest on notes that are due and payabieterestnPayment
Date falling on or prior to a redemption date will be payable on such Interest Payment Date to the holders thereof as
of the close of business on the relevant record date.

If we choose to redeem less than all of the notes, we will nbifyf tustee and Paying Agent at least five Business

Days prior to giving notice of redemption, or a shorter period as may be satisfactory to the Trustee, of the aggregate
principal amount of notes to be redeemed and the redemption date. The Paying Agaeheatiby lot or such

method as the Paying Agent shall deem fair and appropriate and in accordance with the applicable procedures of the
depositary, the notes to be redeemed in part:; provi ded
less shall be redeemed in part.

The notes are also subject to redemption prior to maturity if certain changes occur involving U.S. taxation. If such
changes occur, the notes may be redeemed, at our option, at a redemption price of 100% of their prancipal am

plus accrued and unpaid interest toéoRedbeunip tniootn ifnocrl uTda xn gR
As used in this fADescription of NotesoO:
fiComparable GovernmentBand means, in relation t o angalcu@tiomptéheabl e Go-

discretion of an independent investment bank selected by us, a German government bond whose maturity is closest
to the Par Call Date of the notes, or if such independent investment bank in its discretion determines that such
similar bord is not in issue, such other German government bond as such independent investment bank may, with
the advice of three brokers of, and/or market makers in, German government bonds selected by us, determine to be
appropriate for determining the Comparablevé&nment Bond Rate.

fiComparable Government Bond Rate means t he price, expr es decihalplacesa per ce
with 0.0005 being rounded upwards), at which the gross redemption yield on the notes, if they were to be purchased

at such pce on the thirdusiness day prior to the date fixed for redemption, would be equal to the gross redemption

yield on such business day of the Comparable Government Bond on the basis of the middle market price of the
Comparable Government Bond prevailaigl1:00 a.m. (London time) on such business day as determined by an
independent investment bank selected by us.
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fiMake-Whole Amoundb me an s, in connection with any optional rede
remaining scheduled payments ofrmipal and interest on the notes being redeemed assuming that the notes being
redeemed matured on the Par Call Date (not including any portion of any payments of interest accrued to the

redemption date), discounted to the redemption date on an annugliZBISAL/ACTUAL (ICMA)) at the

applicable Comparable Government Bond Rate, plus 20 basis points.

Payment of Additional Amounts

All payments, including payments of principal and interest, made in respect of the notes will be made free and clear
of, and wittout withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future tax, duty, assessment or other
governmental charge of whatever nature imposed, levied or collected by the United States (or any political
subdivision or taxing authority thereof drerein), unless such withholding or deduction is required by law or the
official interpretation or administration thereof.

We will, subject to the exceptions and limitations set forth below, pay as additional amounts to a holder of a note
that is a Unitecstates Alien (as defined below) such amounts as may be necessary so that every net payment made
in respect of such note after deduction or withholding for, or on account of, any present or future tax, duty,
assessment or other governmental charge of whiateture imposed, levied or collected as a result of such

payment by the United States (or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein), will not be less
than the amount provided for in such note to be then due and payable. Howewélt,net be required to make any
payment of additional amounts for or on account of:

(a) any tax, assessment or other governmental charge that would not have been imposed thé for (i)
existence of any present or former connection (other than a connagsimg solely as a result of the
ownership of the notes, the receipt of any payment in respect of the notes or the enforcement of any rights
hereunder) between such holder (or between a fiduciary, settlor or beneficiary of, or a person holding a
power ove, such holder, if such holder is an estate or a trust, or a member or shareholder of such holder, if
such holder is a partnership or corporation) and the United States, including, without limitation, such holder
(or such fiduciary, settlor, beneficiaryerson holding a power, member or shareholder) being or having
been a citizen or resident or treated as a resident of the United States or being or having been engaged in
trade or business in the United States or having or having had a permanent estabitsimeia, or (iithe
presentation by the holder of the note for payment more than 30 days after the date on which the payment
became due and payable or the date on which payment thereof is duly provided for and notice thereof given
to holders, whichevesccurs later;

(b) any estate, inheritance, gift, sales, transfer, personal property or any similar tax, assessment or other
governmental charge;

(coany tax, assessment or other government al charge th
past or pesent status as a controlled foreign corporation, passive foreign investment company (including a
qualified electing fund) or foreign private foundation or other tax exempt organization with respect to the
United States or as a corporation that accumuésesings to avoid United States Federal income tax;

(d) any tax, assessment or other governmental charge that is payable otherwise than by deduction or
withholding from a payment on a note;

(e) any tax, assessment or other governmental charge required to beedextugithheld by any paying agent
from any payment on a note, if such payment can be made without such deduction or withholding by any
other paying agent;

(H any tax, assessment or other governmental charge that would not have been imposed but for tllesholde
failure to comply with any applicable certification, information, documentation or other reporting
requirement concerning the nationality, residence, identity or connection with the United States of the
holder or beneficial owner of a note if, withaegard to any tax treaty, such compliance is required by
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